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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial
Bank, Limited (hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank hereinafter as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2024.

Principal Activities
The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Bank are provision of
banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank's subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the

Bank” to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 34.

The Directors has recommended a final dividend of HK$297,537,800, equal to HK$42.5054 per share, to shareholder(s) whose name(s)
appear on the Register of Members of the Bank on 31 March 2025, subject to the approval of shareholder(s) of the Bank at the 2025

annual general meeting of the Bank.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$1,328,000.

Shares Issued
No shares were issued by the Bank during the year. Details of the issued shares of the Bank are set out in Note 34 to the Financial

Statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Board of Directors

Chairman: Zhang Weidong*

Directors: Yang Yingxun®
Liu Jun (resigned effective from 7 February 2024)
Sun Jiandong
Cheng Kin Kong (resigned effective from 26 February 2025)
Liu Xiaoguang (appointed effective from 26 February 2025)

Lau Hon Chuen*

Lan Hong Tsung, David*
Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna*
Li Shu Pui*

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors (continued)

Save for Messrs.Sun Jiandong, Cheng Kin Kong# and Liu Xiaoguang®* being also directors of a subsidiary of the Bank, other directors

of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Cheng Zeyu®# Shen Jiamu Shang Chenguang Cheng Zhenghong  Xia Jun Li Xin

Hui Wai Hing, Chong Wing Kwan#### Lam Kin Ho Tam Lai Yee™ Lee Chung Yan Leung Ling Tsz,
Peter### Tiffany

Wong Tak Chuen, Xue Zhengye**** Lee Hon Chuen*™***  Yip Fung Lin*****

Dorian***

# resigned as a director of the Bank effective from 26 February 2025.

### appointed as a director of the Bank effective from 26 February 2025.

###resigned as a director of a subsidiary of the Bank effective from 13 December 2024.
#H### resigned as directors of subsidiaries of the Bank effective from 8 August 2024.
#H## resigned as directors of subsidiaries of the Bank effective from 8 August and 2 September 2024 respectively.
** appointed as directors of subsidiaries of the Bank effective from 15 February and 8 August 2024 respectively.
*** appointed as a director of a subsidiary of the Bank effective from 15 February 2024 and resigned as a director of such subsidiary
of the Bank effective from 2 September 2024.

**** appointed as a director of a subsidiary of the Bank effective from 8 August 2024.

*kkkk

appointed as a director of a subsidiary of the Bank effective from 2 September 2024.

In accordance with Article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Messrs. Yang Yingxun, Lan Hong Tsung, David, and Li Shu
Pui retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In accordance
with Article 82 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Mr. Liu Xiaoguang retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, offer himself for election.

Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities
At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any

other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group's business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Bank or his/her connected entity had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were

entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Bank against any liability
incurred by him/her in relation to the Bank. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of Directors against liability which may

lawfully be insured by the Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 comply with the requirements set out in the Banking

(Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Weidong
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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Corporate Governance

The Group strives to achieve high standards of corporate governance and followed CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally

Incorporated Authorised Institutions” of the Supervisory Policy Manual issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business.
As at the end of the year, the Board comprises eight Directors with a variety of different experience and professionalism. Among them,
two are Executive Directors, while the remaining six are Non-executive Directors. Of the six Non-executive Directors, four are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and
four board meetings were held in the year with attendance rate of 90% in the year. The Management, led by the Chief Executive, is
responsible for formulating and implementing detailed programmes to effect the approved strategies and policies, and providing
detailed reports on the Group’s performance to the Board on a regular basis to enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities
effectively. The Board currently has set up the following five committees to oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the

committees are given below:

15
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Strategy and Development Committee

Strategy and Development Committee is responsible for the consideration and suggestion of the medium and long term development

strategies of the Group. Its main duties include:
preparation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies for the Board’s approval;

examination, proposing, monitoring, review and update of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies and recommend the Board

on necessary adjustments of the strategies;

examination of the formulation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies and ensure all the potential plans in a certain

selective scope have been adequately considered;

monitoring the implementation of medium and long term strategies in accordance with established standards and provide strategic

guidance to the Senior Management on the implementation;
examination of material merge and acquisition plans proposed by the Senior Management and advise the Board on the plans; and

giving advice to the Board on the Bank’s major investment, capital expenditure and strategic commitment and monitoring the

implementation of the aforesaid.

During the year, the Strategy and Development Committee has convened two meetings. As at the end of the year, members of the
Strategy and Development Committee included Messrs. Zhang Weidong (Chairman) and Sun Jiandong. Among them, Mr. Sun

Jiandong was Executive Director of the Bank.

16
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process;

- internal control system;

- performance of internal audit functions and internal auditors;

- appointment of external auditor and evaluation of external auditor’s qualifications, independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards and legal and regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and
- enhancement of the corporate governance framework.

During the year, the Audit Committee has convened four meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of Audit Committee were
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna (Chairman), Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David and Mr. Li Shu Pui. All were Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Bank.

17
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk management of the Group in the

following areas:
- formulation/review of the risk management framework and risk management strategy of the Group;

- oversight of all risk profile of the Group, and identification, assessment and management of material risks faced and foreseen by

the Group;
- oversight the impact from the subsidiaries’ risk management, internal control and all risk profile on the Group;

- review, oversight and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management policies, procedures, system

framework, risk information systems, infrastructure, resources and internal control;
- review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group and monitoring of the implementation of the aforesaid;

- assessment on the remuneration system which should align with the risk culture and risk appetite from the risk management point

of view; and

- monitoring the Group’s sustainability-related risk management, and employing effective strategy, control and mitigation measures

to climate change.

During the year, the Risk Management Committee has convened four meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of the Risk
Management Committee were Mr. Li Shu Pui (Chairman), Mr. Yang Yingxun, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna.
Among them, Mr. Yang Yingxun was Non-executive Director of the Bank; Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Mr. Li Shu Pui and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen,

Susanna were Independent Non-executive Directors of the Bank.

Connected Transaction Committee

The Connected Transaction Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of connected transaction of the Bank in

the following areas:
- review and approve the Bank's connected transaction policy;

- regularly receives connected transactions information and fully understands the management of connected transactions of the

Bank and gives guidance; and

- in accordance with the provisions of laws and administrative regulations and fair and equitable business principles, timely approve

the Bank’s major connected transactions.

During the year, the Connected Transaction Committee has convened four meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of the
Connected Transaction Committee were Messrs. Lau Hon Chuen (Chairman), Lan Hong Tsung, David and Cheng Kin Kong. All were
Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Cheng Kin Kong was Executive Director of the Bank, and Messrs. Lau Hon Chuen and Lan

Hong Tsung, David were Independent Non-executive Directors.

18
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in performing the duties, including but not limited to the following

areas:
- review human resources and remuneration strategy of the Group, and monitor related strategy implementation;
- monitor establishment and implementation of culture-related matters of the Group;

- monitor structure, size, composition and effectiveness of the Board of Director and committees;

- nominate Directors, Board Committee members, and review nomination of Senior Management of the Bank and appointment and

resignation of Directors of the Group’s major subsidiaries;

- review and approve remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior Management of the Bank and Directors of the

Group’s major subsidiaries;
- review performance appraisal indicators and performance appraisal results of Senior Management; and
- establish induction and training plans for Directors and Board Committee members.
2024 Key Tasks

Nomination and Remuneration Committee according to its responsibilities and authorities to approve and review the following key

tasks:

- formulation and amendment on remuneration policies;

- Independent Review Report on Compliance of Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System;
- the appointment and resignation of Senior Management;

- remuneration and performance management of Senior Management;

- remuneration of Key Personnel; and

- implementation of human resource strategies.

During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has convened two meetings. Written resolutions are used for
deliberation during the adjournment. As at the end of the year, Nomination and Remuneration Committee was composed of three
members, including two Independent Non-executive Directors (Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David and Mr. Lau Hon Chuen) and one Non-

executive Director (Mr. Yang Yingxun). Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David was the Chairman.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Policy
Objectives, Main Features and Scope of Application

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA’s “Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System”, which is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”. It
links staff remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance their performance, and at
the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management. The related policy is applicable

to Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

“Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA’s

“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”:

“Senior Management”: The senior executives directly managed by the Board, including Management Team members, Executive

Directors, Board Secretary and General Manager of Audit Department.

“Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may have
significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk management,
or those who directly generate the bank’s profit, including Compliance Officer, Assistant Chief Executive, heads of material
business lines, heads of risk control functions with direct influence from the middle and back office, as well as Chief Executive of

major subsidiaries, etc.

Performance and Independence of Remuneration Management of Risk Control Personnel

The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line risk controllers, their performance results are reviewed by

Risk Management Department.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Policy (continued)
Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration”, “variable remuneration” and “non-cash benefits”. As far as individual
units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the risk-adjusted performance of
the units, and that of each individual staff. The size of the pool is subject to the Board’s approval and the Board can make discretionary
adjustment to it if deemed appropriate depending on the external market and the overall performance of the Group. When the Group’s
performance is relatively weak, variable remuneration may be reduced. Factors considered by the Board of Directors include the
Group's overall performance, key performance indicators, risk management indicators, comparison with the past and competitors,
achievements of key annual tasks, and external factors affecting business performance. The Group's payout of variable remuneration

is in cash.

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to formalize the performance management at the levels of the
Group, units and individuals. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets will be tied to their job responsibilities, and the annual
targets of the Group being cascaded down to units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group are linked with all job roles through
the performance management mechanism. Performance rating scales of individuals will be mainly appraised on their achievement
against performance targets, overall performance and adherence to the Group’s corporate culture. Performance measurement
includes financial and non-financial indicators. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but also the values-based

behaviors during the course of performance management.

Unit-level performance indicators mainly include operational effectiveness, key tasks and risk management. Operational effectiveness
includes but is not limited to profits, revenue, business scale, cost management and related ratio indicators. The principal types of risk
management are credit risk, market risk, interest rate and liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, etc.

Relevant indicators are evaluated in accordance with the rating standards and evaluation methods.

The proportion of the fixed and variable remuneration for individual staff members depends on roles, responsibilities and the degree
of impact on bank risks, etc. Different roles have their own salary structure. The proportion of variable remuneration of the Senior
Management, Key Personnel and Designated Teams is higher, while the proportion of variable remuneration of the middle office, back
office and risk control personnel is lower. The Group will conduct periodic review on the remuneration of the staff with reference to

various factors including the remuneration strategy, market pay trend, etc.

Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk

To realize the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to ascertain
the associated risks and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred if
prescribed requirement is met. The payout requirements are linked to the realization of the Bank's future value creation. The proportion
of deferred variable remuneration depends on different factors, including roles, responsibilities, time horizon of the risk, level of variable
remuneration, etc. The longer the time horizon of the risk, the higher the job grade or the higher the amount of bonus granted to the
staff, the higher will be the proportion of deferred variable remuneration in principle. Among them, the proportion of deferred variable

remuneration of staff is according to the role, duties and the total variable remuneration. Deferral period lasts for three years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration will be determined by the Board of Directors by considering factors such as annual
financial performance and the occurrence of material risk accidents to determine whether the vesting of the deferred variable
remuneration met at the bank level. When the vesting of the deferred variable remuneration has met the prescribed requirements of
both the bank and individual levels, the deferred variable remuneration would be vested following the corresponding proportion.
However, if a staff is found to have encountered any of the situations listed in the " Deferral of Variable Remuneration Policy", such as
committing fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used in performance measurement or variable pay determination are later
proven to have been manifestly worse than originally understood in a particular year, etc. The unvested portion of the deferred variable
remuneration of the relevant staff would be reduced or forfeited, and the vested portion would be recalled under prevailing

circumstances.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Policy (continued)
Determination of the Remuneration Policy

Human Resources Department is responsible for proposing the Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation of the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance. The proposed Remuneration Policy will be
reviewed by the Chief Executive Office, and subsequently submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or the Board of
Directors for review and approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from
other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under the

circumstances.

Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review with reference to regulatory requirements, market conditions,
organizational structure and risk management requirements, etc. During the year, we performed annual reviews on relevant
remuneration policies (including Remuneration and Incentive Policy, Deferral of Variable Remuneration Policy, Employee Category of
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” Policy, etc.), revised the position list of employees specified in the Employee Category,

in order to comply with relevant regulatory requirements and the human resources strategy of the Group.
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
EY§ j( 979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 265, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.  Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of loans and advances to customers

1)
2)
3)

4)

Refer to material accounting policies in Note 2.14, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies in Note 3.1, and disclosures on credit
risk and loan impairment allowances in Note 4.1 and Note
22 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected loss
impairment model to estimate the expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) on its advances to customers. The assessment
of credit risk and the measurement of ECLs are required
to be based on unbiased and probability-weighted
possible outcomes and reasonable and supportable
information at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Significant management judgement and
estimation are involved in developing and using models
and the selection of inputs into the calculation of ECLs,
including:

As at 31 December 2024, gross advances to customers
amounted to HK$268,532 million, representing 50% of
total assets; and the impairment allowance for advances
to customers amounted to HK$4,191 million, representing
97% of the total impairment allowance for financial
instruments.

Because of the significance of the impairment allowance
recorded by the Group and the management judgements
and estimation involved, the impairment assessment of
loans and advances to customers is considered a key
audit matter.

segmentation of financial assets according to credit
risk characteristics;

identification of criteria for determining significant
increases in credit risk;

estimation of the probability of default, loss given
default, exposure at default; and

selection and estimation of macroeconomic factor
forecasts; and the probability weightings of forward-
looking macroeconomic scenarios.

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s credit
management and policies and procedures and
evaluated the Group’s impairment methodology,
including the management judgement over the
segmentation of portfolio, the criteria on significant
credit deterioration and the measurement approach of
expected credit losses.

We tested the design and the operating effectiveness
of the key controls over the systems and processes of
credit assessment, loan classification, stage
classification and calculation of impairment
allowances. Our control testing on the loan impairment
process included an evaluation of the governance in
respect of the use of economic scenarios and the
system interfaces of inputs or other data sources such
as internal loan gradings and probability of default.

We adopted a risk-based sampling approach for our
loan review procedures. We selected samples based
on risk characteristics of individual items including the
industry, (including loans granted to Mainland property
developers and local commercial real estate
developers and investors) and geographic location of
the operations of borrowers, internal loan grading and
past due history. We formed an independent view on
the loan staging through reviewing the selected
borrowers’ detailed information such as their financial
performance, recoverable cash flows, valuation of
collaterals and other available information.

We engaged our modelling specialists in evaluating the
impairment methodology and model enhancements.
We assessed the appropriateness of the ECL model
used by management in determining impairment
allowances, including changes made to forward-
looking macroeconomic scenarios, and evaluated the
key parameters and assumptions adopted in the
model. The key parameters and assumptions included
ECL stages, probability of default, loss given default,
exposure at default, and probability weighted economic
scenarios.
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27/F, One Taikoo Place
EY§ j( 979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

Impairment assessment of loans and advances to customers (continued)

For the impairment allowance as at 31 December
2024, we performed testing on the completeness and
accuracy of the data used in the ECL calculation by
comparing the individual loan data to the relevant data
source on a sample basis; evaluating the calculation
logic and data processing and recomputing for a
sample of management’s calculation of the impairment
allowance.

For loans and advances classified as Stage 3, we
recalculated the impairment allowance by reviewing
inputs such as future recoverable cash flows and
valuation of collateral on a sample basis. For each
sample  selected, we also assessed the
reasonableness of future recoverable cash flows and
reviewed the collateral value used where applicable.

We also assessed the adequacy of the credit risk
disclosures in the financial statements for compliance
with the accounting standards.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Key audit matter (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

Valuation of Level 3 unlisted equity shares

Refer to material accounting policies in Note 2.12, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies in Note 3.2, and disclosures on fair
values of financial instruments in Notes 5.1 and 5.2 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s financial assets
measured at fair value amounted to HK$189,790 million,
representing 35% of total assets. As at 31 December
2024, the Group’s unlisted equity shares measured at fair
value which were classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy amounted to HK$1,468 million.

To estimate the fair value of these Level 3 unlisted equity
shares, management is required to exercise significant
judgement in respect of:
e the selection of appropriate valuation techniques
and valuation models; and
e the development of assumptions and inputs into the
valuation models.

Because of the complexity and significance of
management judgements and assumptions required,
valuation of Level 3 unlisted equity shares is considered
a key audit matter.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls related to the valuation of
unlisted equity shares categorised within Level 3,
including validation and approval of valuation models
and assumptions, review and approval of valuation
results, and back-testing on valuation results and
assumptions.

In conjunction with our valuation specialists, we
performed the following substantive procedures on
unlisted equity shares categorised within Level 3 on a
sampling basis:

evaluated the appropriateness of modelling
techniques, through comparison with valuation
techniques that are commonly used in the
market;
evaluated the
comparables; and
evaluated the data inputs and assumptions
against external market data.

appropriateness  of  the

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
relating to the Level 3 unlisted equity shares in the
financial statements for compliance with the accounting
standards.
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EY§ j( 979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
EY§ j( 979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report (continued)

To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information ofthe entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Huen Chun Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2025



25 NCB #f @+ A

SElEER

B 12 7 31 HILEE

FIRHA
FIE S

BFERA

AR E S U A
R E e (S

FRRE RS
Pzl

DIA S EE R AR Z SR TR

U
Hofth SRl A U
HArgE A

REUBRERFHRTFEBRA

BB

BEBRA

eyl
TEZE LN ETEE R

HE EMEYIZE - B5h R
TFETE
PR Rk i S R

BRAR AT &R
T

SERERF]

55 41 5 265 EL 2B AL A3

TR ZAHRER T ©

For the year ended 31 December

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net trading gain

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net gain on other financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before impairment
allowances
Net charge of impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit

Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

Net loss from disposal/revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment

Net loss from redemption of subordinated
liabilities

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Consolidated Income Statement

FfaE:
Notes 2024 2023
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
22,784,089 21,765,336
(14,696,456) (13,763,809)
6 8,087,633 8,001,527
1,405,492 1,433,236
(95,821) (79,634)
7 1,309,671 1,353,602
8 378,060 436,253
440,022 380,843
9 487,588 324,860
10 17,964 16,517
10,720,938 10,513,602
11 (2,945,062) (3,141,951)
7,775,876 7,371,651
12 (3,730,687) (3,660,691)
4,045,189 3,710,960
13 (44,300) (9,040)
14 (30,473) (8,727)
(20,144) -
3,950,272 3,693,193
15 (473,030) (250,744)
3,477,242 3,442,449

The notes on pages 41 to 265 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

34



25 NCB #f @+ A

SEEEBER

#HE 12 A 31 HIEFE

BT

Hie RN EH R s R AR
IHE

AAEE R AR AL 2 E I
LR TR -
A fEE A AR L
T LW AN B
1t

P
FEEEL
IRIERRIH

FEM = EAEE
BHEERE(GR) ek
IRIEFRIR

HAg ] B T BB WS RN AT

o

AAEE R AR AL 2 E I
HIFEH TR
D afEE R AR L
HAYEH LR Z N e EE
1t
FHEHE FIIER 2R EZ(E

BN AR AHA
’\ELIQ SHIEB TR 2
WEH B

IR

PR TR TR AR

(L
L

R M TR

2R

% 41 265 I AL e s
R LAY

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2023
ARTT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 3,477,242 3,442,449

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:

Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value of equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive

income (7,329) 3,762
Premises:

Revaluation of premises (526,973) (45,485)
Deferred tax 133,840 14,027
(393,133) (31,458)

Defined benefit plan:
Actuarial (loss)/gain on remeasurement (10,258) 15,805
Deferred tax 1,693 (2,608)
(8,565) 13,197
(409,027) (14,499)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:

Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

Change in fair value of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive

income 1,373,182 1,500,641
Changes in allowance for expected credit
losses (20,539) (203,942)

Release upon disposal of debt instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive

income reclassified to income statement (487,724) (326,527)
Deferred tax (177,549) (157,922)
687,370 812,250

Change in fair value of hedging instruments
under net investment hedges 71,003 41,769
Currency translation difference (677,992) (389,114)
80,381 464,905

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax (328,646) 450,406
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,148,596 3,892,855

The notes on pages 41 to 265 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Current tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

36

bz
Notes 2024 2023
BT ST

HK$’000 HK$'000

19 58,329,167 53,833,393
19 12,037,816 2,273,269
20 12,789,186 15,838,110
21 2,915,768 1,039,044
22 264,736,699 293,904,736
23 175,192,517 174,186,800
24 417,116 407,600
25 7,933,200 9,071,270
26 1,601,463 843,464
113,841 -

32 426,595 551,106
27 4,590,922 3,199,805
541,084,290 555,148,597

17,408,901 35,581,892

28 6,203,588 5,784,773
21 765,233 1,349,761
29 394,415,572 394,389,863
30 29,684,356 28,719,835
31 15,488,671 14,622,905
90,862 704,069

32 867,315 536,314
33 5,521,900 5,468,028
470,446,398 487,157,440
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SrEEEAER () Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

FfaE:
n12 H31H As at 31 December Notes 2024 2023
WETIT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
=Y EQUITY
A Share capital 34 3,144,517 3,144,517
B Reserves 60,071,349 57,424,614
ARERTTHE R TR B A 4EEH Total equity attributable to equity holder of the
Bank 63,215,866 60,569,131
HINEARTHE Additional equity instruments 35 7,422,026 7,422,026
EARYEEE Total equity 70,637,892 67,991,157
B fE AR Total liabilities and equity 541,084,290 555,148,597

5 41 £ 265 H M EALEAE  The notes on pages 41 to 265 an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
e SRR Ty -

KESEFH 20254 3 H 20 HiEi#  Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2025 and signed on behalf of the Board by:
AN LN N ERREE

AR Sun Jiandong CAl Liu Xiaoguang

HH Director HH Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

4]
Reserves
AsnfE
Bbat AR
TR
EE Reserve for
BYMNEETR EfhEE fair value
[:7:8 Additional BAREHE Premises  through other B BB BIEER]
Share equity Capital revaluation comprehensive Regulatory  Translation Retained =t
capital _instruments reserve reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
BT T T T BT BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2024 3,144,517 7,422,026 605 6,328,982 (546,376) 2,275,475 (806,081) 50,172,009 67,991,157
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3,477,242 3,477,242
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises - (393,133) - - - (393,133)
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit plan - - - - (8,565) (8,565)
Financial instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - 680,041 - - 680,041
Change in fair value
of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges - - - 71,003 - 71,003
Currency translation
difference - (12,484) (1,370) (664,138) - (677,992)
Total comprehensive
income - - - (405,617) 678,671 - (593,135) 3,468,677 3,148,596
Release upon disposal
of premises - - - (168,819) - - - 168,819 -
Release upon disposal
of equity
instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income - - - - 66 - - (66) -
Distribution payment
for additional equity
instruments - (501,861) - - - - - - (501,861)
Transfer to/(from) retained
eamings - 501,861 - - - 203,443 - (705,304) -
At 31 December 2024 3,144,517 7,422,026 605 5,754,546 132,361 2,478,918 (1,399,216) 53,104,135 70,637,892

A CEFERARBR AR TR ) -

38

losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future



25 NCB #f @+ A

gty

#2023E1H1H

EERF
Hoftr g ma
R
FEAE R #Z
TR AR
A EEE bR A

SRS R T
=

IPRCE R T
B2 efEs(k

B IREE
ElEmctl
BITEINER TR
THNEINEATARR
R A FEF

2023412 A31 H

-

sEER (&)

?,i_:n:

- > 2023 FEN - AT ST THEWE 2,354,955,000
JE(3A7T 300,000,000) 7k A R T A AHS

—REATE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

i
Reserves
FAYIN =]
ELE AH A 4
T G A
JREE Reserve for
BYNEATH EECRRE Al fair value
A Additional A Premises through other BEA R BREEA
Share equity Capital revaluation comprehensive Regulatory Translation Retained 4HEt
capital instruments reserve reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
AT BT BT BT BT T BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2023 3,144,517 5,077,856 605 6,367,430 (1,361,493) 2,116,502 (466,621) 47,292,843 62,171,639
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3,442,449 3,442,449
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises - - - (31,458) - - - - (31,458)
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit plan - - - - - - - 13,197 13,197
Financial instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - - - 816,012 - - - 816,012
Change in fair value
of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges - - - - - - 41,769 - 41,769
Currency translation
difference - - - (6,990) (895) - (381,229) - (389,114)
Total comprehensive
income - - - (38,448) 815,117 - (339,460) 3,455,646 3,892,855
Issue of additional equity
instruments’ - 2,344,170 - - - - - - 2,344,170
Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments - (417,507) - - - - - - (417,507)
Transfer to/(from) retained
eamings - 417,507 - - - 158,973 (576,480) -
At31 December 2023 3,144,517 _ 7,422,026 605 _ 6,328,982 (546,376) _ 2275475 _ (806,081) _ 50,172,009 _ 67,991,157

% TEONAA TR - EBETK

A 10,785,000 TLALCL AR - SN
AT H AR -

% 41 £ 265 H B AL a1

e 2 AHRRER Y -

39

accounted for as a deduction from the additional equity instruments.

1. During the year of 2023, the Bank issued HK$2,354,955,000 (US$300,000,000) perpetual non-cumulative subordinated

additional tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity instruments”). Direct issuance costs of HK$10,785,000 are

The notes on pages 41 to 265 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HERERES Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FFEE
BE12 A 31 HibEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2024 2023
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RBEBIHERE Cash flows from operating activities
FrigiaCER e A Cit) Operating cash inflow/ (outflow) before
taxation 36(a) 7,737,384 (3,316,057)
BB ARG Hong Kong profits tax refund - 10,530
SRR Hong Kong profits tax paid (685,723) (94,473)
(2 REBEEIMIEH Overseas profits tax (paid) /refund (121,778) 34,215
QBB HETRA, (RE) /2% Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating
activities 6,929,883 (3,365,785)
HEEBIRESRE Cash flows from investing activities
g \IEYE Purchase of investment properties 24 (716) -
HEAWISE ~ B30F Rkt Purchase of properties, plant and equipment 25 (73,759) (243,208)
MBI EE Additions of intangible assets 26 (898,213) (326,695)
HEYZE - 23 FEF TSR Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 169,786 5,680
R SR PEE Net cash outflow from investing activities (802,902) (564,223)
MEEBIRSRE Cash flows from financing activities
BTHINEA T B Issuance of additional equity instruments - 2,344,170
YAEEINEA T HER Distribution payment for additional equity
instruments (501,861) (417,507)
BITREAR Issuance of subordinated liabilities 5,407,723 -
IR ERE Redemption of subordinated liabilities (5,447,680) -
TR EEEER Distribution payment for subordinated
liabilities (206,985) (207,394)
HHEAE Payment of lease liabilities (254,741) (270,457)
PEEE RS (RE) /RARE Net cash (outflow) /inflow from financing
activities (1,003,544) 1,448,812
e REERESEERI (&) Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 5,123,437 (2,481,196)
1A 1HZIRE REERESTEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 56,743,408 60,122,186
EREEIEIN G R EERSHEER  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
oz cash equivalents (611,354) (897,582)
’12 H 31 BZ2HE KRZEFERSLIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 36(b) 61,255,491 56,743,408

% 41 7 265 H Vi@ ASE SIS The notes on pages 41 to 265 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
R LAY
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong (hereinafter as the
“Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the
Bank hereinafter as the “Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking and related financial services.
The principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the
Bank”. The address of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong.
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BRI (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. EREBR 2.
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Material accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRS”) (HKFRSs is a collective term
which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at
fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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RsERENEE (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. EEEBCE (8) 2. Material accounting policies (continued)
2.1 4EBUEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) 2024 =1 5 1 HiE (a) Amendments that are relevant to the Group and initially adopted for the first
BN ESTERERAE time for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2024
Rz EA L EAERRE
a
paayipla: paka o
Applicable for
=) N financial years
Amendments/ Content beginning on/after
AT 1 92 (23T RENEFEREN &R AR B &R 2024 1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Current or Non-current Liabilities and Non- 1 January 2024
current Liabilities with Covenants
FIB S AR 16 5F 2 (85T ErHbrHEA K 2024 1H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
EAEGTEASE 7 AT A B IREER  EERE T 202418 1H
BT 9RZET
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
EETERFEWE - 8R40 The adoption of the amendments does not have a material impact on the Group’s
HEETT A H AL financial statements.
A 15 o R AR B K
7L o
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BN (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. HEEHEE (8) 2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEELEAE (8D

(b) EHMFEAEEHN
B RBBMEEB R
R 2024 FERATEREN
R RABRT

BATN EL A A 2 A8 Rl B
BaTHt 2025 42 1 1
H#E 8 UL BB R &
SRS AR -

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are relevant to the Group but not yet

mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2024

The following standards and amendments have been issued and are mandatorily
effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2025:

#HI 85T

Standards/Amendments

RE
Content

ERBEAZERE
Applicable for
financial years
beginning on/after

R ETEAIGE 9 9E BB A
BTS2 EET
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

B TR G R 2 EET

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of

Financial Instruments

2026 21 A1 H

1 January 2026

BRI T R R 18 5%
HKFRS 18

A RY A

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

2027 FE1 A1 H
1 January 2027

o BV BEMEENFEI
SR I s S e
BTRZET TR
BRI EZE
5] oo T B LER
FIFR BT EE T/
PEA AR
SEREEER YR
DR B E R
& R TR Sl
B TRER - IR
ERTIRS AT —TH &S
BUARETALL FeaT 5580
T TR R
HY R AR R R E
RIFRIIEILT » RS
H Z AT T4% L HERD.

M B S LERIEE T
SR ERTEORMIEH Y
HRIEE R LA EE
{Eat A At 4= R~
TR EARA R
TR R R TR A

* Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7, “Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments”. The amendments to HKFRS 9 provide

clarification regarding the classification of financial assets with contingent features

and the requirements for classifying financial assets with non-recourse features and

contractually linked instruments. The amendments also introduce an accounting

policy option for entities to derecognise financial liabilities that are settled through

an electronic payment system before settlement date if specified criteria are met.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to provide additional disclosure

regarding investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income and financial instruments with contingent features.

44



25 NCB #f @+ A

MBsEeRitE (&)
2. EEEEER (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEELEAE (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EHMFEAEEHN

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are relevant to the Group but not yet

(B N S o e e A 3 B mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2024
R 2024 FELRRTEREN (continued)

ZHEARAERT (8D

PER(EET 202651 H
1H 22 R PRI EE
2 AR A 2 H s
TR FEE R ATAE
5 S A B BRI BE R
ERIEEN T EZE
5] - ALEEIERHE R
IERAEFTHIR 2 -

A I s R A
1855} T AR T A
WEE - BB ERE
AERNFE 185 E HLAE
BEEHERESE T
BRI 52027
F1HIHSRZ % FEE
A 15 9 o S0 ] A 5
Hearie Fa - dr
A5 Az &g
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The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026 with earlier application of either all the amendments at the same time or only
the amendments related to the classification of financial assets is permitted. The
Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the adoption of the amendments.

HKFRS 18, “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”. HKFRS 18
supersedes HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted. The
new standard aims to improve entities’ reporting of financial performance and give
investors a better basis for analysing and comparing entities by introducing
presentation of new defined subtotals in the income statement, disclosures about
management-defined performance measures, and enhanced requirements for
grouping of information. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 18.
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all
of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating decision maker of the
Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating segments.
Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining
operating segment performance.

2.4 sMEEmE 2.4 Foreign currency translation
KEEZDHENTGRFE Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
FriH B & RER T using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
E@Jiﬁgfiﬁs A E G “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
= (TIHREENE ) - ALh dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.
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prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedge or qualifying net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount
of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

47



25 NCB #f @+ A

MR (&)

2. EEEEER (8

2.4 sNEEmE (8

BN ERREMERE » KR
ZEEVIED R E
IS TRAY— B3 - IR B
EREE(PIILIA R ES
bt A E A 4 T W 2 2 P
FERCEORY S G B
HEHA 2SN -

A AP DL 7
IHRE SISO 3 SRR
EBSRL DAT H7 2e
B -
- HEE R A
A2 TR
AR T
W R
B B
RS eI
S R 2 BT

A
e

A B BB R - IR
HNE P 3E 2 TFHE ~ fEROR
HA e FE Ry B I A
RS TR ES A
AT YIA AL s
By Bat P R Rk -
B HEZI NS SR A
IEAMNES ST BRI By
B SRR — BT
A7 F R o EERT o S U

2.5 $IESRT B R test

OB e TADITAR S
EFEFHEE HEYA e
TTHI9aNERS M6 LLAN fo (e
TR R - DA E SR
55 _ERYAN B T 5
HfS  SfERITHITHISR
5 SR E A
ELFEEERER A S A ~
FEEEBA (M) - &
A TAE R IEER - TR SR
TR REE &0

EREER > AIES A&

fE -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

24

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are included in other
comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

» assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end of the reporting
period;
» income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the translation reserve in equity
through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in the translation reserve. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to in the income statement, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value
is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.

For derivative instruments being designated as hedging instrument in an effective hedge,
the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risk, the hedge
ratio and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. These criteria should be met before
a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under hedge accounting. Hedge accounting
may become ineffective if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose economic
relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks that dominates the
fair value change of the hedging instruments or the hedged items.
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2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as effective fair
value hedges are recognised in the income statement, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

For fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt instruments carried
at fair value through other comprehensive income, changes in fair value are recorded in
the income statement whilst hedge accounting is in place. When the hedge relationship
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated for reasons other than
derecognition, the cumulative effective hedged portion of fair value change recognised
in the income statements are amortised by the effective interest method back to the
revaluation reserve. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised cumulative
effective hedged portion of fair value change recognised in the income statement are
reclassified to revaluation reserve immediately.

(b) Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Accumulated gains and
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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2.7

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest income or
interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate debt securities are disclosed
on a net basis together with net interest income/expense arising from the hedging
instrument such as interest rate swap.

For financial assets under stage 3, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial
assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised on the written down value using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense
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2.8

(continued)

Fee income from services are recognized over time at a fixed or variable price on a
systematic basis over the life of the agreement when the contract requires services to be
provided over time such as account service and credit card fees, or recognized at a point
in time under transaction-based arrangements when service has been fully provided to
the customer such as broking services and loan syndication arrangement.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition and subsequently measured
financial assets as: (i) at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), (ii) at amortised cost
(“AC”) or (iii) at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or the
election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Except
for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, all transaction costs of
financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has three sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception, and financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Afinancial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A financial asset can be designated at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets criterion
set out below, and is so designated by the Management:

+ eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases;

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly to
the income statement, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets are reported in net trading
gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

(2) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and (i) the
contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. They
are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowances for impairment losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation of
premium or discount is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised
in the income statement. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets
are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling, and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially recorded
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investments are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest
income which includes the amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using the
effective interest method and is recognised in the income statement.

For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to
recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses in other comprehensive
income without subsequent reclassification of fair value gains or losses to the income
statement even upon disposal (non-recycling). Dividends on equity instruments classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

The treatment of translation differences on fair value through other comprehensive
income securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.
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The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: (i) trading
liabilities, (ii) financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, (iii) deposits,
debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other
liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at fair
value, and in the case of financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, plus or
minus transaction costs.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability, including derivatives, is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is measured at fair value
and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it is so
designated at inception. A financial liability is so designated if it meets one of the following
criteria:

eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases;

applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is provided
internally on that basis to the Management; or

55



25 NCB #f @+ A

BRI (8
2. EEEEER (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

29 LRiEME (8

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) REBL L EEELET

ABwZ B E
(&

© EE T S kR
ALTE SR TEAYEH
SR - HiE kiR
AP RS TEAZE
R A EIREEL
HARE -

FUE R s LB LR AR
i Z A LA S ET]
IR ARMEZ EEIFTEARY
W 2 SIS TR RE I W s
BT R E S5 R kRE
AR REELERETA
R UET =Y SRR SIES
RIS Ray SN tRea
B BRI L ksl
FRUER RN Eat s
FiA & R EEbmiELE 2
W 7 B TR TE SR A U
xA -

(3) 7l ~ ERTEFZE S
RiF#ae  GHBEAR
A AE
PR 8 Ry S S MR
FRE Ry U EEALET AR
T L BRER YN R0 B
STRERE I R 1R
{H AR R HL A 5 DABE
ERCASZIER - SRR 5
& 2 HCRRRIE [ {5 (LAY
ZE (WA FIREEA
BUER AR AU 2 P i

A
e

210 BB R AR RNE

R

MHBHEIRGRIEREA
FEAE BRI UB AR BEIR 2
FiA NBEE A Z R
T & &R T 25K
Zff > TR AR A MBI
MR ZARRAIFRE IR -

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

» relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement, except for fair value changes arising from own credit risks are recognised as
other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified to the retained earnings upon
derecognition, unless such would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in the
income statement, then all gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in
the income statement.

(3) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities,
and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and
other liabilities, other than those classified as trading liabilities or designated at fair value
through profit or loss are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period using the effective interest method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder
and the debtor.
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Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation
recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the
liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. These commitments are in the scope of the expected credit losses
requirements as set out in Note 2.14.

The expected credit losses provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments are
reported under “other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements.
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Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at FVPL, at FVOCI and
AC are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells
the assets. Loans and advances and other financial assets are recognised when cash is
advanced to the counterparty. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the
extent of its continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no
retained control. If the contractual cashflow of FVOCI or AC financial instruments are
renegotiated or modified, the modified contractual cashflow should be discounted using
the original effective interest rate, and compared with the original amortised cost before
impairment. If the difference is material, the original financial instrument should be
derecognised and then re-recognised with the present value aforementioned. Otherwise,
the difference is adjusted to the original carrying value and accounted for in the profit or
loss.
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determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are referred
to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-
sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a
resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash received
from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements
are not derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income. Reverse repos or securities borrowing
are initially recorded in the balance sheet as Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the
counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference between sale and
repurchase price is recognised as interest income or interest expense over the life of the
agreements using the effective interest method.
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The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of the
fair value of financial instruments, where appropriate, includes using on the residual of
the net offsetting risk position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in
cases the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities according to
their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group measures the fair value of these
groups of financial instruments on a net basis, the underlying financial assets and
financial liabilities are separately presented in the financial statements unless the
offsetting criterias are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metals are
initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or
losses on precious metals are included in net trading gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECLs”) on the
following items:
financial assets measured at amortised cost;

debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative financial assets,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the loan commitment draws down on the
loan/the beneficiary of the financial guarantee claims on the financial guarantee and (ii)
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/the financial
guarantee is claimed.
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The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of discounting is material.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date; or

lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1
when those financial instruments are initially recognised; and to recognise lifetime
expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there has been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for credit-
impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred and
interest will then be accrued net of the impairment amount of the respective Stage 3
financial assets.
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Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in income statement. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in
debt securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve.

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage
3), in which case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
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When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
impairment losses. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have
been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. The assets written off
are still subject to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference in the terms are
no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans.

2.15 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on which
properties are situated) that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as
investment properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified as
investment properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements.
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Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The work in progress item is stated at
fair value. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised as a revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property,
Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous revaluation loss
or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement up to the amount
previously debited.
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Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on which
properties are situated) are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are shown
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external independent
valuers less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. In the intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount of
premises, by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments
are made when there has been a material change.

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold land are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis
of its respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises revaluation
reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred from the
premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

+ Properties
Over the life of government land leases
+ Plant and equipment
2 to 15 years
Right-of-use assets
Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of each
reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on
date of disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income statement.

2.17 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance owned
and controlled by the Group, mainly computer application software. Intangible assets are
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
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Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

+ Capitalised computer application software

3 to 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised
in the income statement on the date of disposal.

2.18 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use over the contract
period.

(1) As a lessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

69



25 NCB #f @+ A

BRI (8
2. EEEEER (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

218 7/HE (&)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(1) 1TEBAEMA (H#)
EHEGRWEE LR H
HEAGLHYNHEEN
FHIARASR SR > (BEE
PHBRERE & BT B R SR
FIT 22 Fe& R 480 T 400 ] A9 £
FO - LHEERTAINE
MR > BUNZ FE R REB
FRHEERT - AR
FAFH S B 4A H B 8 A
BT AR, 1E R4
JATTERD B -

B I RE B A R Y (0 B
5 35 (A B B A BT AE A
BEEEEHEGHESR
AR TR BB -

RTINS % - HE A
DlerpcAst & FIESH
e UEIEH AT -

THE & R EE( B R T
SRR FIREEEE  ORIAIT
DlpkeAsTE - M ReA AT
HaMRGEE i1 B
ERiam HHE RN ZATE
AV B R R A E
T Ak - e B REE
T SRR RS E
EEERUE R S B AR
B BRI E s
FERHRE 2 2 FIRYSRAE ~ 3,
B T W LAY TR B h oA
H o BRI YIRS IR
HESN (TR E RS
kAR Rt 88 R s E
AR WNHE AEY
BRI R AR
- HEREYHEERNE
MfER S LS e fEE
4
- BEECEMETEAE A
EYTH & b R S A
BIEA T EREYIEE
R ESE
i fERE -

(1) As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments payable over the lease term, after taking into account payments
to be made in the optional period if the extension option is reasonably certain to be
exercised, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the income statement.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses except for the following types of right-of-use asset:

right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are carried at fair
value; and

right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and buildings that do not meet the

definition of investment property where the Group is the registered owner of the
leasehold interest are carried at revalued amount.
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(1) As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in income statement if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘Properties, plant and equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in
“Other accounts and provisions”.

(2) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is
a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets
to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions, short-
term bills and notes classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made.

2.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group
to the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate from
those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leaves are
non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except
for unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.
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(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plan, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in income statement at the earlier of:

+ the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

- the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
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(4) Defined benefit plan (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability.
The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
“interest expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement by
function:

- service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses
on curtailments and non-routine settlements

+ net interest expense.

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions, depreciation
of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including at fair value
through other comprehensive income securities and premises. However, the deferred
income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred income tax liabilities, except for temporary differences arising from undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income and revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or
charged to other comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income
statement together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property is determined
based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.
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Collateral assets for loans and advances are repossessed by the Group when the
borrowers are unable to service their repayments. When the Group has acquired access
or control of the collateral assets, repossessed assets are measured at amortised cost
less allowances for impairment losses and are reported under separate accounts from
loans and advances.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to
changes in essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the key assumptions or other
estimation uncertainties will be presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible
that actual results may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all categories of
financial assets (except for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss) requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk and in the event of default and when assets are credit-
impaired. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting
judgements and estimates include:

- The Group’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual
grades.

- The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL
basis and the qualitative assessment.

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective
basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets (continued)

- Development of ECL models, including the determination of macroeconomic
scenarios and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

- Forward-looking macroeconomic factor forecasts maintain a consistent Group’s view
on future macroeconomic environment.

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability
weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

The Group's stage 3 ECL calculations are based on the estimation of recoverable future
cash flows of stage 3 advances to customers on an individual basis.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

3.2 Fair values of derivative financial instruments and other financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments and other financial instruments that are
not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions
available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk management systems widely used
by the industry such as option pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use
observable data. In addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as
credit risk are not considered in the valuation models. Management judgement and
estimates are required for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions
and modeling techniques. Further details will be discussed in Note 5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax credits and the possibility to
recover such deferred tax assets recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and processes
for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensure various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, evaluate, monitor,
report, and control various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and
procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business
strategies. Various groups of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk
management.

The Board of Directors is the highest decision-making authority of the Group and has the
ultimate responsibility for risk management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees,
has the primary responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and risk
appetite, establishing a sound risk culture and risk management system to implement these
strategies.

81



25 NCB #f @+ A

BRI (8
4. RUEREE (&)

SREREESERE (8)

EBEHEEE G RHEEYN
UNHENEEY AR
AREEEN SRR B2 it
/Em)z K B & FRBR
WEEHPT  MEEGE
mﬂwaﬁm%*% HfE
B E = EEEAER (S
HHEMLT BgNEEEE
- WEREETEE G
RSP EKIMERESS
oA - TR B R T
*%?ﬁ EREEE S
JE\b P P B A AN SR T
%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ EI RS S a B
AbR BB R > R 2
i 5 3 S ML T R 2 Y L
b R FHILEE ARV AE R - W0t
By % 2 £ [ 1 & A R\ B 5T
b~ EZEGHIESY
JRE T P 0 2 2 T 4 e

==
=He

EEENZEGATES
G R N E AR
FORT K5 BE AR
o RIS SR TR
TAE > SEE It TAEE
IEI’?HF?EE@?E HEFTHE
- HEATHMEEES
g ﬁ)ﬂiﬁﬁﬂ’\]ﬂ b B EE SR K
B BRI - fEfRE
R AR B A R T

A B A E FAr 2 A HA
JERY R B R A - SR
fir 2 JE b i B 28— B B
& o i U B B A R
R EAL > B SRS
HYHEEM > DU &
RS 3 5 5 L A B I ST
2 -

AREERIL T BTN EE
HIER - BRERILER I
THITHIARSRZERS - DIRREE
BHEER B EPEBR -
&F?E&KE%E o M N PR
2 78 53 s o B 2 e J 1T
PASE RS HEE - [E]IF (A
NEENEES L AEE
N A PRI

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, reviewing and
approving high-level risk management policies and monitoring their implementation,
recommending senior risk management organisational framework to the Board, including
credit approval authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit approval for the Credit
Approval Committee. The Risk Management Committee would refer any specific transaction
to the Board if it is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Risk
Management Committee, from the risk management viewpoint, assesses whether incentives
created by the remuneration system are aligned with the risk culture and risk appetite, and
whether remuneration awards appropriately reflect the level of risk-taking and consequences.
It also assists in fostering a strong risk culture within the Group. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control system.

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for reviewing or approving credit business and
credit management related matters within the authorisation granted by the Board of Directors,
monitoring the credit activities of the Group and reporting to the Risk Management Committee
regularly. The Chief Executive is responsible for organising and implementing the risk
management strategies and objectives established by the Board of Directors, managing
various risks and ensuring significant risk exposures are properly managed.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent from
the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of risks.
Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating
various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including establishment of
an organisational structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

“Products” encompasses the products and services provided to customers through various
channels.

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on
product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management, respective
product management units are responsible for formulating business and product development
plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic development
unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Units that are
responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc. are accountable for risk
assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units work closely with
relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the various risks of new products. Risk
evaluating units conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and the
corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched upon completion
of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our customers. All new treasury
products require approval before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 58 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility
for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management committee authorised by
the Chief Executive, is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk management
strategies as well as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the
first line of defence. The risk management units, which are independent from the business
units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have the primary
responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring,
evaluating, monitoring, reporting and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks
and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures. They report directly to the Chief Risk Officer, Credit and Loans
Management Committee, Chief Executive, Credit Approval Committee and Risk
Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets up independent risk
monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits management information and reports
to the Bank on a regular basis.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The Board of Directors
delegates credit approval authority to the Credit Approval Committee and the Chief
Executive. Based on management needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the
credit-related subordinates or committee within the limit authorised by the Board of Directors.
The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature,
internal rating, the level of transaction risk, and the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously revising
its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit applications
will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before
approval, with exceptions given to designated advances which satisfy certain conditions.
After funding being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly) reviewed by
designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business units. Obligor
ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default)
are assigned to credit applications for non-retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail
internal rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans, personal loans, etc.
Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to
support credit approval.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories
with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(EERRE R B (&) Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
(BTSRRI T Debt securities and derivatives
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For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit ratings,
assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer/security issuer
basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the investment. For derivatives,
the Group sets customer limits to manage the credit risk involved and follows the same
approval and control processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring and stop-
loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
equities is made in the failure of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities.
Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 58 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

BERGREREMtmSEEE
363

AL EHESE A i (E R
EHAYE AR EHEER
BUREFF - BAREIT Shr
AR EEAR) B
FREGEEESR - fHEdTI0
EE B R RIS ALE
AER B E B (A
(E1E - WA S
RAFMEE R R BRI TR
JHA (R (B 38R e 5
o VERRASEE EHH
fn > ASEE ESEIT IR
iR RNy R Sk
HEATEE - NFE - T
A B ORRR Il DUAS G ]
TERSE—ZamA

B s = FH R HHEIRAY
Bk AR EE R OR
AHIABGIRN ~ (5 848k
K EEIRES] -

2024 12 531 H >

AEEE R A (A eET

A ERRARELIEIL T H

B RN ZEN S
(2023 4« 4iE) ©

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. If necessary, collateral is
insured with the Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2023: Nil).
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 58 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model is introduced in compliance with
HKFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL for financial instrument held at amortized cost
and fair value through other comprehensive income. Under HKFRS 9, ECL is assessed
in three stages and the financial assets and commitments are classified in one of the three
stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon origination and the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount up to 12-month ECL;

Stage 2: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon origination but the credit
risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instrument is credit-impaired, with one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred, the loss allowance is also measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 58 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under internal models where feasible
and available to assess ECL. For the portfolios without models, all other reasonable and
supportable information such as historical information, relevant loss experience or proxies
are utilized. The measurement of ECL is the product of the financial instrument’s
probability of default (“PD”), loss given default (“LGD”) and exposures at default (‘EAD”)
discounted at the effective interest rate to the reporting date.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL
measurement to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Base case” scenario
represents a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred to as “Upside”
scenario and “Downside” scenario, represent less likely outcomes which are more
optimistic or more pessimistic compared to Base case scenario.

The Base case scenario, Upside scenario and Downside scenario are made reference to
macroeconomics forecast provided by internal economic research unit.

91



25 NCB #f @+ A

BRI (8
4. RUEREE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 58 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The macroeconomic factors for the major operating countries/regions such as: HK GDP
growth rate, HK Inflation, HK unemployment rate, HK Property price growth, China GDP
growth rate, China Inflation and China Property price growth are applied in the economic
scenarios. These macroeconomic factors are considered to be important to the Group’s
ECL in statistical analysis and business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view of the economic
environment, which implements the Group’s prudent and consistent credit strategy of
ensuring the adequacy of impairment allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the
Base case scenario to reflect the most likely outcome and a lower probability is assigned
to the Upside and Downside scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes. The probabilities
assigned are reviewed each quarter. As of December 2024, the probability weight of the
Group’s Base case scenario is higher than the sum of probability weight of Upside and
Downside scenarios.

The Group enhanced the parameters of the PD, LGD based on the results of model re-
examination. After calculation, the relevant model parameter changes have no significant
impact on ECL. Relevant model parameter changes have been approved by the Credit &
Loans Management Committee.

The ECL methodology has been validated by independent Model Validation Unit and
approved by the Risk Management Committee. The Management is responsible to review
model performance and changes in ECL.
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

FEHEREBELNHES Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

x= (8

AKEHEBR G TE G The core macroeconomic factor used by the Group to assess ECL:

FH 5 2K 1 oA 7 R 4

R :
TEERRZER TR EAREIE R TTER
Macroeconomic Factor Upside scenario Base case scenario Downside scenario
2025 FEEBAMA EREN &

2.31% 1.97% 1.46%

2025 Hong Kong GDP Growth ° ° °

T (E R RATET R 2
RBEOR AR R R E
SATRE - SRR DR
B R B OB R R AT
ST B DA R DA =
TITHES RS EETT
{EFRK Tt - REER
122 B X A ) £ 2 UG
B R P {6 P ) R 4K
TR TR SR IR SR
KO TER

ik B & BB HF M
HifERA D A B
& #1 H FE R A
RIRIER] - MrE R
B REEHA T
WERIER A B8
W B AT B A R
SHERT - IR
M = B B T E
PR IILERES - AITHAT
5 MRK T A A A
BE > REERHEREER
TP T -

#2024 £12 531 B>
H B%H AR NI A

BN RESE TITE
B Gt AT ED
TEHA(E F 4R R & 8
1.32%; %5 5% IR
RERBFIEREEZE
FITEE - AR
0.70% -

The calculation of ECL is affected by macroeconomic factors and economic scenarios. If
more pessimistic macroeconomic factors are applied in ECL assessment or a higher
probability weight is assigned to the Downside scenario, it would result in an increase in
ECL.The Group reviews the macroeconomic factors used in the ECL model and the
probability weight of economic scenarios on a quarterly basis according to the established
mechanism.

RMC is responsible for approving ECL methodology and the Management is responsible
for the ECL model implementation. Basel Management and Credit Management are
responsible for the maintenance of ECL methodology including models review and
parameters update on a regular basis. Independent Model Validation Team is responsible
for the annual validation of ECL models. If there is any change in ECL methodology, the
Group will follow the proper approval process.

As at 31 December 2024, the ECL under statistical approach will be increased by 1.32%
if 5% of the probability weight is shifted from Base case scenario to Downside scenario;
and will be decreased by 0.70% if 5% of the probability weight is shifted from Base case
scenario to Upside scenario.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

Summary of credit risk by stage distribution at 31 December 2024 is, as follows:

2024
M A B
Gross carrying amount/Risk exposure
B E BT
BHA SRR K
H4SER HANRIE SRGE 2 HMEE  MERER ERKARIE &5
Balances and
placements
with banks
and other Advances
financial and other Financial Other  Financial Loan
institutions accounts investments assets guarantees commitments Total
ABRETIT A¥TIT BT BETRT BETT ATt BETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
69,887,705 252,916,184 175,192,573 1,790,333 49,964,993 172,077,205 721,828,993
- 8,447,652 - 2,213 215,743 303,696 8,969,304
- 7,563,594 - 17,228 5,840 2 7,586,664
69,887,705 268,927,430 175,192,573 1,809,774 50,186,576 172,380,903 738,384,961
2023
WA R i
Gross carrying amount/Risk exposure
B ERSRA T
e At Rt BRI
Y4 R HoAh R eEMEE  HMEE  MSER ERURE HHER
Balances and
placements
with banks
and other Advances
financial and other Financial Other Financial Loan
institutions accounts investments assets guarantees commitments Total
BT AT BT EETT OBETT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
55,315,175 280,838,680 174,161,917 2,840,114 54,091,488 149,050,077 716,297,451
216,415 11,046,315 - 255 5,136 1,269,176 12,537,297
- 6,919,550 - 5,424 5,840 4,341 6,935,155

55,531,590 298,804,545 174,161,917

2,845,793 54,102,464 150,323,594 735,769,903
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 58 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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The internal rating and PD estimation process

The Group leverages the internal rating models where possible, with adjustments to
incorporate forward looking information and the HKFRS 9 stage classification of the
exposure to determine the PDs for HKFRS 9 ECL calculations. This is repeated for each
economic scenario as appropriate. The Group uses various internal rating models for its
key portfolios in which its wholesale customers or retail accounts are rated or assigned to
specific internal grades or risk pools. The internal rating models incorporate both
qualitative and quantitative information and, in addition to information specific to the
borrower, utilise supplemental information such as borrower’s / account’s behaviour.

Wholesale lending
For wholesale lending, the repayment ability of borrowers are assessed by designated

divisions of the Group. The credit risk assessment is based on a credit rating model that
takes into account various financial information and qualitative information (such as
management quality, industry risks, group connection, negative warning signals).

Retail lending
Retail lending comprises personal loans, overdrafts and retail mortgages. These products

along with and some of the less complex small business lending are rated by automated
scorecards or statistical PD models.
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4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(A) EERKERE (A) Credit exposures
REH” FEEEH The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
fg R B A AT AR without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-
A S A = balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
BRI A R amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
¥ - WNEEAEE maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are called
NEE @ EEER upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum exposure
RS A AR to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

1B - BB B R
EE{EEEBRER
HAEIR AN ZDRALEE
R ENEHRE
S - WINERURIE
R HAE &R A
& > feE E A
RS RKER &
% o

DU B i s The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
HAth = E S5 effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

B R HE AR &

HEREENE SR

fE

TE SR T Fe LA Rk Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
TEIY4EER B e HIfF T

ZEENT 5T Collateral is generally not sought on these exposures in consideration of the
B —fEreEitE counterparty nature. However, other mitigation will be taken.

AR - 2

S PR HUEA R 4R

Hii -

An(EE L AEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments
A A R A R

==

— N AR S Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
R -
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERER (8
(A) EERERE (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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in o HREFERZ
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JAEE 266 & 267 H -
WA AR IEZE
S E R MEE BT
fifsk 37 » A TR
BRIV RN 2
ek WEFHIEE
ER T ARG
AP HA (S
YRR EEME ik 2024 £E
12 7 31 H - AHigH
P BN AR
7RI £55.01% (2023
F17.03%) o

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (‘ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual framework
under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative transactions are
conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included to form part of the Schedule
to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, margin is passed from one counterparty
to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 96. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed
on pages 266 to 267. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 37. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity
to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates.
For contingent liabilities and commitments, 5.01% (2023: 7.03%) was covered by
collateral as at 31 December 2024.
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41 FEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) &SR HAMMRIE (B) Gross advances and other accounts
FE BB E 2 7 2 Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised
M S AR R HAth iR TE by product type as follows:
o 7 L R A A0
T
2024 2023
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
HFEERK Advances to customers
EA Personal
- Htg - Mortgages 21,982,934 25,043,546
- ERF - Credit cards 107,639 122,571
- HAth - Others 24,247,617 25,700,703
AH] Corporate
- PHEEK - Commercial loans 213,729,955 239,255,459
- BoRE - Trade finance 8,463,355 8,184,039
268,531,500 298,306,318
B o g Trade bills 395,930 341,313
ﬁﬁ'ﬁ T HoAth < AR Advances to banks and other financial
N institutions - 156,914
268,927,430 298,804,545
HHHEREH 2 & Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the principal
o BEHASEF R or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
B R A A EE instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
AFIE#EH 50 - 28 remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
EMTIHERZ & when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
o FEH P HA not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
R A S A ARAE continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.

=2 QS E i -
JHRIHIE B 2 S&5CE
BRI RN R
A BRI
FERER > RE—
HEER AT A
ZHEAEEGRIRER > IR
S pa e -
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8
(B) #EER R HANMRTE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
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Advances are credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows have occurred. Credit-impaired advances
are classified as Stage 3. Evidence that a financial instrument is credit-impaired
include observable data about the following events:

Overdue for more than 90 days;

An event of default occurs, including the debtor's default in arrears of principal and
interest;

The bond issuer or borrower experiences significant financial difficulties;

The borrower encounters financial difficulties, and due to economic or legal reasons,
the Bank provides the borrower with preferential terms that lenders would not
consider under normal circumstances;

The borrower/bond issuer may go bankrupt or undergo other debt restructuring; and

The active market for the asset disappears due to financial difficulties;

Advances classified as Stage 3 may not necessarily result in impairment loss where
the advances are fully collateralised.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Advances that were neither overdue nor credit-impaired are analysed by internal

credit grade as follows:

2024
TEWE  EEMUT
=3 Special Substandard 4t
Pass mention or below Total
A¥TRT  E¥TT BT T AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 21,484,206 185,177 - 21,669,383
- Credit cards 105,873 495 - 106,368
- Others 23,745,211 53,687 - 23,798,898
Corporate
- Commercial loans 199,318,545 7,068,017 - 206,386,562
- Trade finance 8,297,563 99,785 - 8,397,348
252,951,398 7,407,161 - 260,358,559
Trade bills 395,930 - - 395,930
253,347,328 7,407,161 - 260,754,489
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired (continued)

2023
TERE  RBELLT
“tg Special Substandard 4=t
Pass mention or below Total
AT ARTIT ARTIT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 24,509,492 117,267 - 24,626,759
- Credit cards 121,229 33 - 121,262
- Others 24,937,809 76,902 - 25,014,711
Corporate
- Commercial loans 221,397,786 9,425,630 - 230,823,416
- Trade finance 7,944,223 157,059 - 8,101,282
278,910,539 9,776,891 - 288,687,430
Trade bills 341,313 - - 341,313
Advances to banks and
other financial
institutions 156,914 - - 156,914
279,408,766 9,776,891 - 289,185,657
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not credit-impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not credit-impaired is analysed as

(&)
(b) BHAREHRE
=14
KA AR FR
BEERGTN
T
BPERK Advances to customers
EA Personal
- Hfg - Mortgages
- EAF - Credit cards
- HA - Others
A H] Corporate
- BEERK - Commercial loans
- BORE - Trade Finance

follows:
2024
B
3{EA
EAREE B
6 {EA 6 {EA
A 3 EA Overdue BB
EEY for 148
Overdue six months Overdue IEH
for or less for one Hig14£
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one a=t
or less months six months year Total
BT BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
113,078 - - - 113,078
560 - - - 560
265,652 - - - 265,652
217,132 - - - 217,132
12,925 - - - 12,925
609,347 - - - 609,347
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(&
(b) HHAR{EFARE
g% (&)
PR Advances to customers
PN Personal
- 15 - Mortgages
- EAF - Credit cards
- Hth - Others
NG| Corporate
- PHEEK - Commercial loans
- BoRE - Trade Finance

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not credit-impaired (continued)

2023
pitlieehil
3{EH
(EEN=ic] pitlieehil
6 & 6 &
w3 {EH Overdue BN
EJYNN for 14
Overdue six months Overdue EIHA
for or less for one i 14
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one 4=
or less months six months year Total
BT BT BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
299,287 - - - 299,287
690 - - - 690
318,368 - - - 318,368
2,048,538 - - - 2,048,538
32,455 - - - 32,455
2,699,338 - - - 2,699,338
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Impairment allowances -
Stage 3

Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such

advances to customers

Covered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to

customers

104

2024 2023
B AR
A EE
GEER Market YRR Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT BT T ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
200,473 318,513 117,500 203,037
711 - 619 -
183,067 274,268 367,624 122,547
7,126,261 4,384,723 6,383,505 1,454,584
53,082 41,551 50,302 24,545
7,563,594 5,019,055 6,919,550 1,804,713
3,056,345 3,081,745
2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
5,019,055 1,804,713
3,273,803 1,337,764
4,289,791 5,581,786
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERRE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BEzE HAMREE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
(c) BEESZ (&) (c) Impaired advances (continued)
TAEERFCEE The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
Bl &Rk > R collateral in respect of such advances.
1
infEE -
#2024 £ 12 A As at 31 December 2024, there were no impaired trade bills and advances to
31 H @A RHE banks and other financial institutions (2023: Nil).
2 5 R
17 B FAth 5 F i
HEERK(2023 £
fie) o
Fi 72 73 B ECRUE Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
2B FERDN
Wr e
2024 2023
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FrESHEUREZ Gross classified or impaired advances to
Eg ey S customers 7,563,594 6,919,550
FrESHEUREZ Gross classified or impaired advances to
B AR customers as a percentage of gross
AL advances to customers
B 2.82% 2.32%
=P R E S Impairment allowances - Stage 3
4 3,056,345 3,081,745
¥ 7€ o7 B BCRVE Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
ZEFPEHUETE classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
AR EEERE loan quality, or classified as Stage 3.

®EoBN TR
&~ TR
TR B =
P& BRI EERK -
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed

as follows:

Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:

- six months or
less but over
three months

- one year or less
but over six
months

- over one year

Advances overdue
for over three
months

Impairment
allowances made
in respect of such
advances

- Stage 3

106

2024 2023
5% F SRR 75 5 SRR
Btk =pale
% of gross % of gross
&%R advances to £5E advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
719,852 0.27% 1,432,253 0.48%
3,042,762 1.13% 2,865,185 0.96%
2,072,797 0.77% 1,078,367 0.36%
5,835,411 217% 5,375,805 1.80%
2,119,371 2,632,047
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 58 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BEzE HAMREE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
(d) #HA#EE 3B (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZEZ (8
2024 2023
BT ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
fy Alb = v ilet] Current market value of collateral held
BENEPER against the covered portion of such
S TE advances to customers 4,605,281 1,667,562
AR R EE Covered portion of such advances to
T HEPE customers 3,029,122 1,231,090
A iE=EiRiirTY Uncovered portion of such advances to
BIHRFER customers 2,806,289 4,144,715
W EFECREE Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
G D s ) charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
HEAERERET corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
HYPE P& FE s 2
FAEEET -~ EA
BEFHETHESE
HHGYIE -
A 2024 & 12 H As at 31 December 2024, there were no trade bills and advances to banks and
31 H @5 wmihE other financial institutions overdue for more than three months (2023: Nil).
w3 EHZEHE
B R R T R A
Rl &k (2023
o) e
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BEzE HAMREE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
(e) TELHALK (e) Rescheduled advances
2024 2023
liEday= et | 1 BRI
Btk Bkt
% of gross % of gross
&5 advances to x| advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEAR P EZCF4E  Rescheduled advances
(2R & to customers net of
TigHAEEE 3 (& amounts included in
ZEER ) BT “Advances overdue for
more than three
months” 77,764 0.03% 16,023 0.01%
KEHE TS Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
ZEERBWEH renegotiated between the bank and borrowers because of deterioration in the
ol e A EA financial position of the borrower or of the inability of the borrower to meet the
B MEEERTT original repayment schedule, and the revised repayment terms, either of interest
B2 P T [E B or the repayment period, are “non-commercial” to the Group. Rescheduled
R R advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the
2 E3 o % revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three
T EEETHYE months”.
AR (GRS
ECRFGHIR)BIE
PEENE - (BT E
HEtElie &K E
SH & Fan e

i 3 g Al
BEE T @i
3 H 2 &R
7 e
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8

(B) SHEKFHARE
&
() EEEREPE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

2 b 1 1 4k 4 B Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
L3 PR
THIRNEE&E The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
TRl FE T Sy locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an
M 2R B 58 advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
FZAHEH WE customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
B e Jo B L RS
R EEFERL
¥ Or NPT AE 3 B
F P ATEHATE
FIp o B o i A% 22
RN Z FRTEsh -
EEERREH Gross advances to customers
2024 2023
BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Hong Kong 148,447,828 174,266,919
R P Mainland of China 104,958,964 111,051,570
A Others 15,124,708 12,987,829
268,531,500 298,306,318
B SR aE Impairment allowances — stage 1 and 2
fEE—FE— in respect of the gross advances to
FEEEZ IR customers
BEEE
2024 2023
BRI BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Hong Kong 330,399 715,920
R P Mainland of China 722,643 1,037,131
A Others 81,318 64,959
1,134,360 1,818,010
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MsEFENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRARER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8
(B) SHEKFHARE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

110

(&)
H EEESXETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&)
22 b B 16 I 4y Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
R EREE
€=))
BHAEEK Overdue advances
2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Hong Kong 2,607,813 4,168,626
o B Pyt Mainland of China 4,270,654 4,576,879
At Others 1,521 481,170
6,879,988 9,226,675
BUAHIESEEE Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in
=FEEEZRE respect of the overdue advances
bt 2024 2023
WETIT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
T Hong Kong 1,071,110 1,005,793
o R A3 Mainland of China 1,336,839 1,666,343
HAth Others 557 194,549
2,408,506 2,866,685
A E R E Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2
F—NE_ in respect of the overdue advances
P& B 2 BB
bt 2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tk Hong Kong 4,426 61,278
R Y HE Mainland of China 10,026 105,090
HoAtt Others - 3
14,452 166,371
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BEzE HAMREE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
H EEEXETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&)
22 b B 16 I 4y Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
2B
(%)
HEE S EECRE Classified or impaired advances
K
2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tk Hong Kong 2,298,136 2,964,776
R Y HE Mainland of China 5,265,343 3,491,961
HAth Others 115 462,813
7,563,594 6,919,550
RIS ESEER Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in
EERIEE= respect of the classified or impaired
P B JBE advances
# 2024 2023
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
i Hong Kong 1,078,669 1,093,363
R A3 Mainland of China 1,977,118 1,933,667
HoAh, Others 558 54,715
3,056,345 3,081,745
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(C) W& RE (C) Repossessed assets
TR » ARG Elm During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
SIS AT (e U [ security. The nature and carrying value of these assets are summarised as follows:
AR T AU I &
- HAE RIRHIE
fEAn T
NENENEE Assets obtained during the year are as follows:
fEAn T
2024 2023
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EERYES Commercial properties 2,267,125 25,033
(BRE=ty/E Residential properties 375,120 23,212
2,642,245 48,245
EEEAREEEE The repossessed assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has
EHE R EUS R B 5 acquired access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the
PERIRERIYIEE (a0 proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
WIEERERIE The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
HRE A H IR E December 2024 amounted to HK$2,831,252,000 (2023: HK$91,433,000).
T3 NHS ) TEHERK
N BB 1T = 8
BCER YRR - A EEE]
2024 12 A 31
H 7 A 1Y U e &
Z ok E R &
2,831,252,000 T
(2023 4 @ W
91,433,000 7 ) -
BB E ERY When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
BE I Z BB A consider the following alternatives:
EBERK BT
FIJ7 AR
- REL I EER - adjusting the selling prices
- HEREE - selling the loans together with the assets
- ZHHEE - arranging loan restructuring
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) 7E$RT B HA SRl (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
BHIEEER KT
N AT IR TT R HoAh The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
4 Rl R JE 3 B 5l other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at 31
EHABEZ e R F December by rating agency designation.
12 H 31 HEE
GRS BT AT
2024
A3 IR
Aaa & A3 Lower JEEETLR, Lt
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
rh R ERAT Central banks 13,745,173 - - 13,745173
BRAT R HoAtr S Rl Banks and other
financial
institutions 31,316,387 17,989,865 6,838,127 56,144,379
45,061,560 17,989,865 6,838,127 69,889,552
2023
A3 DI
Aaa 7 A3 Lower RESTAR HaEt
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g T Central banks 16,109,883 - - 16,109,883
BRAT R HoAth B Rl iR Banks and other
financial
institutions 25,303,792 9,154,289 4,963,626 39,421,707
41,413,675 9,154,289 4,963,626 55,531,590
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FEERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) 7E$RT B HA SRl (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
BIERR R (continued)
€ ))
2024 & 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2024, there were no overdue or credit-impaired balances and
H - 12 A= R placements with banks and other financial institutions (2023: Nil).

B Z & 8 & 77 &
(2023 4% : f#E) -

2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FLAESRIT R M E Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2 in
MERE4E R R TRk respect of the balances and placements with
E—FIE PR, banks and other financial institutions
TEEMH 2,111 513
FEAESRA T R oAt S Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in respect
TR 4S8R AT AE of the balances and placements with banks
B PR Rk e and other financial institutions - .
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E&EE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) EHEARBERE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
N B AT Sy The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt securities and
T2 (&S5 R EK certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
HIRTME - T designated for the issuers are reported.
SRR T o G
P 347 NH B8R
2,
—
2024
A3 DIF
Aa1l Z Aa3 A1 & A3 Lower fRERPLR &t
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
DI ES(LEF AR At fair value through
livealien other
comprehensive
income 16,450,604 60,783,893 81,672,425 12,575,175 2,585,324 174,067,421
DABESRECA R TR At amortised cost - 394,742 712,280 - - 1,107,022
DA RESE{EEF AR Atfair value through
2% profit or loss - 5,692,727 1,201,813 - 18,473 6,913,013
4=t Total 16,450,604 66,871,362 83,586,518 12,575,175 2,603,797 182,087,456
2023
A3 LI'F
Aal & Aa3 Al E A3 Lower ST, gz
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AEETTT i DT AEMETT AT i DT i DT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DI fofEgs(EEF AE:  Atfair value through
AT other
comprehensive
income 10,590,735 58,585,724 79,959,458 14,819,375 2,908,761 166,864,053
Pl A e = At amortised cost 5,843,364 1,351,000 102,777 - - 7,297,141
DI EE(EET ASE  Atfair value through
5 profit or loss - 6,262,411 1,279,826 79,530 32,998 7,654,765
4zt Total 16,434,099 66,199,135 81,342,061 14,898,905 2,941,759 181,815,959
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(E) B Rl
&

e ElS i i EEY]
B 2 B R
EERY 12 H 31 Hi%
BTRIRZ AT - HE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and certificates of deposit
neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at 31 December by issue rating. In the absence
of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

fie 217 BE AT S O
T FIrEss T ALY
LS -
2024
A3 DR
Aa1l & Aa3 A1 & A3 Lower biii=02 47 &=t
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BRI BRI BT BT BRI BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
MUAE®EET AH At fair value through
2 EdEs other
comprehensive
income 16,450,604 60,783,893 57,814,361 10,879,207 28,139,356 174,067,421
DB ASIEsTE At amortised cost - 394,742 712,280 - - 1,107,022
MUARE®EET AR At fair value through
E profit or loss - 5,692,727 1,201,813 - 17,462 6,912,002
16,450,604 66,871,362 59,728,454 10,879,207 28,156,818 182,086,445
2023
A3 DUF
Aal £ Aa3 A1l £ A3 Lower SHESTAR B
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BT BT AHTIT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DU fEE{LEF AEL At fair value through
(el other
comprehensive
income 10,590,735 58,585,724 79,959,458 14,819,375 2,908,761 166,864,053
Pl A E = At amortised cost 5,843,364 1,351,000 102,777 - - 7,297,141
PIAEE(LET ASE At fair value through
= profit or loss - 6,262,411 1,279,826 79,530 5,209 7,626,976
16,434,099 66,199,135 81,342,061 14,898,905 2,913,970 181,788,170
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8

(E) B Rl
&

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

DS EI R EE
Wi L B TRT
ot - AEIEBRTTRY
SAIEIT - AlETE

The following tables present an analysis of credit-impaired or overdue debt securities
by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the
issuers are reported.

BT AAIRTAR R -
2024
FRIEIE Hrp :
Carrying values BetE e
Of which
A3 DI accumulated
Aal & Aa3 A1 Z A3 Lower biii=02 47 &=+  impairment
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
BT BT BETT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A RER LE: At fair value through
AIBZS profit or loss - - - - 1,011 1,011 -
DA fE®Lst Debt securities at
AHMtE2H fair value through
Wz ZfE#%  other
B4 comprehensive
income - - - - - - -
Hep o BEEE Of which
Hef accumulated
impairment
allowances - - - - - -
2023
HRI{E Horr e
Carrying values RET R R
Of which
A3 DI'F accumulated
Aal & Aa3 A1 & A3 Lower SHERFATR, A= impairment
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
i DT AT IT AT T AETT AT AEMETTT i DT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A e 8 {EET At fair value through
AJE%s profit or loss - - - - 27,789 27,789 -

PIA o e (ks Debt securities at fair

AHM 4  value through other
Wi 2~ (&%  comprehensive
B income - - - - - ; ;
Hrp o EEHEE Of which accumulated
e impairment
allowances - - - - - -
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EFERRE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) BB REIE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
(&)
2024 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2024, there were no impaired or overdue certificates of deposit
H @A RE s (2023: Nil).
frakEs (2023 4
f®) -
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 58 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(F) BB KRE B HEE R O (F) The impact of Mainland China real estate exposure on credit risk
HiESRRNPE
AN EHEE — % Although Mainland China rolled out a series of measures to stabilise the property
HI L SRR E o 1 T market, it still need time to take effect. Given that property market in Mainland China
5 WA DY is still in downturn, the Bank has adjusted the customer credit rating and level of
fEA » Nt B E T provisioning in response to relevant customers’ changes in credit risk.

BREE > BT
BRI A Th 2 = B B
ARV - SRR
(B RFRALET FEAH I

BB AE A -

eSS N HE B LT In response to the risks in property development sector in Mainland China, the Bank

FEE b > ATTEREL has taken the following measures:

DU Fe e e

(1) huse =iz 1 £ (1) Strengthen the concentration risk management for real estate related sector, set
o R B B 5% internal goal to reduce the concentration risk for relevant sectors, and adopt
LA E T E A stricter mechanisms to control new loans granted to relevant sectors.
DAREEARAR BT 55
s e R e - ST
PREEE B A& B
P2 il T 44 st

(2) huss¥E N E A (2) Strengthen the credit review for property development related sectors in
VW EEEE & Mainland China, prudently assess credit risks for both industry and borrower
EeEh T ¥ D level, and adjust the credit underwriting requirement for the relevant sectors.

SEEERRE 55
TTSEEATD -

(3) ZE VTN H & (3) Closely monitor the development of the mainland real estate sector, strengthen
M TN R early warning and risk alert process, promptly assess and follow up in response
&M g E e TE to credit changes for identifying customers with potential risks, formulate and
R R TR B execute mitigation measures in a timely manner, in order to prevent asset quality
R S A [ B B2 R deterioration.

A EEERL
DLE B VA B

AR HIE
JEBB TR P
PR P IE RS
HE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 EER 4.2 Market risk

5 s 2 f R R T 2
S (R - AR B E
- PR ) BRI
AHIHNE ~ FIR ~ BESEAR
s A E R LT T AR
SR B AR AR B -
AL E PR HUE P Y T 5 )
bRy » SR b U s Y
-y o

S E R 5L AR
AL E 0 B e 2 AR <2
SETS SRR - IRFESE Y
R L 1 FEE A [ B
T AUEHESERT
ATREEEE YT SRR - (R
B BRSNS -

AR B e P A S
EaFERAVE R S
EHG LU T RYER R
EHZAY  sEEHEA
BRI b e gE B -
B EH - £ BT - R
EHEBEAERRBYSE
EHARETHEEHE
o WILEEEAEE TS
USRSt A e B B SR
MREFITHN > WHECREE
BN ] T 5 e e £ 2
HIE ARSI - Ji
FEEEN > FH B
fir & AR T s E AV BB
PREEHETT Baf2 > e S
FR & A= E A
BIRA - BEFFAEAERR
PRE > R BN [ 2
ANEHE - B (TR 5%
AP R B P P
Bt DRI S5 s e R
FHPITIE L - M EHA [ A
FRAT 2 A AN UE A

=

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market prices (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury
business, by effective management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the
basis of a well-established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and
functional units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market
risk. The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and
compliance of management policies and limits of the Group, to ensure that the aggregate
and individual market risk profiles are within acceptable levels. Independent units are
assigned to monitor the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with
profit and loss reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit
excess will be reported to Senior Management at once when it occurs. NCB (China) sets
up independent risk monitoring teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance,
and submits management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 EEREE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

RAEE R E 5 E e The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
JLPREE A 51 & control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but not limited to VAR (Value-
ERIFISZE I T E s - at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open Position, Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value, Greeks, CS01)
HE RS A RAEEFEE and Stress Testing. To meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits
AR EFEE ~ (EEEE - are classified into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee,
g %E ~ UM (F Asset and Liability Management Committee or Senior Management respectively. Treasury
SRECBEEE ~ F s business units are required to conduct their business within approved market risk
EBE - EEEEREE) indicators and limits. The Group also implements regular model validation to ascertain
DA R ST A - FEEE| appropriateness of market risk models and ensure market risk to be adequately measured
B P AL R AR A 2 and captured.

el e T 3 a1
R EEESE - EEA
HEHZE & EE e
AN EitfE > BB R
DNFAERZAT T S b o
PSR P 3 8 ] P O e
B o REEINERET T
SRR - AR
TR & AR BRI
REFEIY MR RE TG

(A) BB (A) VAR

AEER A RFEE S The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
AT R 0 Management Committee and Senior Management on a periodic basis. The Group
TCEHERBEHES adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach
eSS EEE A2 and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
o KEERFEY— Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
o R (E S e limit of the Group and the Bank.

AR R R S AR > DA

iR 24 iR S TG U

BRZE > 515H9%

BASKFT RARFF

AP A B B I T

ASRITHYE R (E > I
SE AR BB RIASRTT
e (LR -
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HEER (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) ERE (& (A) VAR (continued)
Nl oA [ — The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure' of the Group.
1% T 5 B B A Y
JEG 1 " -
2 25 24
Fy | R12A31H HERE BeEE  PERE
At  Minimum Maximum for Average for
Year 31 December for the year the year the year
BT BEETOT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
s ER > JEEE VAR for all market risk 2024 4,440 2,455 6,795 5,055
2023 2,909 1,525 4,098 2,649
B > JE e (E VAR for foreign exchange risk 2024 1,613 145 2,650 1,557
2023 699 152 2,537 972
F2 i f > VAR for interest rate risk 2024 4,292 2,191 6,639 5,016
2023 3,026 1,343 3,603 2,511
P o\ 2 L VAR for commodity risk 2024 1,027 - 1,847 317
2023 285 - 304 104
o Note:

1 EEE M ORI (E -

1. Structural positions have been excluded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HEER (8
(A) EEE (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

BRI (B R T
SRR —THE
B HHA HE RN

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in the context of its
limitations. For example:

o

- BRRRE TS s - the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
st RARENHERFE encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
P A ol e R
BTG » CHE—
LS =P

- —RFEEHEE - the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
FEERER A EE hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of severe

e DE—HNE
BT - BT
ERANRE SE 4 R
g - THAE
T 45 i 2 [ K
W > ATRER RAE—
REFABINER
BOTFTH BT

IRISES - IR
99% T (KT -
EIARAHEAEILE
BTSN
SRAIRSIE + U

illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all
positions fully;

the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

- JE b E R DL - VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business and
i 45 o R A9 B therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

M fERTRAE - A
BESIE AF — T S
22 5 Wt B PO Y R

b -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HEER (8
(A) RkfE (8

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

AREE T TR
b E FE IRV R
RIE - HE TSI
15 R R PR B BARY
i 0 7 J e (R

B TS R o
T 55 Ja e IR 7 0 X

AR ALEERI AR
B PREE (FIAnEEss &
JE\BGE FRAEH ) 15 s i
ETH - I ALk
AR E—
BRI EEAAR
MG - TS
PESEY (BIA0SM RS
) B HINEEE
{5 P E A R S HE
e\

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
to assess and manage the market risk not covered by VAR. The market risk stress
testing includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors with various degrees of
severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events.

BLE A [ g

EV-d 1t NS

HIBURIIE G, » DR

HIRE L BB R

I

(B) 4NeEE (B) Currency risk

AREEBNEENE The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly the
EEPEATT - FEIT HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
MANEBETFERE Group is managed at an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are
e o FylfEfR Y NE BB used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap
EIE R 2 between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.

FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities.
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4.2 HEER (8

(B) SMEREER (F)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) Currency risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TR AL The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
HEX G JEEER from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to
5 R s E R T the completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.
B4 T ELANES
b - N 2 HA R
HINER R 2 2
R FA RIS
LECTE
2024
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAhyrEE AN £
Ein Other Total
us AER foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 125,661,202 150,623,756 40,640,414 316,925,372
HEa®E Spot liabilities (94,551,204) (150,764,537) (8,792,062) (254,107,803)
EHIE A Forward purchases 67,092,845 31,600,079 4,898,656 103,591,580
EHAE Forward sales (99,123,650) (28,226,714)  (36,469,313) (163,819,677)
(5 /BEIFH Net (short)/long position (920,807) 3,232,584 277,695 2,589,472
EREEE T Net structural position 7,576,784 16,073,985 - 23,650,769
2023
BT ITEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
EAt oS PA kO
ETT Other Total
us ANEHE foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HREEE Spot assets 130,187,281 176,219,790 32,210,738 338,617,809
HEaE Spot liabilities (116,390,740) (165,964,904) (11,513,836) (293,869,480)
HHAE A Forward purchases 39,146,801 5,927,883 5,596,954 50,671,638
EHE T Forward sales

(&) /RIS

G R

Net (short)/long position

Net structural position

(55,186,448)

(13,458,845)

(26,196,643)

(94,841,936)

(2,243,106)

2,723,924

97,213

578,031

7,577,519

16,027,380

23,604,899
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MEEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 g EE (8D
(C) FHRE

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk

SRAT AR 2R R i 2

Interest rate risk in Banking Book (“IRRBB”) means the risks to a bank’s earnings and

FEIRFERAKE B E economic value arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
GEREHERE asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures in Banking Book are
ZEE A S ] AR mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk in Banking Book from structural
HESRITERS IS positions are:

KB EEAZR

U - A
PRAT IR A1) 25 L g 7
¥E T SR E R
Fig - 45y
= B = e g 5 )
=

- PR R L1
b - & E A H
FRANEH A
[ 2 S PR =
ST g
By fir 7 R B9 R
Br o Fl R
1 el iz ) R 57
A R R AR
IR&EREMI 2 E)
BB R
e g ElthEmeaiii
S CPATR R ) 2
FEBAR & AR
FEEEFTREER) ;

B
IR 5L 5 R EH
AR CF
JE B UL g AN 8
I RATTRES
TEE—ETHRA
SHIRE DA (R B i
FEE(E T

- SRR YA
RUIREOTATLR
BEE  AfEEER
SPEBFREE R
HEERNITR
5 |68 W] B A A
BB 69K R
] o S L AT
o HR O —
& 57 5 B B11E 4
e\ B 5 P 3
P -

- IRR Gapping risk: arising from the changes in the interest rates on assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items of different maturities and different repricing tenors. The extent
of gapping risk depends on whether changes to the term structure of interest rates occur
consistently across the yield curve (parallel risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel
risk);

Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on

assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same repricing
period;

Option risk: arising from interest rate option derivatives or from optional elements
embedded in assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, where the Al or its customer
can alter the level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk can be further characterised
into automatic option risk and behavioural option risk.
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 g EE (8D
(C) F=xEkR (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AR B IR
T[RRI TR 8R 1T
SRR b B R
RBEEREHZ A
gitaEry (RITIR
) 2=l b B HL B
) HEAMEH
ZRGARETE
PR E AR R Y
WE - HEAMRE
HE E IRATHRA)
REfREH > f£45
il T 55 BRI IC &
T AEAREH
I EE A RE
HERGHERE
FYSRTT MR 2 L Bz
EHIE > BEE
PRI BB B
T BEEHITA
SRR FE AR AR
# B ER S E
AP > B
BUORS IRE TS
o EHEED R
Bl EHE SR
ZEHRATHRA AR A
B -

REEETEIZ B IR
7 IR R i B
BTN EE -
(e FoF B8 i AT BX
SREDR - MERAAT
FY SR AT R 2R L iz
S EIA RS - 157
BB e B T E )
HRFRATIR AR
beat &7 0A T ATER
FH BB HE AT J 1T
Bsg LAF -

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management
in banking book. The Asset and Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight
of interest rate risk in accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management
Policy” approved by Risk Management Committee. Asset and Liability Management
Division is responsible for banking book interest rate risk management. With the
cooperation of the Financial Market Department, Asset and Liability Management
Division assists the Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform day-to-day
banking book interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the
formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators
and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies
and limits, and submission of banking book interest rate risk management reports to the
Management and Risk Management Committee.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department acts as the independent audit on interest rate risk
in banking book, supervises the related departments to execute the interest rate risk
function according to the policy in order to effectively control the risk. The Group’s Model
Validation Division preforms independent model validation regularly for interest rate risk
in banking book.
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HiigEkE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
AEHRBEESES In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 “Interest Rate
22018 A8 2 B Risk in the Banking Book” issued by the HKMA in 2018, the Group sets interest rate

B BUR T IR
(SRTTIR AR F =R
JeR\fgz ) K » 5%
TE $RAT R A R L e
R R PREE - A
ol ~ 518~ BT
T2 A1) R AT S ) S
b - A SO EhEE
FRRIEOR B E R B
EE RS2 WA 2 5
HHEREIF A E YA
THE A Z T 52
& EAREEH
) 45 J e ) 2
bR iEtE - plE R
M R B B F
HMEU A ZEB (5E
RIS A E YA
HYEER ; k& &
M RE( LB RATHE
BEER R R
HEAERRLE
THAE I 55 E JE %
o ERBREHZES
o R s (w4
2 WA A e E TR
#H o AR B2
A SR SRAT IR A
R - 5381 AL
9] A PR AR
BRURRER T ~ F A
A~ A R
BIR(E T R
#E B R TR
HMRERRE -

risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The
Group’s key risk indicators, the Net Interest Income impact and the Economic Value of
Equity impact, reflect the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
income and capital base respectively. The former assesses the impact of interest rate
movement on net interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income
for the year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
values as a percentage to the latest capital base. The risk appetites and limits of these
two indicators are set by the Board and Risk Management Committee respectively to
monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk. In addition, the Group
monitors the interest rate risk in banking book through indicators and limits including,
but are not limited to, interest rate sensitivity gap limits, basis risk, duration and price
value of a basis point (“PVBP”).
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
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4.2 TiigEkE (8 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mEkE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

ARG E Y 3 b The Group'’s indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which are approved
TR AR S 7> = by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and

{E &4 > o3 A1) E e Chief Financial Officer respectively. Risk-taking business units are required to conduct
ﬁf@é;% EEA their business within the banking book interest rate risk limits. In addition, risk mitigation

EEEZ g K measures including, but not limited to, the use of interest rate derivatives, adjustment
““gﬁfﬁtx’% HRYER of portfolio duration, etc. as approved by ALCO, are effectively used to mitigate the

77 BE I 22 o e Y 2% IRRBB. Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant

departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current
risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on banking book interest rate risk
noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted to Risk Management
Committee for approval.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
and stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from
the optionality of savings deposits.
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TiigEkE (8 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mEkE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AREEHTZHmEE The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and Australian
It FEo. AR Dollar in terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2024, according to the new
TRTTAIR R - standard IRRBB framework of HKMA, the Group assesses the impact of changes in the
2024 F12H31H> Group’s net interest income (“ANII”) and economic value (“AEVE”) respectively under 6
IEE S E interest rate shock scenarios, in which optionality and behavioural assumptions of
5T SR 77 HE F1) 2= certain products will also be estimated in the exposure measurement. The 6 interest
[y R rate shock scenarios include: (1) Parallel up; (2) Parallel down; (3) Steepener; (4)
SEAETE 6 (AR E Flattener; (5) Short rates up; and (6) Short rates down.

BE R NHFA R

WL A B2 Bl A 4 1

EHIRE - &

7 it S FH SO R T B

BT B R R E
LS -3 6 (AR
B fd: (1)
FIELE () F
T @) wE
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TRk -
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TEEE (&)
(C) F=xEkR (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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When calculating AEVE, commercial margins and other spread components are
included in the cash flows and discounted by the risk-free rates. The key behavioural
assumptions include:

(1) Part of the current account and savings account deposits (“CASA”) in HKD and
USD are classified into core stable deposit based on historical data which would be
assigned a longer interest rate sensitive tenor while the interest rate sensitive tenor
of other non-maturity deposits is considered as “Next day”. As at 31 December
2024, the average interest rate sensitive tenors of HKD and USD CASA is 1.56
months and 1.36 months, and the longest interest rate sensitive tenor is 3 months.

(2) For retail term deposits and retail fixed rate loans subject to early redemption
without significant penalty, early redemption rates are calculated under different
portfolios.

Methods of aggregation across currencies strictly follow the IRRBB Standardised
Framework. The aggregate EVE losses across all applicable currencies are calculated
as the maximum loss across the six interest rate shock scenarios.
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HEEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=mEkE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
2024
KEEETE BF S A )
AEVE ANII
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
PATIE - Parallel up 3,260,824 260,828
TAE T Parallel down 2,913 (260,223)
WA} Steepener 198,194 A (N/A)
s ] Flattener 1,025,652 KREH(N/A)
g% [T Short rate up 2,080,239 FEA(N/A)
BNt Short rate down 3,549 A (N/A)
=5 Maximum 3,260,824 260,828
2023

EAIISUIUN
KOPEE R EH)
AEVE ANII
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
PATIE Parallel up 2,137,472 (248,691)
PATET Parallel down 4,430 249,317
R} Steepener 110,546 A (N/A)
R ] Flattener 692,136 I (N/A)
R B Short rate up 1,406,394 A (N/A)
R TR Short rate down 107,814 A (N/A)
=5 Maximum 2,137,472 249,317

F IEE A A

Remarks: Positive values indicate losses under the alternative scenarios.
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 FiEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

A 2024 £ 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2024, the net interest income impact for all currencies is
H » fEFRAh 4 1T HK$260,828,000 under the interest rate parallel up scenario (2023: HK$249,317,000
mEEYT A& under the interest rate parallel down scenario). The maximum negative impact on
WS B A B AEVE is HK$3,260,824,000 (2023: HK$2,137,472,000) under the interest rate parallel
By ki 260,828,000 up scenario. Compared with 31 December 2023, the Group’s net interest income
It (2023 4 @ s impact for all currencies under the interest rate parallel up scenario is increased by
249,317,000 yr-Fl|=2= HK$509,519,000 (2023 vs 2022: decreased by HK$311,576,000) and maximum
HHEREA TR N ER ) negative impact on AEVE is increased by HK$1,123,352,000 (2023 vs 2022:
KR EEN R KA decreased by HK$625,201,000), mainly due to investment in fixed rate bonds and
S22 g AT R 45 tenor shortening of capital securities.

ST B SR

(EREEOR A=Y 1t

3,260,824,000 T
(2023 4F @ ks
2,137,472,000 77) -
$1 2023 &£ 12 H 31
HAHLL » AREEEIEF]
BT AR
ST B T
Ik 509,519,000
JC (2023 F%f 2022
oK D B
311,576,000 71 4%
HEEN R KA
= oo W
1,123,352,000 T
(2023 4% 2022
oK D B
625,201,000 77) > E
FERITEERBES N
BARFESFFHARER -
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Mg FENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRARER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TEEE (&)
(C) FIZEEs (8D

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

TR T RKEE The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
W12 A 31 HZ&E risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
BB T N AT 2 8 amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
B - RN LR

BYIR&RE R AfE

e ET BE
FIHAEIE (DL
RERAE) 5 -

2024
—% == Fata
—fERA =fER +—f8R —ZBHE AP E Non-
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over interest =t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
ATT AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
HE Assets
RIS R T R Eft 4R Cash and balances with banks
HRERSaR and other financial institutions 53,632,934 - - - - 4,696,233 58,329,167
EHYT R E M SRR —%F -+ Placements with banks and other
{8 F N EHHZ SE B financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - 8,815,885 3,221,931 - - - 12,037,816
ARlEg (it ATBIE 2 &@EE  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,350,930 3,227,390 6,468,078 230,884 - 1,511,904 12,789,186
TSR T A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,915,768 2,915,768
B HA R TE Advances and other accounts 170,603,319 32,654,637 38,470,105 22,625,543 383,095 - 264,736,699
BRRE Financial investments
- DA S fEE et A A 21 - At fair value through other
Wiz comprehensive income 14,200,574 37,790,779 48,186,183 68,340,607 5,549,278 18,074 174,085,495
- DUBEERRCA RS & - At amortised cost 394,742 662,435 26,443 23,402 - - 1,107,022
K&y Investment properties - - - - - 417,116 417,116
W ~ 2506 R Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 7,933,200 7,933,200
&R Intangible assets - - - - - 1,601,463 1,601,463
HERE (HFEEUWRERIEL  Other assets (including current
TRIEERE ) and deferred tax assets) - - - - - 5,131,358 5,131,358
B Total assets 240,182,499 83,151,126 96,372,740 91,220,436 5,932,373 24,225,116 541,084,290
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2024

—Z == Fata

—EAN =f8A +=fEA —2hfF  AFME Non-
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over interest =t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AT BT BT BETT BT BTt BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
12,546,009 1,501,891 979,515 - - 2,381,486 17,408,901
1,397,511 3,803,469 1,002,608 - - - 6,203,588
- - - - - 765,233 765,233
173,480,880 133,440,763 62,808,991 10,423,164 - 14,261,774 394,415,572
1,169,007 8,339,926 2,590,463 17,584,960 - - 29,684,356
4,510,028 1,894,285 5,081,464 703,250 12,578 4,245,243 16,446,848
- - - - 5,521,900 - 5,521,900
193,103,435 148,980,334 72,463,041 28,711,374 5,534,478 21,653,736 470,446,398
47,079,064 (65,829,208) 23,909,699 62,509,062 397,895 2,571,380 70,637,892
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4.2 TEEE (&)

(C) F=xEkR (&)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets

Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
Financial investments
- At fair value through other
comprehensive income
- At amortised cost
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

2023
—% =5

—EAR =fEA +={EA —FEH LFEE TR
Up to 1t03 3t0 12 1to5 Over Non- interest 4=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BT BT BNTT O BETT BT EETT ENTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
48,916,994 - - - - 4,916,399 53,833,393
- 1,545,669 727,600 - - - 2,273,269
603,012 5,195,402 8,317,642 318,367 - 1,403,687 15,838,110
- - - - - 1,039,044 1,039,044
195,938,592 34,011,577 41,793,834 21,427,426 733,307 - 293,904,736
15,818,685 33,740,231 52,557,957 61,756,020 2,991,160 25,606 166,889,659
2,725,416 1,561,211 1,900,694 1,109,820 - - 7,297,141
- - - - - 407,600 407,600
- - - - - 9,071,270 9,071,270
- - - - - 843,464 843,464
- - - - - 3,750,911 3,750,911
264,002,699 76,054,090 105,297,727 84,611,633 3,724,467 21,457,981 555,148,597
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TEEE (&)
(C) F=xEkR (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2023
—% =% B
—{EAR ={EA TZfEH —EfE HAEL L Non-
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over interest 4=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
T T T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
&affE Liabilities
SRAT R M R TR Deposits and balances from banks
et and other financial institutions 18,465,183 6,182,567 8,604,668 - - 2,329,474 35,581,892
ANEE BT AJBZE 2 &R&[E  Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 3,576,107 674,069 1,534,597 - - - 5,784,773
TEERMTH Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,349,761 1,349,761
FEEHR Deposits from customers 334,795,608 8,589,889 30,670,942 7,499,236 - 12,834,188 394,389,863
CHETEBE SR ERE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 925,330 3,689,446 10,375,114 13,829,945 - - 28,719,835
HAETE R (BFEFERTFTE  Other accounts and provisions
FOEIERTEEE ) (including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 4,595,636 1,990,908 3,174,416 894,790 30,588 5,176,950 15,863,288
®iE&RH Subordinated liabilities - - - - 5,468,028 - 5,468,028
=t Total liabilities 362,357,864 21,026,879 54,359,737 22,223,971 5,498,616 21,690,373 487,157,440
FIZRBRE RO Interest sensitivity gap (98,355,165) 55,027,211 50,937,990 62,387,662 (1,774,149) (232,392) 67,991,157
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 EEREE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

(D) EFEFHRKE

(D) Interest rate benchmark reform
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In July 2017, the UK regulator, the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) announced the
discontinuation of a widely-used benchmark rate, the London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”), by end of 2021, leading to a transition of LIBOR to Risk-Free Rates (“RFRs”)
or Alternative Reference Rates (“ARRs”). In March 2021, the FCA further announced
that publication of 26 LIBOR settings would permanently be ceased, including British
Pound (GBP), Swiss Franc (CHF), Euro (EUR), Japanese Yen (JPY) LIBOR settings
and the 1-week and 2-month US Dollar (USD) LIBOR settings after 31 December 2021,
while the remaining USD LIBOR settings are ceased immediately after 30 June 2023.

The Group established its IBOR Transition Programme in 2020 and formed an IBOR
Steering Committee, which is chaired by the Chief Risk Officer, to lead the Transition
Programme. The Steering Committee comprises senior representatives across Front
Office, Middle Office and Back Office. The management oversight of the Transition
Programme is performed by the Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”)
and the Board.

IBOR transition exposes the Group to various risks, which the Transition Programme
is managing and monitoring closely. These risks include but are not limited to the
following:

+ Conduct risk arising from discussions with clients and market counterparties due to
the amendments to existing contracts required under IBOR transition
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4.2 mEERE (8D
(D) ZEFRKE (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(D) Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)
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- Basis risk arising from asymmetric adoption of benchmark rates across assets and

liabilities

Financial risk to the Group and its clients as markets are disrupted due to IBOR
transition

- Pricing risk from potential lack of market information if liquidity in IBORs reduces

and RFRs are illiquid and unobservable

- Operational risk arising from changes to the Group’s IT systems and processes; and

the risk of payments being disrupted if an IBOR ceases to be available

- Accounting risk if the Group’s hedging relationships terminated and the Group

experienced volatility in income statement caused by profit and loss arising from
existing reference rate of financial instruments transiting to RFRs
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 R (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(D) EEHEKE (B) (D) Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)
A 2024 £ 12 H As at 31 December 2024, all legacy contracts referencing EUR, GBP, JPY, CHF, and
31 H» frE&EE 1-week and 2-month USD LIBOR settings have been remediated by including
IT~ R HoT Bt appropriate fallback in the contract, with no ‘tough legacy’ contracts remaining.

EBREL R 1 2
2 {E A FTTmEBERT
EESii¥SilES S o)
BtA & E#E S &
HREETTE - AT
B “EELUBERIREE

aE" -

AR LLABR T RYZETT A For legacy contracts referencing the remaining USD LIBOR settings, all exposures
FERTTEIZEIF E R have already incorporated appropriate fallback, and the contract remediation of all
HEEENWHTES legacy contracts is completed in 2023. The Group continues the client outreach to
[F - EEEOEaEE support our clients during the IBOR transition.

G ITE > i

BUA &R

i+ 2023 FENFERL 1

PRATEIEAF S A2
TSR AR E
HAZ PRI > DL
SRR -

B e E M 0 BEETE For loans products, the migration on revolving loans, term loans and syndicated loans
e - EEHE RO to RFRs or ARRs is completed in 2023. For treasury products, the migration on bonds
SRE SRS B 4 and derivatives such as interest rate swaps to RFRs or ARRs is completed in 2023
JE\ i Al 2R el B R R e following the International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) protocol or
FIRER 2023 F£K clearing house arrangement.

SRR - WA E A T T

BT TEATF]

FEgRLHA Y 208 2

I e = g S

FHARIB B R HS

SETA MRS

s BOE E AT

B 2023 FEN5ERL
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sEIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 FiEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(D) EEHEKE (B) (D) Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)
AR T EER The Group has identified major risks arising from the IBOR Transition and mitigated
FETEE A Y - B most of the risks by performing banking system upgrade, client outreach and contract
i A SR 1T A T remediation, process and model changes, development of new ARR products, staff
W~ BFESNEFIETE training and frequent management oversight of the Transition Programme. The Group
RELL ~ AR AR S also engages actively with regulators to ensure a smooth transition from LIBOR.

B~ B AR
MBS - BT
= SE SR EIE S/
BIEERE R
T8 i ek A KT 4 Je
W o ALEEIR R
ETER G IE > DURE
PRUE BRI TR SE TR
SFIZRIEF A -

g - AEE The Group’s main interest rate benchmark exposure has successfully transited from
FN = R 2R R Ja i USD LIBOR to Secured Overnight Funding Rate (“SOFR”) during the IBOR transition.
ARIET D T

KERITRSEAT BRI
BB AR
TRRAEERI -
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MEERNEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiElER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErESEE 4.3 Liquidity risk
TRENE s e T Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
R AR E & e L obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk
JESEE M INEETTE appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs
HASRTS > M Al REER = under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
AR BRI Z HIIEE - A cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the lender
MBI R EE of last resort.

R RL - HEREL
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 KgEeEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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S EHET > IR
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The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of on-
and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to
achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place,
the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary
funding from the interbank market. According to different term maturities and the results of
funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure
(including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid
assets which provides adequate funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its
ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency.
The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use of funds to avoid
excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to
the break of funding strand when problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The
Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage the
liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance of
funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-
balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments and derivatives. The Group has an
overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover the liquidity management of foreign
currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity
risk arising from other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEEREE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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the Board has the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management, and delegates the
decision-making authority of liquidity risk management to Risk Management Committee
(“RMC”). As authorised by RMC, the Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”)
exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Asset and Liability Management
Division is responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial
Market Department to assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according
to their specific responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR”), loan-to-
deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCQ”), liquidity buffer asset portfolio
and depositor concentration limit. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess the
Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test
(including institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) at least on monthly
basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, the
Assets and Liabilities Management System is developed to provide data and the preparation
for regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEEREE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2016, the Group has
implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash
flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-
balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items (such
as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual maturity
date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group
establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30-day maximum cumulative net cash
outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group has
sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to achieve the objective of
continuing operation. As at 31 December 2024, before taking the cash inflow through the
sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day cumulative
cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to HK$28,583,389,000 (2023:
HK$9,203,588,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit requirements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEEREE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific
and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown
rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2024, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral
development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued or
guaranteed by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of BBB-
or above to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2024,
the Bank's liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$76,119,817,000 (2023:
HK$58,129,938,000). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions
to trigger the plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans
and relevant procedures and responsibility of various departments. The Group tests and
updates the Plan annually to ensure its effectiveness and operational feasibility.
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4. aRiElER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEEREE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
R EELLRERE The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
f2015F1 7 1 Hi4: January 2015 and the NSFR is effective from 1 January 2018. The Group, being classified
Wy CERTTEE CREhE:) as category 1 authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR and NSFR
AL 5HE - MBEEE on consolidated basis. The Group is required to maintain LCR and NSFR not less than
FHEELEERR 2018 £ 1 H 100%.

1 FRAE - AL
ERINERE R
e A DL G T
S ARy
MR R S
SFHLLA /DL 100% -

IR SN A E R By maintaining a ratio in excess of minimum regulatory requirements, the LCR seeks to
(RS RENE B ELL ensure that the Group holds adequate liquidity assets to mitigate a short-term liquidity stress
EigirE B A 4R and the NSFR ensures the Group maintaining sufficient stable funding sources to cover
iy 7 N A HA R B their long-term assets.

PEERS) TR E & 580
Eb B R AR 4 57 e Sy
HIFRIE & AR LAY

RHIEE -
EHTTTETESGY In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request from the Group
s XS T A AL additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEEREE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to Risk Management Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies. On the basis
of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own liquidity
management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management processes
independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.

The information of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio disclosures are
available under “Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information — 1. Liquidity Coverage
Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio” and section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s
website at www.ncb.com.hk.
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) Maturity analysis

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

&R ABMEES
KIEHA H TR 2R
FRA3 ¥ -
‘i Assets
[ETFER 4 AT HGRIT R HoAti 4/ Cash and balances with banks
RS and other financial institutions
ST A SRk —Z -+ Placements with banks and other
{8 A N EHEEZ TE I financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months
AREE(ET AIER 2 $Rl&E  Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

- G - Trading
- (s - Debt securities
- SREEDIA B T AJESFE - Mandatorily measured at fair
T value through profit or loss,
non trading
- {EsE 7 - Debt securities
- Hit - Others
- BsEsF - Equity securities
TEemTH Derivative financial instruments
SRR AR Advances and other accounts
- BPEK - Advances to customers
- H55HE - Trade bills

- Advances to banks and other

- SR TRAM SRR

financial institutions

DRE Financial investments
- DARESE(ETARMEE - Atfair value through other
s comprehensive income
- DR TR - Atamortised cost
- W - Equity securities
BV Investment properties
Ik ~ b Rkt Properties, plant and equipment
W& E Intangible assets

Hith&E (ISR IE IR Other assets (including current
AR ) and deferred tax assets)

Total assets

HEEARE

2024
—=E ==
By —ERRN =@A +ZEE  —ZERf AEENLE FHEE
On Up to 1t0o3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 B 4=t
demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETIC BETT BETT  BETT BT BETT B¥TT BN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
21,612,852 36,716,315 58,329,167
8,815,792 3,222,024 12,037,816
976,242 2,849,963 2,429,701 656,096 6,912,002
1,011 1,011
319,142 7,045 4,039,093 4,365,280
1,510,893 1,510,893
399,759 619,976 790,218 796,577 304,879 4,359 2,915,768
1,243,333 32,620,252 26,433,441 61,175,968 95,235,331 42,990,809 4,641,661 264,340,795
326,228 69,676 395,904
8,487,525 25,343,114 50,484,430 84,238,614 5,513,738 174,067,421
394,742 662,696 26,357 23,227 1,107,022
18,074 18,074
417,116 417,116
7,933,200 7,933,200
1,601,463 1,601,463
432,278 1,406,004 1,550 24,777 552,381 2,315 2,712,053 5,131,358
23,688,222 81,866,426 64,973,495 122,198,927 181,010,528 48,511,221 18,835,471 541,084,290
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4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 nEEsRRE (8
(A) BIEFH 3T (8D

=0 Liabilities
ST R HoAth SRS~ 2K Deposits and balances from banks
e and other financial institutions
AREB(EE AJER 2 $Ri&  Financial liabilities at fair value
& through profit or loss
TSR TH Derivative financial instruments
EEIER Deposits from customers
a5 TS Debt securities and certificates of

deposit in issue
HAIETE RS (EFERERHFR  Other accounts and provisions

TR R IEFRTE &) (including current and deferred tax
liabilities)
BEEE Subordinated liabilities
AERE Total liabilities
RENE S Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) Maturity analysis (continued)

2024
—Z =7
By —EAR =@ +-EA —EEf AFNE  FEE

On Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to5 Over B =t
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BRTIC  EETT BNMTT BETT BETT BMTT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$°000
1,395,219 13,532,276 1,501,891 979,515 17,408,901
1,397,511 3,803,469 1,002,608 6,203,588
189,846 164,566 59,459 118,266 228,103 4,993 765,233
107,475,002 80,267,652 133,440,763 62,808,991 10,423,164 394,415,572
1,169,007 8,339,926 2,590,463 17,584,960 29,684,356
5,731,859 1,346,268 1,931,717 5,051,469 1,723,364 12,686 649,485 16,446,848
5,521,900 5,521,900
114,791,926 97,877,280 149,077,225 72,551,312 29,959,591 5,539,579 649,485 470,446,398
(91,103,704)  (16,010,854) (84,103,730) 49,647,615 151,050,937 42,971,642 18,185,986 70,637,892
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. RUEREE (&)

4.3 nEEsRRE (8
(A) BIEFH 3T (8D

ik

R R A R AT B Hof
TR A5eR

ST R AL SR -2+
A B A

ARER(E A BR L SMERE

- St
- (E%

- DA A S
It

- fHBES
- Hith
- WS
(TEERTA
B HAIRIR
- BFE
- BH5E

ST R R R
SRMEE
- Dbt At
Les
- DA R
- WS
R
PIBE B R
my&EE

Hir (EERERIAAE)

Assets

Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Trading
- Debt securities
- Mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss,
non trading
- Debt securities
- Others
- Equity securities
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
- Advances to customers
- Trade bills
- Advances to banks and other
financial institutions
Financial investments
- At fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Atamortised cost
- Equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2023
- =%
i —EAN =|EA +F=EA —ERFE AFNE O FHEE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over 5 HEA 4t
demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
BT BMTE BB BT BT BT OBETR BT
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
22,868,017 30,965,376 53,833,393
1,545,669 727,600 2,273,269
91,089 4,271,524 2,444,116 597,807 7,404,536
77,837 144,603 217,789 250,229
111,531 758,269 5,937,647 6,807,447
1,375,898 1,375,898
362,039 99,767 41,102 210,554 324,262 1,320 1,039,044
41,504,574 10,398,146 17,607,785 61,264,307 112,593,065 45,894,136 4,144,550 293,406,563
19 69,112 104,261 167,899 341,291
692 156,190 156,882
8,247,659 21,756,217 53,644,624 80,243,301 2,972,252 166,864,053
2,736,976 1,677,244 1,885,331 1,097,590 7,297,141
25,606 25,606
407,600 407,600
9,071,270 9,071,270
843,464 843,464
1,283,018 1,756,975 19,671 57,113 538,598 845 94,691 3,750,911
66,017,667 54,476,631 47,682,434 126,573,218 195,539,226 48,868,553 15,990,868 555,148,597
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. RUEREE (&)

4.3 nEEEEE (8D
(A) BIHR T (FD

Hf#

BT R HAt RS R
bk
ARERE RS SHEA
f&

ITEEM TR

EFFK
CLET (s 73 Ak

HANARIF R (DRERET
R ARERIE )

RIERH

TENE SO

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2023
—F =%
g —EAN =@H +=ERs —ERF EFME O FHEE
On Upto 1103 3t0 12 1t05 Over HiA Y

demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
BT ENTOT BT BTT  BITT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,335,424 17,769,803 5,882,567 8,594,098 35,581,892
3,576,107 674,069 1,534,597 5,784,773
150,750 393,778 316,690 278,543 185,385 24,615 1,349,761
98,786,054 72,828,834 116,082,750 97,820,721 8,871,504 394,389,863
925,330 3,589,446 10,375,114 13,829,945 28,719,835
5,938,466 1,893,371 2,066,919 3,647,840 1,680,737 16,373 619,582 15,863,288
5,468,028 5,468,028
108,210,694 97,387,223 128,612,441 122,250,913 24,567,571 5,509,016 619,582 487,157,440
(42,193,027) (42,910,592) (80,930,007) 4,322,305 170,971,655 43,359,537 15,371,286 67,991,157
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rErEEREE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) =HHE M (8D (A) Maturity analysis (continued)

ANEEER @A The Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities which have been
WA ER 2 EE overdue for not more than one month as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is
BN S B AE 5 repayable by different payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is
#F ks TEIHA & actually overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported
E o B EAREER according to the residual maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which
FEE g E & case the amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction
Eo WAEZEET of provisions, if any.

S LG

TRIEE « HAR

S B 4

A48 R 6 H IR 2

B BEEEZE

E 2 EE A 5

J& - RIRF % & H0H

Hlky T AHEE H

o BMYIRZ &

2 CATERAERIFHER

£ (F) -

F{EB B2 N R The disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

FRARRA R
HH -
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. RUEREE (&)

4.3 nEEEEE (8D

(B) #HmALBIH LM
ZRITEBEH

(a) JECTAETRZH

NN
SEo

TR T A
12 H 31
H 2 IECT A
ARG
FIHIHSIRZ ]

N
S ©

SREH

ST LA SRR TP
Rt

ISR AJHRE Y S
i

ERTE

B EAHARITHGE

®IERARE
Fofth e e

SRl

SRENE
ST R ECA R 75
Rt
£f
P
EE e o

bEt AdB & 2 Rl

®ERARE
Fofth e e

SRl

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for

non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

Financial liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Subordinated liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Subordinated liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities
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2024
—= ==

—@AKN =EA +-EA —Z2HE HEHUE FrE
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to5 Over k] f e
1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BT BRTIT BT BT T B¥Tor B¥TT  BETT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
15,009,069 1,548,393 1,042,373 17,599,835
1,400,000 3,821,500 1,022,000 - 6,243,500
188,082,066 134,984,696 64,506,448 11,159,904 398,733,114
1,191,501 8,500,210 2,935,115 18,996,527 - 31,623,353
163,050 163,050 1,304,402 6,858,007 - 8,488,509
6,175,368 1,898,197 5,101,566 709,657 12,677 630,654 14,528,119
211,858,004 150,916,046 74,770,552 32,170,490 6,870,684 630,654 477,216,430

2023
—% =

—EAN =Z@EA +2EA —EOF OFME FiE
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to 5 Over H A 45
1 month  months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BETIT BT BN BMTT BRTT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$°000
21,159,623 6,052,068 8,824,753 36,036,444
3,586,500 680,000 1,568,000 - 5,834,500
171,832,463 117,087,688 99,854,676 9,348,575 398,123,402
945,878 3,679,889 10,722,886 14,623,374 - 29,972,027
- 207,775 831,101 5,652,140 6,691,016
7,283,637 1,995,090 3,183,358 901,269 16,373 611,288 13,991,015
204,808,101 129,494,735 124,361,448 25,704,319 5,668,513 611,288 490,648,404
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiElER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 nEEsRRE (8

(B) AL E 27T
ZRIFHABAER
(&

(b) PTAETEZHS

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows

Ny
JIL

R AL
B 12 H 31 H
LI & &9 5
AR B
(EEiEiE - op -2
HRZITEER
B RPTA A
BAEEER 20T
ER T RN
BHEaNBEE
BERTR) o BRELSY
TTAETAMAR
EYPIRIN TEHE
Ry H M EHY
Ry REITIRAT &
[FERREAT ©

AR B AR
BER T E S
TR EEERE
) e 50 e S B
2 4 I HE (R X
0) - Im%SEER A
BER T E S
TR EEERE
BRI R A

s -

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
mainly include interest rate swaps and foreign exchange options (non-
deliverable) whereas derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a
gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency swaps.
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. RUEREE (&)

4.3 nEEEEE (8D

(B) EEWEHH N
ZRFHABAENR
&

(b) PTAETEZHE
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis

Derivative financial
instruments settled on
a gross basis

Total inflow

Total outflow

Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis

Derivative financial
instruments settled on
a gross basis

Total inflow

Total outflow

2024
—Z =z

—EAN =EA +=fER —2AE AHENE
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over &=t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
AT BWTIT BETOT B%ToT BMTT BETI
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
(191,774) (7,552) (10,145) (186,641)  (1,549)  (397,661)
59,883,823 50,142,362 53,106,030 535,101 - 163,667,316
(59,420,327) (50,443,630) (52,248,518) (535,105) -(162,647,580)

2023
—% =5

—{EAA =WA +TEA —2=2AF AFME
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to 5 Over 4t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BT BT BETT BETT BETT  BETT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
(150,512) (2,476) (29,850) (197,895) (23,800)  (404,533)
64,131,730 20,833,288 6,462,970 - - 91,427,988
(64,063,763) (21,108,139) (6,548,815) - - (91,720,717)
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiElER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REESERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) AN FIHIHSH (B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRTHEBRAESR
(&)

(c) BEAMERI (c) Off-balance sheet items
HH
BRI Loan commitments
A kA £ 7 The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
2024 F 12 H 31 at 31 December 2024 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
H [ % PR other facilities totalled HK$172,380,903,000 (2023: HK$150,323,594,000), of which
B MEMFE > HK$15,259,683,000 (2023: HK$14,522,295,000) are irrevocable. Those loan
FTIMERTE > H commitments can be drawn within one year.
GRIE R

172,380,903,000
7T (2023 4 :
150,323,594,000

T s
15,259,683,000

72023 4 3N
14,522,295,000

7T) BAHEEEE
L - BEHEERC
RN

HY °

WA HE I By ELA S Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

HRE

REHF 2024 Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
12 H 31 HZ W% 2024 totalled HK$52,270,044,000 (2023: HK$54,145,285,000 are maturing no later
Y O I At A 75 than one year.

H R OE N

52,270,044,000

7T (2023 4 :
54,145,285,000
7T ) HEIHIH DR
455'5 o
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, &EUREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREH 4.4 Capital management
AEFEHEAREHAY I The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
R e R B F s e return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
L g TR O A T Y B A TR profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
TEIKE » [E]HE R B B 2R mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
KA - BEREER adequacy.
Z B g E es AR EH

BARGERS AT 7 R
TTEREE AR R ~ [
B AT fe MR i T

fhy -

AREE LB LERE The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
—EHRYNE R EEE capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
SRR - LR statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
(REEEEFE L IFE GRS Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
EMER e ETEEAR periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

TR RAVEDK - BE AR

BEHEEOAEEHE

FRyE AT R M - A
5 R B L SRA T 3%
BRaSHEERNE
TEBAME sl T
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Mg FENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRARER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEHE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AREEPRAEE (EH
JEVBg ) &t RE R
(g ) SHRED
AIETEE A REEA
BOR e 5 b & A
K -

REERAEREEE
M EFEE T AT ER
SRR R
HY3T 5 i F- B ALK
AR (EBIRER
k) STEUAETEERER
b AR - WRE
(<§F’<ﬁ¥(§2§)i°ﬁﬁﬂ>
% 317C g E Rt
HEE R EENES
PR iz 1 28 4= 119 7 455
PREARTOK -

AREEEFL 2024 £
BB A 7T R AP AR
F?Lxﬁé\%%%y*
BUORTH " EEE AR
Fr o PIRVEER - #eE
ﬁ%ﬁ” TS|
B AT S BT 1R
F?I%%LX?HEE%
— T RAMERK
FE 53 o WY B R R B
FrAsivaRsNaEZ > S
‘””*KEIW{EE%L
At — A LER
E—%& Zﬁtb?&?
IRAEEARLLE - [ -
RN S PIN R Ip
REERBE T EFE
o DISEFRR G 3R
R R HE B AR YA R
M o AR RS
BRI
— (&R gy B A
R WEEEE S
2 e T TR i E 9
HE IR R
BAGER -

The Group adopts standardised (credit risk) (“STC”) approach and standardised (market risk)
(“STM”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge and the market risk capital charge
respectively.

The Group adopts the standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate
the capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty and the standardised (operational risk)
(“STO”) approach to calculate the operational risk capital charge and, with the approval from
the HKMA, excluded its structural FX positions pursuant to section 317C of the Banking
(Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market risk capital charge.

The Group adopts an internal capital adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP”) to comply
with the HKMA'’s requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Supervisory Review
Process” in 2024. Based on the HKMA'’s guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP has been initiated to
assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately
captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum
Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating
ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the
flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group considers
this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management and periodically reviews and
adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)

IEAh ZIK’EE\IE%IJi In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the
FEERRE HE Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the
AEEHEES @% implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return
®%EFEETHE c BA on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future
FRBI LA RS ~ B capital requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to
Bl - w51 ensure the Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
SR~ BEEERE L A with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
SR L E AT R return and capital adequacy.
Eﬁ%ﬁ% » (M TR

BEARTRNEAIE
DLfR e SR B R4 R B
WHEART R KE

FEHEEER - BLE 2T
?*F PREFER ~ [
B AR T SR MY iR

Sy o

(A) EEE4ra i (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation
EERENSES The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the Bank
FLwE RS (BRAT and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
¥ CGEA) KA Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with
EEK%ET?EZ,\ g HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.

TEEREEZ

Kﬁ% NFERHRL - 1
Gt EEE T > 7l
o 08 AR S
ERENGE M B

ONE] > AL B
U B 8% — A $RAT
Z M@l -

160



2 NCB #:f 7% 44t

MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(A) BEEsraEmn (&) (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
BIET g ERIST The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
e ML consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as follows:
BEHESTAHE
NV & A &5 2 5F
A -
2024 2023
BEGEH B HREE B
218 Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
BT AT T BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEERGEIRT S ATR Nanyang Commercial Bank
ag=i| Trustee Limited 17,837 17,716 17,404 17,295
SRR EEEATREA Kwong Li Nam Investment
H] Agency Limited 5,629 4,836 4,979 4,730
FEVEREESRTT (R Nanyang Commercial Bank
AN) BIEAE (Nominees) Limited 1,402 1,402 1,418 1,418
PR B B B R A TR NCB Wealth Management
ag=i| Advisor Limited 589,754 507,930 389,277 328,994
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BEREE (&) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(A) BEEsraE s (&) (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
DL B 8 A B 3 The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries
TS TR — of the Bank”.
A AT 2 I
H e
7~ 2024 £ 12 H 31 There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
H MRS A consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
H HEFEEEE R December 2024 (2023: Nil).
ESFEHIE - A
EE g RAGE
(2023 i )-
7~ 2024 £ 12 A 31 Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting scope
H > JRIE(EA SN of consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
=5 ERFEEAEEET consolidation differ as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
AN B E4R
5 i (& 1T 8 A [E
&R 7774 (20238 4F:
fi) o
(B) EALL®E (B) Capital ratio
2024 2023

LR E— R E AR CET1 capital ratio

B 14.55% 13.23%
— B AR Tier 1 capital ratio 16.61% 15.20%
W AREER Total capital ratio 19.89% 18.56%

162



25 NCB #f @+ A

RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. RUEREE (&)

4.4 BAEE ()
(B) BALE (8)
IS A
ﬁfZMﬂ@%w

HEARBED T
T

LB —GEA R

R fttH
E?%?*ﬁ EI’J/“Affgjt
HEfE— B
REFHF 'J
B TR
BT R A e
—HER
WIBAE— B « B
Eilb:
R
AR IR AR T & {5
HAtn &
LB AR T & {5
IRICFRTAE
A EEBENAE
R S 19(5 g 2%
BhETE AR

PR st SR (LA
FACEHER) HETHE
EEGMELA RN
AR EllE

RS EREE
il

R — SO AR
EHTRAEER

AR

BN —4EAR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital

ratios is analysed as follows:

CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments

Retained earnings
Disclosed reserves

CET1 capital before regulatory deductions

CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
Valuation adjustments
Other intangible assets net of deferred tax
liabilities

Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities

Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
risk on fair valued liabilities

Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
investment properties)

Regulatory reserve for general banking risks

Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital

CET1 capital

Additional Tier 1 capital

163

2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

3,144,517 3,144,517
52,648,041 49,895,388
6,911,486 7,197,109
62,704,044 60,237,014
(373) (288)
(1,377,529) (840,471)
(426,595) (551,108)
(1,825) (913)
(6,092,269) (6,720,136)
(2,478,918) (2,275,475)
(10,377,509) (10,388,389)
52,326,535 49,848,625
7,422,026 7,422,026
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Mg FENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRARER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEHE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) EALER (#)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
—REAR Tier 1 capital 59,748,561 57,270,651
4@35“ : Eji‘ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
B = 30| Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any
fﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁzﬁfg related share premium 5,390,554 5,444,365
EERE A GE AR Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
EERGRRE R S — % reserve for general banking risks eligible for
SRATE\ e inclusion in Tier 2 capital 3,660,476 4,201,957
BHEFIRRZ FI AR Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 9,051,030 9,646,322
THER BRI Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
ﬂU[EI”’“\‘“ﬁ‘%H'/\ e Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
AR A 3 R R R from the revaluation of land and buildings
Y (B RIEERR) (own-use and investment properties) eligible
BATEEE G ES for inclusion in Tier 2 capital
By RREAHEE WS 2,741,521 3,024,061
B AR B AR ETE TR Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital
k] 2,741,521 3,024,061
THEAR Tier 2 capital 11,792,551 12,670,383
HEEA Total capital 71,541,112 69,941,034
[sEsR EE AL The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
T
2024 1A 2023 4F
12H 31 H 12531 H
At 31 December At 31 December
2024 2023
[hsE R B E AR Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 2.5%
W R ETE AL R Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.29% 0.58%
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MEERKEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. aRiEfER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) BHEAEL®E (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
g (BR1T% (& In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Capital Conservation Buffer (“CCB”)
) #RANY - 5 AR is designed to ensure banks build up capital outside periods of stress of 2.5% of risk-
ERETEA (TCCB weighted assets (“RWAs”). The Countercyclical Capital Buffer (“CCyB*) which is set on
b ) HWEHE an individual country basis and is built up during periods of excess credit growth to protect
fr SR 17 1 = BE HH against future losses. The currently applicable CCyB for Hong Kong is 0.5% of RWAs.

Hh o AT b O
BEZ 25% 25
A o iR R
A (TCCyB EE& )
= R SEEE
EE - HEMESE
HhRIE IR R
TORAHIIRR - &
S b T TR 20 P 11
R EEAR R
el Bz o A E 2
0.5% -

BEHREABEEN The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section “Regulatory
R E R R Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.

KR 1T W H

www.ncb.com.hk

o EREEE 6

HIEE o
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. RUEREE (&)

4.4 BAEHE (8
(C) TEfREESR

—HEAR
TRAREE AR R i

TRIREER

BRI 2
AR FEE R AT AR
w7 #®@ H
www.ncb.com.hk
BB

HIEE o

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(C) Leverage ratio

2024 2023

BT T AT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Tier 1 capital 59,748,561 57,270,651
Leverage ratio exposure 580,601,607 596,049,346
Leverage ratio 10.29% 9.61%

The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section

“Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENABHAMNE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

FTA PAA (s E 5 E S All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements

RN BNEENEE are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
Wi E BV ® SRS measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
1358 T AN fEEE NEE significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input
A MERBRERNTE - % that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

FERT IS RS ETTERTER

FHEIRZE Z AT R R

M IR S EET
BHEAZEZREERA

ZREE ¢

- BjEA MEEEERE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
BAEERE 5 A E liabilities. This category includes listed equity shares, debt instruments issued by certain
(A& ) - IL/gdE governments, certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious metals.

i bR RS - I
JFE TR LA -+
BN BT AEEL KX

HEE e

- ETJEc ThEMEER - Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
ity Pt B FH Y A A0 i 4 1A the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
Z ([ERG SRR A\ E majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities, discounted bills and certificates of
SEEFEAEE) nE deposit with quote from pricing services vendors. It also includes precious metals and
RO 22 - =4k properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

BLE KBTS 5 /Y
PIEEYY -~ A ERE S
JTE 726 18 HL (B A% B (755
75 ~ W ARG - [F
ISINCREE IR ZE=3: i}
BNRET T EKH
B BB S -

- FEEER TIENEER - Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
it Fr iR FH Y i g 4 X the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment, debt
Z ([ERGEEERE A E instruments and forfeiting with significant unobservable components. It also includes
SEAEARE) B AT properties with significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

e - It ErE A E

R H 2 N R Y B e
%E - AH LA REE
& - FERF N ERE S A A
ISR RET TEKR
FEEHIYIE -
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

B DU AR O 5
WwRNAEERAR  AEER
GG EIERES
HHEWRHEE2E (ER
HERATEARAENY
8 7 RREHRINER ) LIEE
BREAREBS ML
R -

5.1 DAREBRSRT
223

REEET T TENLS
FUEE G AR
FUE S LY A 4R
P B T S
BEGI A A BB
HATGRET < M {E SR
FERA AR - HoAt
P E IR P B
HEZAEESECER
il B SR TR 1 B g O
e

—RRIMS > SR LA DU
— LA Rt BT
WA HE RIS 13 570
FTAE R E R AR AT
e N A DU E SRR
PUE— & & THYSE:
AT e S R R R
L Ry X R AERYET 2
L - AEER A {E R
LB —T R R Bl
il T EAVET B AR

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front
offices. Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are
reported to the Management.

Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument is the individual instrument. HKFRS
13 permits a portfolio exception, through an accounting policy election, to measure the fair
value of a portfolio of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of the net open
risk position when certain criteria are met. The Group applies valuation adjustments at an
individual instrument level, consistent with that unit of account.
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.1 DAREBRSRT

& (&)

B AT AP T 5 1AL
FR{ER > AR A —
fEER AL K5
7 - 58 {5 2R S < i
HHYA A -

BN AEEFFAN S
LR A ERG A
I EESBEREARHE
&~ IR~ HER R R
PGSRBS ~ IR ~ S5
FHEEZ= R HAth - $32
VDR AN R E o
TEHHIZEL -

JH LU E PA T 2t TR
D AERIEEITENT

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and
obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt instruments, certificates of deposit and forfeiting

=

BB T HAYA LE B
GhT ~ S SR B N L
i E AR HFE R fE (hHY
T 55 ¥ {8 SIS I s B 3
ST IATE - i
BB R A R — {8 )
HBEHARASE R D—
8 =T S v 5 1 A A
[\ TR B EE R
72 Z MEFR R — A DL
R [EIE E da i S 2R By
A [ 2 H FEXEHH
TR IEERR - 5L
SHETS LB
F T 4 B W R HY
TS BHEEE -

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market
for instruments with similar risk or a discount rate which is referred to the transaction
interest rate of instruments with similar risk as at the end of the month and inter-bank bid
rate as the final discount rate. These inputs are observable or can be corroborated by
observable or unobservable market data.
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

51 DA RMESFESRIT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
A (&)
FIETE Derivatives

BN GHINTAE TR A
HYELFRANE ~ FIJ= 2
Ry ~ s e IR &
- U1 TREELHIHER
F R SRR A
B R R R A S A
Fffrie e - FrisE R 2%
Fo T £2 SR H B A2 T
S#dE - AT 2
FEAER R B LA
FRe - AT EER I 2
EIDSEIES RN S i/
el I S R ME R R P IR
GBI i -
—EEERITA TR A
4 N RMERHEARSD K
T8 L T Ry B -

KEEHE SN GHINT
ATEFRTEEME
RN B ERE -
B iR T 5 N 2R
b XA T EEE
HESEEEENE -
HRIHE X E R e —
AT > DARATEIRL
E -~ B EYR R Y [o] 5RiE
o

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate or commodity. The fair values of these contracts are mainly measured using
valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The
inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest
rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and volatilities. Unobservable inputs such
as volatility surface may be used for less commonly traded option products which are
embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values
are determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&
51 PARESBNSRT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
& (&)
(A) ARERER (A) Fair value hierarchy
SRIEE Financial assets

ANREE T ARG L
EREzE (M 20)

- KoM
- [EEREIR

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Trading

- Debt securities and

treE
- BEIEELIS Sl
Lt AdE2 -

certificates of deposit
- Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit

IEs

- S

-

- BRATES
PTESRTA
CHfzE21)
DL S (L AA
SR S T
(it 23)

- B
teit
- Rty

SHEHE
ANREE T ARG L
ERefE (M 28)

- oM
PrESmTA
(K¥EE21)

or loss, non trading
- Debt securities
- Others
- Equity securities
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)

Financial investments at fair

value through other
comprehensive income
(Note 23)

- Debt securities and

certificates of deposit

- Equity securities

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or
loss (Note 28)
- Trading

Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
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2024
£—B% FB% F=B% et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BTt BTt BTt BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 6,912,002 - 6,912,002
- - 1,011 1,011
- 2,458,923 1,906,357 4,365,280
60,671 - 1,450,222 1,510,893
401,386 2,514,382 - 2,915,768
11,547,452 162,519,969 - 174,067,421
. - 18,074 18,074
- 6,203,588 - 6,203,588
192,598 572,635 - 765,233
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

5.1 DAREBRSRT
& (&)

(A) ARMERIER
&

GEE
Aol R AR
S (i 20)

- T
- SR
G
- AL o fE 5
T AJER -
IER
- B
- 3t
- S
PSR
CHfsE 21)
DIA O B (L A Eeft
ST
(FifE 23)

- B
tE
- Rty

BRI
NAEE LEABR L
R fE (M 28)

- oM
PTEERMTH
(K$&E21)

AEEE SRR
AENENTICES
— R R R
RS (2023 45

f) -

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2023
E—lEik IR E=IEH HEst
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Trading
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit - 7,404,536 - 7,404,536
- Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss, non trading
- Debt securities - 222,440 27,789 250,229
- Others - 680,312 6,127,135 6,807,447
- Equity securities 57,635 - 1,318,263 1,375,898
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) 364,332 674,712 - 1,039,044
Financial investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
(Note 23)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 5,761,761 161,102,292 - 166,864,053
- Equity securities - - 25,606 25,606
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or
loss (Note 28)
- Trading - 5,784,773 - 5,784,773
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) 152,775 1,196,986 - 1,349,761

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
Group during the year (2023: Nil).
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

5.1 DAREBRSRT
& (&)

(B) E=BHHIHEE
)]

2024 FE1H1H
g
- gk
- G (BB
Wiz
- HoA LAY o fE 8
B3t AR 2 &
T HSE5E

- HAh s

- DAl AR
< T U 2 Y <
MEECARE

Bk

WE
FRE ~ FE B R EIH

#2024 FE12 H 31 H

2024 £ 12 A 31 H
FrA SR T ]
WET ARG RATRE
B RRAE

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

2024

SREE

Financial assets

BlasaEstA
HAr2mERES
SR AR ﬁfﬁfﬁ
LIt AR investments at
Mandatorily measured at fair value through fair value
profit or loss through other
RS comprehensive
Non trading income
ERE s e frag s e frag s
Debt HAtr Equity Equity
securities Others securities securities
BT T AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2024 27,789 6,127,135 1,318,263 25,606
Gains
- Income statement
- Net trading (loss)/gain
(990) 70,403 131,959 -
- Net loss on other
financial instruments at
fair value through profit
or loss (25,788) (10,710) - -
- Other comprehensive
income
- Change in fair value of
financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income - - - (7,329)
Additions - 180,478,775 - -
Disposals, redemptions and
maturity - (184,759,246) - (203)
At 31 December 2024 1,011 1,906,357 1,450,222 18,074
Total unrealised loss for the
period included in
income statement for
financial assets held as
at 31 December 2024 (25,788) (10,710) - -
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

5.1 BIA B ENERET
3¢ ))

(B) B=|BEHIHEZ
B (8

K 20234FE1H1H
Wras
- gk
- PR GMRGR
- BRI e EEE
ST AEZE 2 B
THF(EE),
Wzs
- HAh s

- DU R fE AR A
i 4 T g 25 9
S E A
felEs(L

WE
FRE ~ FE B R EIH

A 2023FE12 H 31 H

42023412 331 H
FrA SR T ]
WET ARG RATRE
B RRAE

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

At 1 January 2023
Gains
- Income statement
- Net trading loss
- Net (loss)/gain on other
financial instruments
at fair value through
profit or loss
- Other comprehensive
income
- Change in fair value of
financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income
Additions
Disposals, redemptions and
maturity

At 31 December 2023

Total unrealised loss for the
period included in
income statement for
financial assets held as
at 31 December 2023
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2023

ERNERE

Financial assets

AL
(L3t AdEas

Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or

DUARMERTA
HAth-2= RS
HY<B R &
Financial
investments at fair
value

Igss through other

IR G comprehensive

Non trading income

, Heli s
(EvGEces FHtt B tyse 2% Equity
Debt securities Others Equity securities securities
ATT ATT AT T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
28,519 9,522,003 1,345,897 21,844
(606) (216,788) (27,634) -
(124) 395,360 - -

- - - 3,762

- 151,420,348 - -

- (154,993,788) - -

27,789 6,127,135 1,318,263 25,606
(124) (5,717) - -
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

5.1 PA B ENERET
=3¢ ))

(B)

F=RREE S
B (8

A 2024 4£ 12 A 31
HF 2023 4£ 12 H
NHEREE=R
BRI TR EER
DA B st AR
mBREE IR L
R -

Elpy AR AW T/ AN
LA SR EET A
BEMLLARREETA
ot g < B
HE > AEERRS)
T HH A
ERYETEFRERA T
HEEELERTE
HYA TR 20
BEASE R S el
THREDEFE=]Z
e o AEEC I
A P B AR B
FEEE ISR TR
0]

JE LR RERI 2 el
VEE =Bl sav YGRS
HAE . PHE
BIAIEE - 2R
& ] R A
F o Rt s ERHE
EEE - ASER L
HIRA R LB EET
S ERAHRVEAAH
B2

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, financial instruments categorised as
level 3 are mainly comprised of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
unlisted equity shares.

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss
and fair value through other comprehensive income, the Group obtains valuation
quotations from counterparties which may be based on unobservable inputs with
significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been classified
by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control procedures to control
the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are determined with reference to multiples of
comparable listed companies, such as average of the price/earning ratios of
comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are not available. The
significant unobservable inputs applied in the fair values measurement of the Group’s
unlisted equity shares are as follows:
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
5.1 DIARESTERNSRLT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
A (&)
(B) E=/BBHVEHE (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
B (8
BEAFIEESH THEESBEA RENR R
{EE A Significant HiE Relationship of unobservable inputs
Valuation method | unobservable inputs Range to fair value
T BRI S 6.1-14.2 T BFfEEEE - AnEES
Price/earning ratios (2023: 6.8 - 13.0) The higher the price/earning ratios,
the higher the fair value.
Ti{E /MR E G 09-25 M WREFERS - AnERES
Price/Book ratios (2023: 1.5-4.1) The higher the Price/Book ratios,
Btz e or the higher the fair value.
Market comparison REEEEAR ST 1.3-5.0 TSEE AR ST 8 R B A R e
approach o BESY R (2023: 2.8 - 5.4) ARERE
EV/EBITDA The higher the EV/EBITDA ratios,
the higher the fair value.
SRENPEREZK 30.0% RENER KA - A EAE
Liquidity discount (2023: 30.0%) The higher the liquidity discount,
the lower the fair value.
e EBliE s 1.5% - 4.8% i A ERE
Discounted cash flow Discount rates (2023: 1.4% - 1.8%) The higher the discount rates,
approach the lower the fair value.
HHALZ% N NI NI
Recent transaction approach N/A N/A N/A
SRR R e The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios, price/booking ratios and
Za Tl EV/EBITDA of appropriate comparables. Had the significant unobservable inputs applied
FlfEH -~ TifE REm on the valuation techniques increased/decreased by 5% (31 December 2023: 5%), the
R E S EE R A Group’s other comprehensive income and profit or loss would have increased/decreased
HEEEMEITE R by HK$904,000 (31 December 2023: HK$1,280,000) and HK$72,511,000 (31 December
BB A A EF AR 2023: HK$65,913,000) respectively.
[ RBH (R - TR R
Bl EHYERR

TS B
B 5% (2023
12H31H:5%) -
I 2 45 B L {4
g 4 0 s ) 5 4
R D
904,000 j1:(2023 4
12 B 31 H : B
1,280,000 JT.) fili#
iz 72,511,000 ¢
(2023 12 H 31
H : ##% 65,913,000
) -
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MBEHFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

51 DA RfEEFESRIT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
H (&
(B) E£E=JBRAVIE H &) (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
(80

NEEE SR The fair value is negatively correlated to the discount rates. Had the significant
IR EFEE A unobservable inputs applied on the valuation techniques increased/decreased by 1%
{4 o S FEFM G ER (31 December 2023: 1%), the Group’s profit or loss would have decreased/increased
fl_EAYE AR W] 2 by HK$259,000 (31 December 2023: HK$737,000).

SN 1%
(2023 £ 12 F 31
H:1%) o AIALEE
i R SRR
hgfinEs 259,000 T
(2023 £ 12 F 31
H : ¥ 737,000

JT) o

& IE LT RRERA Y When the fair value of the unlisted shares are affected by more than one unobservable
NEEZRZR— input, the aforesaid impact reflects the most favourable or the most unfavourable
TEA AR 285 change from varying inputs individually.

BT AR BE
DAEElERIRNEES (3

A B A e A F
8t -
5.2 JEDIA BT BNESHEL 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

TH
N SABESE UATE —FF e W Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
BLEAH R TS B R information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods and
[E] 4§k T H 2 &k 2K assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument
i e AN Z AR AR as far as practicable.

T PR 1 L P R B A
BRI RZ A RE -

E RGBT M Ho Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills
R G e R 5

ki

KE Ty 2 BREENE Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
B REE B —FEN sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

FH - HAREEBLA 0E

LiEPEI
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.2 JEDIA SRfERT BRYSRE

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

TH (8
BIEEK Advances to customers
KE Iy 2 B EREF Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear interest at

ByFile - A
FIEL SORH B R
s -

LI e s AME ST B BV (R

prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

BIR
LIk s AT BB (R
BT E 2N fofE e
LS. WPAA BT
HIEH TR ZJ57%
FHE]

EETER
K5 2 B PR
LS e EEI ) H
BRI BN AU AR -

ER T EBE 2 T

The fair value of debt instruments at amortisation cost is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

0
WETAZAREEE
S E 5.1 PIBAA S
R (5 T AR AFRE
BRI T -

BEEH
TR A nEEE
EIEE 5.1 WELA e fEET
S TE R FGE
BRHZI7EME -

B A AR T (B B
EHEnSBmT AN T

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note
5.1.

Subordinated liabilities
The fair value of the instrument is determined by using the same approach as those debt
instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being

FERIELLA REFTEN approximation of fair values.
ERl T HEZ IRAEMS
fofE -
2024 2023
RRTAIE A WA MRIHE AVINIER
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
BT AT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
DUERCA RS T ERY Debt instruments at
BB TR amortised cost 1,107,022 1,104,068 7,297,141 7,275,390
ol =i Financial liabilities
S TERE R AT Debt securities and certificates
e of deposit in issue 29,684,356 29,983,533 28,719,835 28,831,345
®IEARE Subordinated liabilities 5,521,900 5,584,129 5,468,028 5,365,073
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IR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
5.2 JEDIA SRfERT BRYSRE
IE @&
TRIPREMBEH N R EH)
SRMTAZARESR -
EREE
LIgE e AR ST B AV R
BIA

ERAR

E BT HEBE ST R AFR
G

’RIEAME

EREE

LIgE e AR ST BAVR
BIA

ERAR

DR ITEBE R RAFER
7%
IS

’RIEAME

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values

disclosed.
2024
FRER FE& B=ER dEst
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARTIT BRTT  BRTT  BRTT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

Financial assets
Debt instruments at
amortised cost 388,260 715,808 - 1,104,068

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates of

deposit in issue - 29,983,533 - 29,983,533

Subordinated liabilities - 5,584,129 - 5,584,129
2023

E—TEH Ik E=ER “HEt

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

Financial assets
Debt instruments at
amortised cost 25,215 7,250,175 - 7,275,390

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates of

deposit in issue - 28,831,345 - 28,831,345
Subordinated liabilities - 5,365,073 - 5,365,073
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MBEHFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.3 DA EEFERIESR 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

IH
A5 [E A — L G {E % The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to determine
i Bk oE B 1T 15 R A e the fair value of non-financial instruments.

EIEERTRAIARE -

EEMER FRE Investment properties and premises

KREEE W] oy Bt The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
BYIERFEE - FrA RS Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued. The valuations were carried out
B2 8EMERFEED by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among
PEITEEAS - (G {E I their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
BN 3% IR K experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The Group’s
HIRAE®EST  HEERE Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation
T AN B el 2w A4S assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each interim and
HEg g NEEXGEE annual reporting date. There has been no change in valuation methods during the year.
2z ANE » S EYIZE

Fifr i 8 R A A

85 o EASENEEFR
FAEAHET T > AEEE
g & RN A S A
EJ77% - (S E B A E
G - AHETTENRENG
HisE -

(i) L _RERAES (i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
=AM E 7T E
KRZE

W HE B ek The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
YN ARE Ty comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
SEOLIRYE income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
FHAH R E (T appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
LA ) e E and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
B & RERLE entire measurement.

(BAEAE) -
A LEE ) E R
RARE//E Pdialop-
B E AR - I
HEMEWT R
Beat B AR E

B 981
WE

KEEH 2 Y EHIAL The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC where the
&R T property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent and
BT - B R capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
&L A0 EZE At indirectly in these markets.

5 - ALY 2

B - fisiHeE

AR — I A AE

IEE T8 b

Ednifie sECEn
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties and premises (continued)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is determined using

AR EBYHEZ N either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted
TEEE TS for a premium or a discount specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared
BOERUWIAEARE > to the comparable properties.
HiEAEBY¥EM
BN ALY
BT (0%
REEE °
UTEBEANES The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
IS0 B e measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
ZERZ REEY
PR OIS E 7T
AR BRI E
R :
RUEERRENRERIR G
fREJTE BERFTEERR pilil- R Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
FAthE HIGELEUED| VISR AT LA 1 1.9% PrEms » A ERE -
Other U NEAE B EZWE (2023: 2.7%) The higher the discount,
properties Market| Discount on features of the lower the fair value.

comparison the property compared
approach or| to comparable properties
income
capitalisation
approach

VAR B TR A
MWE 228
AL IZEAE A IR ZR
bR PIAIREC TR
TG - firE - F
M IR0
J& ~ i~ AR

s

Discount on features of a property is determined after taken into account various factors,
such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition, floor level,
size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

5.3 DA BT BRI EERE
TH (8

i

f

Wl

5B LN SRS
BT E A T3
FERTTISRE R AR -

i

(A) AARMERIER

FEERIERE
REYsE (s 24)
VISE ~ 231 RSt
(BffaE 25)
- B
HAtrgeE (et 27)
- B

FEERIERE
REsE (s 24)
VISE ~ 231 Rttt
(3£ 25)
- B
HtrgeE (et 27)
- B

REEZIESMEER
FENRAERE—BRE
Z g [EHIERS (2023
) -

Precious metals

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in

active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties (Note 24)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 27)
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets
Investment properties (Note 24)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 27)
- Precious metals

2024
F—Ek E_Ek F=Ek &Eat
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 17,100 400,016 417,116
- 4,203,391 2,690,591 6,893,982
118,676 - - 118,676
2023
Rk BBk E=IE) aaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AEEETIT ARTIT T ARTIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- 12,600 395,000 407,600
- 3,431,406 4,427,661 7,859,067
105,937 178,329 - 284,266

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2023: Nil).
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

5.3 DA BT BRI EERE
TH (8

(B) E=B&HIHE 2%

20244 FE1H1H
g
- gk
- EVSR AR ERE L
TR
- Bt BEZFEHR
- HAtr s
- PR
H
e
i
EERdipag
T
b S0 A2

A 2024£12 H 31 H

it 2024 £ 12 [ 31 HEFARY
FEERE A ET AR
REPR SRS
- REVEEARERRE L F
518
- EfhFE R

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2024
Gains
- Income statement
- Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Reclassification
Transfer out
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2024

Total unrealised loss for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31

December 2024

- Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

- Net loss from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2024
ISR E

Non-financial assets
Wiz ~ 237
Yo&idi
Properties,
plant and
‘&Y% equipment
Investment EE
properties Premises
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000
395,000 4,427,661
(43,600) -
- (14,512)
- (182,789)
716 10,494
- (138,837)
- (123,000)
47,900 (47,900)
- (1,215,120)
- (25,406)
400,016 2,690,591
(43,600) -
- (14,512)
(43,600) (14,512)
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

5.3 DA BT BRI EERE
TH (8

(B) E=BRAIHEEE
&
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g
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H
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(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

At 1 January 2023
Gains
- Income statement
- Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Additions
Depreciation
Reclassification
Transfer out
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2023

Total unrealised loss for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31

December 2023

- Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

- Net loss from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2023
JEeREE
Non-financial assets
VIS ~ B5HF
P&
Properties,
plant and
s equipment
Investment BEiE
properties Premises
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
545,740 6,631,015
(8,240) -
- (1,846)
- 36,508
- 21,309
- (144,511)
(142,500) 142,500
- (2,242,027)
- (15,287)
395,000 4,427,661
(8,240) -
- (1,846)
(8,240) (1,846)
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RN EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABAMRME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&

5.3 LA R EATIEER
IR (&

(B) E=BHAIHAESH)

(&
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BAh E YIS B
A EE SR AR E
EZEE GIED
AR R AL P
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SRR
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b SIEWPEBEEA
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable properties
during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with reference to
differences in features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent
market transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on features
applied between the subject and comparable properties would change from year to year
accordingly. As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable market
inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.

185



25 NCB #f @+ A

BRI (8
6. JFEFIEUWA

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6. Net interest income

2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FIRUCA Interest income
TFIUTA 5] B HoAM 4 R i i Due from banks and other financial institutions
HIFH 1,551,575 1,251,764
BEEK Advances to customers 14,348,670 14,885,886
LR E Financial investments 6,817,429 5,567,584
A Others 66,415 60,102
22,784,089 21,765,336
FIEZH Interest expense
(] 28 e FLAM < R RS (Y Due to banks and other financial institutions
R (1,201,938) (1,913,365)
-GN Deposits from customers (12,052,587) (10,289,498)
CR T EBE 7 M AT Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue (874,833) (1,081,827)
®“IEAE Subordinated liabilities (321,913) (211,735)
THE&EE Lease liabilities (26,922) (29,691)
Hoftr Others (218,263) (237,693)
(14,696,456) (13,763,809)
FREREBA Net interest income 8,087,633 8,001,527

Pl bt BRI e fE B b
BT AR S R A B R
B EPTE AR E A RA]
B -

All the above interest income and interest expense are for financial assets and financial

liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
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REFE
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HEEN
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SRR
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HoAth

FREE R KA
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LA E MR
- MR E R A
- MR E R

- (ERb R EAMZEEEE)
- Mg R HEIA
- PRsE RS

7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Loan commissions
Insurance

Bills commissions
Securities brokerage
Funds distribution
Payment services

Safe deposit box

Credit card business

Trust and custody services
Currency exchange

Others

Fee and commission expense
Securities brokerage

Credit card business

Payment services

Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from

- financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value

through profit or loss

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

- trust and other fiduciary activities

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

187

2024 2023
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

332,080 419,668
390,134 364,931
188,410 206,094
167,520 149,265
100,949 90,727
52,303 44,686
38,460 40,444
10,366 3,667
879 172
4,800 837
119,591 112,745
1,405,492 1,433,236
(19,925) (21,256)
(5,322) (2,693)
(16) (20)
(70,558) (55,665)
(95,821) (79,634)
1,309,671 1,353,602
512,439 613,728
(15,579) (7,792)
496,860 605,936
13,776 13,903
(1,317) (1,317)
12,459 12,586
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MsEFENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8. FX Gt 8. Net trading gain
il () A Net gain/(loss) from
- HNEERZ 5 Ko NEAS B 7E - foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products

- FIR TR R R EEFH - interest rate instruments and items under
HH fair value hedge

- B TE - equity instruments

- P - commodities

9. Hir&#EEIFWZS 9. Net gain on other financial assets

DA EE BET AF A 2 E Net gain on financial investments measured at fair value
Wt Y s i 2 D s through other comprehensive income
HA Others

188

2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

82,107 84,369
297,428 333,495
5 14
(1,480) 18,375
378,060 436,253

2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$000

487,913 326,527

(325) (1,667)

487,588 324,860
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10. Other operating income

Dividend income from investment in securities

- Unlisted investments

Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties
Others

2024 2023
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

1,402 1,467

5,006 6,446

(1,823) (1,290)
13,379 9,894
17,964 16,517

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$758,000 (2023:
HK$642,000) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let

during the year.

11. Net charge of impairment allowances

Balances with banks and
other financial institutions

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Other assets

Financial guarantees

Loan commitments

Net charge of impairment allowances
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2024 2023
WETIT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

(1,623) 114
(3,022,909) (3,240,516)
21,234 22,579
1,758 (4,897)
39,331 65,608
17,147 15,161
(2,945,062) (3,141,951)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12. Operating expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs
- Pension cost
- Supplementary retirement benefits

Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
depreciation)
- leases of short-term or low-value assets
- Information technology
- Others

Depreciation and amortisation
Auditor’'s remuneration
- Audit services
- Non-audit services
Other operating expenses
- Outsourcing activities fee
- Others
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2024 2023
BETT BETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000

1,530,534 1,477,119
251,265 268,881
5,393 5,600
1,787,192 1,751,600
8,833 11,046
147,532 90,412
79,445 74,274
235,810 175,732
648,920 593,947
8,427 8,217
1,783 1,969
313,122 438,640
735,433 690,586
3,730,687 3,660,691
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment properties

Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment
properties

14. Net loss from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and

equipment

Net gain from disposal of premises

Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings

Net loss from revaluation of premises
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2024 2023
AT WETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(44,300) (9,040)
2024 2023
BT T
HK$’000 HK$000
30,860 -
(243) (6,881)
(61,090) (1,846)
(30,473) (8,727)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15. Taxation

Taxation in the income statement represents:

2024 2023
BT T IT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation 32,557 334,476
- Under/(Over)-provision in prior years

31,907 (10,204)
64,464 324,272
Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation 16,090 143,904
- Over-provision in prior years (102) (11,233)
80,452 456,943
Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits 392,578 (206,199)
473,030 250,744

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2024 2023

BRI AT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Profit before taxation 3,950,272 3,693,193

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%)

651,795 609,377

Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 15,188 (32,158)

Income not subject to taxation (261,188) (294,978)

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 118,755 61,034

Tax losses not recognised 3 2

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (7) (8)

Under/(Over)-provision in prior years 31,805 (21,437)

Foreign withholding tax (514) (420)
Adjustment in respect of cost and distribution payment

for additional equity instruments (82,807) (70,668)

Taxation charge 473,030 250,744

Effective tax rate 11.97% 6.79%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
16. Dividends

2024 2023
ARTT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
No interim dividend declared and paid (2023: Nil)
Final dividend proposed after the reporting date of
HK$42.5054 per share (2023: Nil)
(297,538) -

The above final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholder(s) at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The proposed final dividend has not been recognised as a liability
at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of employment
after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 1 to 9 years of service are entitled
to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from 10% to 90% upon
termination of employment for other reasons other than summary dismissal. All
employer’s contributions received by employee are subject to MPF Schemes
Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the
trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential
Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2024 amounting to approximately HK$42,339,000 (2023: approximately
HK$50,921,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$2,996,000 (2023: approximately HK$2,488,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$20,526,000 (2023: approximately HK$13,914,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2024, after a deduction of forfeited contributions of
approximately HK$202,000 (2023: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) FREFIZ5:TE (b) Defined benefit schemes
AEERE T —HIE
FEREENFEF R
EHE B TRAE R
RET - fEZETEIT »
B TR ZBRKRER
BIE R BE BR
G R HAE RER] -

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its retired employees.
Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits which included fully
redeemed medical care, housing allowance and other retirement benefits.

AR R R R R
Rk BT 2 4
A -

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the life expectancy
for pensioners.

Fi7E M2 18 A R HE IR
B 2w — IR G
B~ 2024 412 H 31
H PATHE R R B
ArkE R ET AT -

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out at 31 December 2024 by using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

195

TEARE SR AT EH 2 The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period are as
FEEREREAT follows:

2024 2023
PTELR (%) Discount rate (%) 3.90 3.80
TERAEE R (R R I R (%) Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6.0 6.0
TERAB G GRS I B R (%) Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0
TERRB RS &b SRR (%) Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0
TEHAH &30 £%(%) Expected rate of rental increases (%) 2.0 3.0
TERAEERR (%) Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 1.0-20.0 3.0-18.0
TRHASE L2 Expected death rate wEANOEGR FEAOEGER
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Life Tables Life Tables
2023 2022
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(b) FEFIZsEtE (&)

EAENTR S
R IR B 5
A

e
TR B b bR S &

THHPBET =R

e
TR B R b B S &

THHPET =R

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end of the
reporting period is shown below:

Discount rate

Expected rate of medical
insurance cost

Expected death rate

Discount rate

Expected rate of medical
insurance cost

Expected death rate

196

2024

FERIZEAER] FREFZEER]
REZ g/ ARYEZ W/

¢: 4P (BD)
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

EE=RHhn in defined EER D in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate  obligations in rate  obligations
BT AT

% HK$°000 % HK$°000
0.25 (3,959) 0.25 4,204
0.25 3,188 0.25 (3,034)
0.05 (1,866) 0.05 1,949

2023

FUE i 1A FUE 2 (@A
ARYEZ B/ NG e/

CR) CR)
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

[pezas2yi| in defined EbE D in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
ARTIT AT

% HK$'000 % HK$'000

1.0 (14,156) 1.0 18,447

0.5 7,634 0.5 (6,755)

0.1 (3,465) 0.1 3,824
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MBEEN= (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. BIREFFRAS (&) 17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) FLEFZSETE (8) (b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
bt R S A AR The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that
HAR F Bk o &l extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes
B R FLE A s e in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
RIEZ % -
HFEEE W s 2 N BRI AR ST The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of the
FIaEp T - plan is as follows:
2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREM Zs5TE] Defined benefit schemes
- SRS - Current service cost 1,954 1,660
- AR - Past service cost
- BhEIsE - plan amendment - -
- TR B - Net interest cost 3,439 3,940
4 Total expenses 5,393 5,600
TE&RE B R TR The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
FTEITVEER ST in respect of the plan is as follows:
2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B a5 TS Defined benefit schemes
- (R NS EES - Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in
BIEER) Assumptions 7,853 (11,024)
- R EpER R LR RN R - Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from experience
B/(ZER) adjustments 2,405 (4,781)
N EmUWER LI SR ETE Components of defined benefit costs
FIRAE > recognised in comprehensive income 10,258 (15,805)
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17. BAREFIEE (8) 17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) FEfizsstEl (8) (b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
AT EITPREEEAT - The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:
2024 2023
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
A=t Benefit liability
w1H1H At 1 January 92,336 106,770
= AR A Current service cost 1,954 1,660
AR A Past service cost
- EhEmsE - plan amendment R
SFH B Net interest cost 3,439 3,940
E T ESEETE(BER) Actuarial losses/(gain) on remeasurement 10,258 (15,805)
FEFISZ 2R Benefit paid (3,655) (4,229)
w12 H31H At 31 December 104,332 92,336
REFLEF S 1EF S A Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future years are as follows:
RARZ FAHABASCA0E
2024 2023
BT ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FA 12 {E H AN Within the next 12 months 4,801 3,201
2FE 54 Between 2 and 5 years 18,753 13,328
6 & 10 Between 6 and 10 years 26,143 19,143
10 F2LE Over 10 years 208,634 229,081
THHHZERE Total expected payments 258,331 264,753
#2024 12 H 31 H> As at 31 December 2024, the average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the
S 28 (B R A AT ) end of the reporting period is 15.65 years (2023: 18.1 years).
SR FEH AR
15.65 (2023 4 18.1
G
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18. &% - 5@E¥E A A8 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

EEINSL

(a) E=EMiS (a) Directors’ emoluments

EEEAREHFRA IR
TEERRRITRE
BE A SRt 2 ik
il AT R EWCR
Wz MR

[

4 Fees
i

\|
/]

i< Other emoluments

199

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect
of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group
during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
BETT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

2,655 2,882
10,439 18,355
13,094 21,237
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18. &% - 5@E¥E A A8 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

;EEAE< (continued)
(&)
(b) CG-5 TEAREH A (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5
ERFEANEWNH
)]
HeERFE#EH 2 CG-5 Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the HKMA,
R (e Y B I ol P S details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group
50) REEAREE Y = during the year are as follows:
HEHEANERTEAE

HEREEEIE L0 -

(i) PERPTFHIEEN (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2024
RREEAR FEAR
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEIRE JEIRE
Non- WEIE et Non- BiE 45t
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total

ARTIL BT AT ARTIL BRTIT BWMTT
HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$°000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$°000

[ Fixed remuneration
B Cash 22,090 - 22,090 30,323 - 30,323
HAt Other forms 3,168 - 3,168 3,467 - 3,467
FLEETE Variable remuneration
b Cash 857 3,421 4,278 3,918 2,612 6,530
26,115 3,421 29,536 37,708 2,612 40,320
2023
ERETAE B YN=|
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEIRIE JRIRIE
Non- PEHE HaEt Non- IR AE YT
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT EETT BETT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ Fixed remuneration
Bl Cash 24,283 - 24,283 25,598 - 25,598
Hrp = Other forms 3,371 - 3,371 2,736 - 2,736
FLEETE Variable remuneration
IR Cash 4,655 5,801 10,456 5,652 3,768 9,420
32,309 5,801 38,110 33,986 3,768 37,754
DL_E#RELEE 8 44( 2023 The remuneration above includes 8 (2023: 8) members of Senior Management and
FI8K) SHEH AR 16 (2023: 14) members of Key Personnel. The list of members is as of 31 December
F 16 % (2023 4F - 14 2024.

#) EEAE - #2024
12 7 31 HRVAERIA
BARBEEYET -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

;EEAE< (continued)
(&)
(b) CG-5 TEAREH A (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5
ERFEANEWNH (continued)
B (&)
(ii) IEZEFHN (ii) Deferred remuneration
2024 2023
EREEAR EAEEE AR
Senior FEAE Senior FHEAE
Management Key Personnel Management Key Personnel
ARTT ARTT BT HRETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IR Deferred remuneration
EfE Vested 7,052 4,478 7,900 4,769
KT Unvested 9,531 6,772 13,655 9,120
16,583 11,250 21,555 13,889
wW1H1H At 1 January 13,655 9,120 18,911 9,270
BT Awarded 3,421 2,612 5,801 3,768
BT Paid out (5,338) (3,786) (4,640) (2,881)
Paid out for members
Eigiﬁ?gﬁi not in this category at
PRI S the end of this year (1,714) (692) (3,260) (1,888)
LR Resignation - (1,087) (2,589) (155)
FIEL (R EAERART. Adjustment (finalised
T <HH) amount of Awarded in
previous years) (493) 605 (568) 1,006
w12 H 31 H At 31 December 9,531 6,772 13,655 9,120
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18. &% - 5@E¥E A A8 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
;EEAE< (continued)
(&)

(b) CG-5 TEAREH A (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

ERFTEANBNF (continued)
B (&)

PR  RE For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel mentioned in this

FSHERAERF section are defined according to the HKMA’s Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

ZEANEBIRBEER System.

R {2 By 387 4 7B 22 45

31) EF -

- BREEAE EE - Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed by the Board who are
GBS S R responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
HAES  AEEETE Management Team members, Executive Directors, Board Secretary and General
Mg EE TR HETS - AlfE Manager of Audit Department.

EHEKE - $TE
£ ERGUERE

IZHBERELE

- FEAE EAER - Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
TEENE R EE A E K assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
¥ HWElEREAE whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk

A WE A RRE management, or those who directly generate the bank’s profit, including Compliance
HERTTHEGEEEH Officer, Assistant Chief Executive, heads of material business lines, heads of risk
BB BESR control functions with direct influence from the middle and back office, as well as Chief
1T RUFIE HEE 2 Executive of major subsidiaries, etc.

ANB GfEEREE -
BhEHARE ~ Al & EF
FaaH - W R EH
FEEZENTRE
ERFIHRAREE - £ BT
JEREEEEANE -

R E G ERERN As of the date of these issuance of consolidated financial statements, the above
SBFEHE > FilishiTE compensation packages including performance based bonus for executive directors,
HEHREEAERTE senior management and key personnel for the year ended 31 December 2024 has not
A E#E 2024 £ 12 been finalised. Management of the Group believes that the difference between the final
H 31 HIFFEERyaEH emoluments and that disclosed above will not have significant impact on the consolidated
B ATEE - ANEEE financial statements of the Group.

HGHHE » Rl

TR B AR A

NEHAEHNG ST

R EEREE -
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19. BEFRE - FRE
TBUSRA T R LAt <
REHIEEER

R R AR R T e

fil e RS aR

- R

- FRCP SLERITHIGS BR

- FRIUSRTT R LA <2
TRIBRYAS R

- FESRAT R HA RS
— i A NEHZE
e

RAE AR

TESRAT R HoAt Rl —
E+EHANEIZE
e

TREE

institutions

Cash and balances with banks and other financial
institutions
- Cash
- Balances with central banks
- Balances with banks and other financial institutions

- Placements with banks and other financial institutions
maturing within one month

Impairment allowances

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

maturing between one and twelve months

Impairment allowances

203

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. Cash, balances and placements with banks and other financial

2024 2023
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
479,542 575,585
13,745,173 16,109,883
7,388,298 6,182,559
36,716,774 30,965,730
58,329,787 53,833,757
(620) (364)
58,329,167 53,833,393
12,039,307 2,273,418
(1,491) (149)

12,037,816 2,273,269

70,366,983 56,106,662
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19. BEFFHS - FEIRRCE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. Cash, balances and placements with banks and other financial

TBUSRA T B LAl
ey (&)

HHREBUE A <~ Z Ao #
W

institutions (continued)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

FME  FREE E=FEE &t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20241 H1H At 1 January 2024 (293) (220) - (513)
Mg Addition (2,931) - - (2,931)
48 FHERR S B 22 (N S Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 935 220 - 1,155
TAE S Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations 152 - - 152
PE T 2240 Exchange difference 26 . . 26
2024 4£12 H31 H At 31 December 2024 (2,111) - - (2,111)
E—TEE IR HE=FEE HEst
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2023 FE1H1H At 1 January 2023 (627) - - (627)
s Addition (@77 - - (277)
4% I HESE S B (R B R Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 600 - . 600
HAPN 25 P B ] e 4 Impact on period end ECLs of
R R FEEATE Y exposures transferred between
77 stages during the period - (220) - (220)
B S B Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations 11 - - 11
2023 4£12 H 31 H At 31 December 2023 (293) (220) - (513)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. AnES{EsT AE2S  20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

ZEREE
i Gl DA
EE{LET AR
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss
ot IR B dEst
Trading Non trading Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ARTT AT BT T ATT BT T ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HONESIRE At fair value
{EF5E% Debt securities 6,122,486 6,773,333 1,011 250,229 6,123,497 7,023,562
7RG Certificates of
deposit 789,516 631,203 - - 789,516 631,203
6,912,002 7,404,536 1,011 250,229 6,913,013 7,654,765
W 177 58 5 Equity securities - - 1,510,893 1,375,898 1,510,893 1,375,898
HftZZ g K& Other bills and
b debts - - 4,365,280 6,807,447 4,365,280 6,807,447
6,912,002 7,404,536 5,877,184 8,433,574 12,789,186 15,838,110

2024 F12 H 31 H 48
B IGE By LA B8 LEr
Az &Rl ERE (2023
i

) -

As at 31 December 2024, there were no financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss (2023: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. AnES{EsT AEZS  20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

ZeMEE (&)

AV IR IER= 4 N s
BEE Lt AT

E R

- NEEET

- PEAELSN BT
- JEEA

iEdlre

- JEEA

HoAth
- JEEA

DNREBEET AR 2 S
HEIZ AT Z 50
T:

B
DNEEAL
PRAT R HLA e A

Aikise S

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by place of listing as follows:

Debt securities

- Listed inside Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Unlisted

Others
- Unlisted

Bz AN
EEbEH AL
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

RHE EX B

Trading Non trading
2024 2023 2024 2023
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
104,703 - - -
99,415 - - -
6,707,884 7,404,536 1,011 250,229
- - 1,510,893 1,375,898
- - 4,365,280 6,807,447
6,912,002 7,404,536 5,877,184 8,433,574

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns

Public sector entities

Banks and other financial
institutions

Corporate entities

206

Bz AN
EE{LET AR
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

REM% R

Trading Non trading
2024 2023 2024 2023
AT AT T BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5,457,234 5,947,317 - -
126,831 41,072 - -
1,248,759 1,280,937 4,365,280 7,029,887
79,178 135,210 1,511,904 1,403,687
6,912,002 7,404,536 5,877,184 8,433,574
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21. TSR T A% 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

a3

FEEETIL T AR FIZ R
AR OT A R TR
GREEE KA EE
H :

BRI IE R —
H I SN REE

s FlER RSB
5 AR [F) R4 O B
HY AR R SHATEE SRR SR
TRIEHS ~ FI=R (CAEEF]
REGFEIFR) B E/E
(B e e LA _EEFT
LA R
HD) - BREEERHEAY
G BB G IR IRA
4o

SNRESHE 2 F S MY R T
(BT RHETIFAT)
TRME AR e H 4
R — R E Y E
HYEAE E A (SRS ) B¢
H i (FULEE) — B
R T EEYRER (i TR&
) —TE R - FEEIS
DRI\ - HERERYE TR
JFUSTEL—TE RS - AL
M SR EE T
SFIMAAREEERK, ©

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate and commodity related
derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a future
date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, gold swaps)
or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants
the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a
put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the financial
instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange
risk, the seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-
counter between the Group and its counterparty.
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21. TS T A EREM 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
st (&)

AEFZTESMT RS The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by the
4,/ 4 F EEE B E N ol Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these instruments
SEAIA N BFEMIEFE T indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of
BIEY/ HEEEEER them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the balance
NG E AR HRTER sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved
2R G aETEmTA or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
T ER) ) ZEEEER R A exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become favourable
T (HHEEEEERNT (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
R A EEENEE market interest rates or metal prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of
HYSFEL AR - (22 - iE R derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

2B 3 R Y AR A B 4
TEE IR R fE - A
B S B A B2 [ B T R Y
(SRR S -
TR SR T R ALK
HHRBHAYEESR TS R8T
SR (SRR B 128 S
THEAMEE AT REEA A A

(EE) A (AfD) /Y
A B RN

HARIE R E) -

(a) FTEESR TR (a) Derivative financial instruments
REEETHIMIE The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer business. The Group
EMZSNEZEEN strictly follows risk management policies and requirement in providing derivative
EHEEEER £ products to our customers and in trading of derivative products in the interbank market.
B 5 R [EE T R

EITT A L S 3
TR B A RS

A oA JE By A B R SR R

FE -

rTEESINERRE Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
FHERTTHEAYFI 2R i » derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
HEFEERAE transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional
B FEBENLTEE amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the
Hh T AT EETTAC S o HHET deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for
AR E AT B EE AR Y A settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and control.

W R A P AR DA
FRFZER > A AIET S SR
IR - R EE
a3 Gy RS #E R AH
JEHIZ 50 - DUETT 4
FTHISHEIE - s
Pk -

208



25 NCB #f @+ A

MR (&)

21. $7ESE T EREM 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
gt (@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(a) f7&LMTH (8) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

TR S T A S R
TH®R12 A3 HZE

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair value of each class
of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

SPELE 2 CEVIININIER
2024
a8/ NE
LERBEE Fair values
Contract/
notional BE =0
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PEREEY Exchange rate contracts
RIJHH Fz 72 1A Spot and forwards 6,952,478 366,154 (203,903)
i HA Swaps 158,978,695 2,132,917 (277,802)
ANERS 5 HARE Foreign currency options 354,539 19,215 (22,134)
166,285,712 2,518,286 (503,839)
FIREL] Interest rate contracts
A Swaps 34,833,642 348,970 (260,653)
EHmagy Commodity contracts 479,334 48,512 (741)
201,598,688 2,915,768 (765,233)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TS T A EREM 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

gt (8

(a) TTAEESRTE (8)

MR ELY
RIS R A
550
HNEESZ e

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency options

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Commodity contracts

210

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2023
= AME
BZE e Fair values
Contract/

notional B =T
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
6,800,556 366,335 (162,638)
88,265,472 149,540 (856,909)
1,455,639 85,602 (85,632)
96,521,667 601,477 (1,105,179)
53,828,802 411,202 (239,719)
902,166 26,365 (4,863)
151,252,635 1,039,044 (1,349,761)
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IERNEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
21. TS T A EREM 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

gt (8

(b) Bfihgs

A FAEEH

AREEER AR &
P RS (2
B < Bl A E N LB 2
-

TR TR 12 5 31
H EARIER &< EIH H 51

R THRNEE
IR -

RS

IS S

FRIE Ry LE AR
BT

PrEEM TR

RS

(b) Hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair value of financial
assets arising from movements in market interest rates.

The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the hedging instruments
as at 31 December by remaining contractual maturity.

2024
—& ==
—EAR =@RF +ER —EHE AFEMUE
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to5 Over W=t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
AMTIL  BETIT  BSTIT BETT BMTT BETR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest rate swaps - 956,714 901,901 4,714,215 310,572 6,883,402
2023
—% =%
—EAN =EA +ZEA 20 DFEME
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 4EET
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BEETIT BWTIT BWToT BNTIT BTt BETT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Interest rate swaps - - 3,336,089 5,504,704 1,416,934 10,257,727

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as follows:

2024
A FALARERE S
Fair values T2
AR
=r 0 Change in fair
ZHEE value used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE “fE hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
ARTT ARTT BT T ARTT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Derivative financial
instruments

Interest rate swaps 6.883,402 159,155 (67,978) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TS T A EREM 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

gt (8

(b) Bfhgst (&)

DREEHF (&

PTEERMTH
HZR ]

HEEHIR H 2 AR 248
W

BRI E
RS2 R AR

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

2023
AN P LA S
Fair values fEE 2
A TAEEE)
= Change in fair
HFHEH value used for
Contract/ recognising
notional HiE =i hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities  ineffectiveness
BT T AT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Derivative financial
instruments
Interest rate swaps 10,257,727 213,335 (36,812) -
The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:
2024
T ARRE{ER
AREEHH
BRI EH FALARERE S
Accumulated Paskiiize g
amount of fair ZB{E%E
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
HEE{E  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
ARTT ARTT ARTT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Financial investments
Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 9,627,805 (60,098) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TS T A EREM 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

&=t (8
(b) Bfhgst (&)

DREEHF (&

EREA

BRI B AT ikas

il 0 S e i 2T A
T

R

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

2023
P BRI
AR P
BT P AT ¥
Accumulated IHRERER Y
amount of fair (G {E % E)
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
REMEE included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Financial investments
Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 10,028,108 (122,631) -
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:

2024 2023

BT AT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Net trading gain
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21. $7ESE T EREM 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
it (8)

(c) EHEFRKE (c) Interest rate benchmark reform
2024412 H 31 H » At 31 December 2024, there were no contract/notional amounts of interest rate
B IR e R (A TS derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships represent the extent of the risk
ERFERLGGTETENES exposure managed by the Group that is directly affected by interest rate benchmark
K42 SRR B AR EE reform and in scope of Phase 1 amendments (2023: Nil).

B E R AR AR AR
U L BAT SR — P B
FAEF R BT R E
PRV R IE (2023 4

)
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22. SRR EAIRE

[EPN=
NEIEFK

HEEK
TREAE

Ee
TR

PRAT R HA B R BT RK

TREE

2024 E12H 31 H &
R LS T S A
1,603,484,000 st ( 2023
o ki 1,497,547,000
gL

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. Advances and other accounts

2024 2023
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Personal loans and advances 46,338,190 50,866,820
Corporate loans and advances 222,193,310 247,439,498
Advances to customers 268,531,500 298,306,318
Impairment allowances (4,190,705) (4,899,755)
264,340,795 293,406,563
Trade bills 395,930 341,313
Impairment allowances (26) (22)
395,904 341,291

Advances to banks and other financial
institutions - 156,914
Impairment allowances - (32)
- 156,882
264,736,699 293,904,736

As at 31 December 2024, advances to customers included accrued interest of HK$

1,603,484,000 (2023: HK$1,497,547,000).
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22. X EAMRIE (&) 22. Advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are analysed by stage
classification as follows:

2 B B 48 i R K
e H A R T 2 P B oy A

T
2024
F—TEE FURE F=RE &t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AETIT  BETR BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
PR Advances to customers 252,520,254 8,447,652 7,563,594 268,531,500
gkt Trade bills 395,930 - - 395,930
AT R H A R L Advances to
banks and other
financial institutions - - - -
4EEt Total 252,916,184 8,447,652 7,563,594 268,927,430
2023
B PEE B HPEE HaEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEK Advances to customers 280,340,453 11,046,315 6,919,550 298,306,318
Sy Trade bills 341,313 - - 341,313
PRAT R H At R RS ER Advances to
banks and other
financial institutions 156,914 - - 156,914
4=t Total 280,838,680 11,046,315 6,919,550 298,804,545
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22. X EAMRIE (&) 22. Advances and other accounts (continued)

HHREIRAE 2E 1 2
W

20244 FE1H1H

il

& - EAR A (O Bl
i)

WER IR

R R

A = IR

P P B ] B i
TR IR RY
2

RS W

Wl E AR T
s 2 EK

ME 2 A2 A

A 2024 12 A 31 H

K 20234FE1H1H

BTN

& - EAR A (OF EU Al
i)

el 15

e EcC a1

A = IR

P P P ] B i
TR IR RY
2

RS W

W B E BRI

il B

PRS2 4H

7 2023412 A 31 H

s%xiiy

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

At 1 January 2024
Addition

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

Derecognised or repaid (excluding

written off)
Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between

stages during the period
Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations
Recoveries
Loans written off
Exchange difference
At 31 December 2024

At 1 January 2023
Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding

written off)
Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between

stages during the period
Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations
Recoveries
Loans written off
Exchange difference
At 31 December 2023

9244 FORE F=RE gt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT AT T AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(1,367,019) (451,045) (3,081,745) (4,899,809)
(671,552) - - (671,552)
448,717 49,453 20,576 518,746
(24,737) 23,216 1,521 -
46,371 (46,656) 285 -
4,799 251,275 (256,074) -
12,600 (119,102) (918,191) (1,024,693)
647,553 51,942 (2,544,905) (1,845,410)

- - (119,195) (119,195)

- - 3,744,709 3,744,709

61,261 (51,462) 96,674 106,473
(842,007) (292,379) (3,056,345) (4,190,731)
H—PEER B PR HaEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT AT T AT AT
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(1,371,833) (522,873) (2,170,354) (4,065,060)
(785,111) - - (785,111)
574,105 22,157 591,155 1,187,417
(38,302) 37,019 1,283 -
25,992 (77,087) 51,095 -
20,307 188,945 (209,252) -
1,212 (53,346) (1,921,616) (1,973,750)
184,084 (50,957) (1,802,199) (1,669,072)
- - (89,891) (89,891)

- - 2,457,574 2,457,574

22,527 5,097 10,460 38,084
(1,367,019) (451,045) (3,081,745) (4,899,809)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

218

23. &RGE 23. Financial investments
2024

Bl g bat

A A2

At fair value

through other DUEEEREATETE
comprehensive At amortised W=t
income cost Total
BTt BTt BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHE 7 Debt securities 154,932,629 1,107,077 156,039,706
7RG Certificates of deposit 19,134,792 - 19,134,792
B 38 05 AT AR Total debt securities and

certificates of deposit 174,067,421 1,107,077 175,174,498
NERIER Impairment allowances - (55) (55)
174,067,421 1,107,022 175,174,443
A8 25 Equity securities 18,074 - 18,074
174,085,495 1,107,022 175,192,517
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Financial investments (continued)

2023

DA S st

AHAM 2 HE LS

At fair value

through other
comprehensive DIEEERACAFET & HaEt
income At amortised cost Total
AT T ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
[=vs iz Debt securities 147,031,500 7,297,864 154,329,364
7RG Certificates of deposit 19,832,553 - 19,832,553

B 38 05 AT AR Total debt securities and

certificates of deposit 166,864,053 7,297,864 174,161,917
NERIER Impairment allowances - (723) (723)
166,864,053 7,297,141 174,161,194
A8 25 Equity securities 25,606 - 25,606
166,889,659 7,297,141 174,186,800
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Financial investments (continued)

HHBELA S E S B A
el s 2 R E Y

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of financial investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income is, as follows:

VERIER R o il
T
FIEER FRE  F=RE &=t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEBETT BETRT BETR BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
20241 H1H At 1 January 2024 (77,515) - - (77,515)
B Addition (31,830) - - (31,830)
48 (IFWESREE 8 (R B Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 16,872 - - 16,872
VEREES SGRLEY Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 35,525 - - 35,525
PR 52,7248 Exchange difference 224 - - 224
W 2024 4E12 A 31 H At 31 December 2024 (56,724) - - (56,724)
PR HETREE SR HaEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
202341 H1H At 1 January 2023 (99,542) - (182,129) (281,671)
B0 Addition (30,161) - - (30,161)
4% I HESE S8 (R BRI Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 14,240 - - 14,240
VEREES SGRLEY Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 37,697 - 262 37,959
$y Written off - - 182,734 182,734
PR 22 8H Exchange difference 251 - (867) (616)
A 2023412 A 31 H At 31 December 2023 (77,515) - - (77,515)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Financial investments (continued)

LEIIDR - S N (o e
< RS TR A 2 1 8
L #ranF

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of financial investments

at amortised cost is, as follows:

FIEER FRE  F=RE &=t

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BEBETT BETRT BETR BT

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000

w2024 FE1H1H At 1 January 2024 (723) - - (723)

48 (IFWESREE 8 (R B Derecognised or repaid (excluding

) written off) 165 - - 165
TR S g Changes to inputs used for impairment

calculations 503 - - 503

2024 /12 A 31 H At 31 December 2024 (55) - - (55)

PR HETREE SR HaEt

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BT BT BT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

72023 FE1H1H At 1 January 2023 (1,264) - - (1,264)

wat Addition (71) - - (71)

4% I HESE S B (R B R Derecognised or repaid (excluding

) written off) 402 - . 402
VEREES SGRLEY Changes to inputs used for impairment

calculations 210 - - 210

A 2023412 A 31 H At 31 December 2023 (723) - - (723)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Financial investments (continued)

Financial investments are analysed by place of listing as follows:

2024

IPEAYINIEL (v
A A2 ER S
At fair value through

other comprehensive NG Hn N
income At amortised cost
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000

Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong 7,824,406 -
- Listed outside Hong Kong 10,395,907 -
18,220,313 -
- Unlisted 155,847,108 1,107,022
155,847,108 1,107,022

Equity securities

- Unlisted 18,074 -
Total 174,085,495 1,107,022

Market value of listed securities at
amortised cost
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23. &RpEE (8) 23. Financial investments (continued)
SRS & F i Financial investments are analysed by place of listing as follows (continued):
W ()
2023
IVADINIER lvry
AFA 2 U
At fair value through
other comprehensive DB ERUAIES T =
income At amortised cost
AETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B 57 TS Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- WEALET - Listed in Hong Kong 9,924,372 -
- WEBUS BT - Listed outside Hong Kong 6,289,229 -
16,213,601 -
- JERH - Unlisted 150,650,452 7,297,141
166,864,053 7,297,141
Xehrites Equity securities
- JE b - Unlisted 25,606 -
4=t Total 166,889,659 7,297,141
Dl S A B Fiss Market value of listed securities at
ETE amortised cost }
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Financial investments (continued)

Financial investments are analysed by type of issuer as follows:

SRR T S TR 2 oy

BarE
2024

Bl g bat

A A 2mEREE

At fair value through
other comprehensive DB ASIESTE
income At amortised cost
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEHEE Sovereigns 69,385,732 394,742
NS BT Public sector entities 10,599,093 -
SRAT K HoAth 4 Fhidr Banks and other financial institutions 68,691,100 712,280
NEE Corporate entities 25,409,570 -
174,085,495 1,107,022

2023

DA S st

AHAM 2 HE S

At fair value through
other comprehensive DB ERUAIES T =
income At amortised cost
HERETIT HRTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEHEE Sovereigns 67,007,303 5,843,363
NS BT Public sector entities 4,899,509 301,713
SRAT K HoAth 4 Ehidr Banks and other financial institutions 70,150,174 951,626
NEE Corporate entities 24,832,673 200,439
166,889,659 7,297,141

2024 4212 H 31 H >
BFETE (BRIT3E (&AL
AY W3Rl B
LA LAA el BET A
fib 2 UL 2R Y B AR s
A&z 10,599,093,000 T
( 2023 4 pe
4,899,509,000 jT.) °

As at 31 December 2024, included financial investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income of HK$10,599,093,000 which are eligible to be classified as public
sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules (2023: HK$4,899,509,000).

#2024 212 H 31 H »
RHEBREE (SRITHE (&
A FRN N FEReE AT A
L RDAIVE: T E N (S
EBEBRYE (2023 4 :
¥ 301,713,000 71) -

As at 31 December 2024, there were no financial investments at amortised cost which are
eligible to be classified as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules (2023:
301,713,000).
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24, B 24. Investment properties

2024 2023
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
W1H1H At 1 January 407,600 559,140
WME Additions 716 -
AqfEkstE (FEE13) Fair value losses (Note 13) (44,300) (9,040)

B SEEE (R )Y Reclassification from /(to) properties,

b ReEstl (BfaE 25) plant and equipment (Note 25) 53,100 (142,500)
W12H31H At 31 December 417,116 407,600
EYZE Z EHEEHY The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the
FleFHARR AT A0 T - leases as follows:

2024 2023
AT T AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEERE Held in Hong Kong

FHAFHAY (B 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 233,300 252,300

FrHEAFHAY (10 422 50 On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years)

) 183,816 155,300

417,116 407,600

202412 H 31 H » %1 As at 31 December 2024, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at

NEEARBENZKEY valuation carried out at 31 December 2024 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
¥ TIE LR = firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price
P EE T B R A 5 that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with market

2024 /£ 12 H 31 HAA R participants at the measurement date.
B R B AR T 2 B G

B - A EfEE RS HE

A TR e B Y 5 0L T 1]

M2 BE N e —TH

BYENERUSHIER -
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2024 E1H1HZ
HRIFHE

WE

HE# bR

EHfl

FEHTE

EHOT R R IEY)E
(FffaE 24)

Ve A2 A

2024 E£12 5 31 H
IREHHE

2024 12 5 31 H
FRAME S E
REtires

2024 E£12 5 31 H
IREHHE

AR R
ST

2024412 H 31 H
FERAE
frfhE

Net book value at
1 January 2024
Additions
Disposals/Derecognition
Revaluation
Depreciation for the year
Reclassification to investment
properties, net (Note 24)
Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2024

At 31 December 2024
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value at
31 December 2024

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2024
At cost
At valuation
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25. Properties, plant and equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

s - B

Eaii

Bt

Equipment, (ERfELE

BE fixtures Right-of-use st
Premises and fittings assets Total
BA¥ETT  A¥TT ARTT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,859,067 511,017 701,186 9,071,270
23,514 50,245 132,823 206,582
(138,837) (171) (97) (139,105)
(588,063) - - (588,063)
(183,693) (93,347) (238,922) (515,962)
(53,100) - - (53,100)
(24,906) (6,590) (16,926) (48,422)
6,893,982 461,154 578,064 7,933,200
6,893,982 1,255,470 1,276,556 9,426,008
- (794,316) (698,492) (1,492,808)
6,893,982 461,154 578,064 7,933,200
- 1,255,470 1,276,556 2,532,026
6,893,982 - - 6,893,982
6,893,982 1,255,470 1,276,556 9,426,008
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2023 FE1H1HZ
HRIFHE

WE

HE # bR

EHfl

FEHTE

B E A
(FffaE 24)

Ve 2 A2 A

AR 20234FE 12 A 31 HZ
MREFE

2023412 5 31 H
FRAME B E
REtires

R 2023FE12H 31 HZ
IREHHE

Ll 2 AME S (E
IR

2023412 H 31 H
FERAE
frfhE

Net book value at
1 January 2023
Additions
Disposals/Derecognition
Revaluation
Depreciation for the year
Reclassification from investment
properties, net (Note 24)
Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2023

At 31 December 2023
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value at
31 December 2023

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2023
At cost
At valuation
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25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

SRl ~ TEE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

et
P&
Equipment,  (EftEEE

FEiE fixtures and  Right-of-use 4=
Premises fittings assets Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7,901,917 416,866 770,463 9,089,246
54,875 188,333 183,902 427,110
- (12,561) - (12,561)
(47,331) - - (47,331)
(177,760) (77,431) (240,742) (495,933)
142,500 - - 142,500
(15,134) (4,190) (12,437) (31,761)
7,859,067 511,017 701,186 9,071,270
7,859,067 1,258,078 1,261,033 10,378,178
- (747,061) (559,847)  (1,306,908)
7,859,067 511,017 701,186 9,071,270
- 1,258,078 1,261,033 2,519,111
7,859,067 - - 7,859,067
7,859,067 1,258,078 1,261,033 10,378,178
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25. Y~ BB R EtH 25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
B 2 BETEME T4 T 6k The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
AR AR follows:
2024 2023
AT HETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEEARE Held in Hong Kong
EHAFHLY (3 50 4 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 3,028,362 3,335,303
%y (10 50
P (1052 On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years)
) 3,296,463 3,810,800
EFEBLINTA Held outside Hong Kong
HAFHZY (10 50 .
qjﬁiﬂ V(0% On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 495,683 628.432
FHHAMHZY (/DR 10 4) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 73,474 84,532
6,893,982 7,859,067
2024 712 H 31 H % As at 31 December 2024, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
NEERBERENFEE T out at 31 December 2024 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
REY iRV == i F=NiE @7 surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
HEHETAETRA SR 2024 received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at the
F12 H 31 HUAA il Ay measurement date.
BRI T S E
AERETEETREEHETR
TR AT &5 T |l T35
SHHEHET—THFEE
HUSHIER -
R¥E Ll 2 S hAE R B As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
{HEZEFHENEEEGEE recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and the income statement as follows:
1 R s AR T
2024 2023
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
et B E A 2 Decrease in valuation charged to premises
fili B revaluation reserve (526,973) (45,485)
EEt s e 7 B AR Decrease in valuation charged to income
statement (61,090) (1,846)
(588,063) (47,331)

#2024 F12 H 31 H & As at 31 December 2024, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
R E R A ER RS the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
PTEYIIR  KEBE EEA depreciation was HK$2,173,336,000 (2023: HK$2,283,972,000).

EFRN 2 7 E R E IE

Fy ke 2,173,336,000 T

(2023 4 @ # W
2,283,972,000 7T ) -
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MEEFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. WP &EE 26. Intangible assets
i & B 2 88 B Al 4 The movements in intangible assets are summarised as follows:
T
2024 2023
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
w1H1H At 1 January 843,464 619,709
by Additions 898,213 326,695
TR Amortisation for the year (132,958) (98,014)
PE A2 Exchange difference (7,256) (4,926)
w12 H 31 H At 31 December 1,601,463 843,464
DN Cost 2,037,145 1,159,431
BT Accumulated amortisation (435,682) (315,967)
w12 3314 Net book value at 31 December 1,601,463 843,464
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27. g E 27. Other assets

2024 2023

BT BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Uz ol & Repossessed assets 2,658,778 53,092

EEE Precious metals 118,676 284,266

JEWHRTE K TR 2 Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,818,501 2,869,794

4,595,955 3,207,152

NERIER Impairment allowances (5,033) (7,347)

4,590,922 3,199,805
ik 2024 F12 H 31 H > As of 31 December 2024, among repossessed assets, HK$1,870,000,000 belongs to a
Ug o] & FE 5 h 4 Ak s mortgaged hotel property. As of 31 December 2024, the Bank has signed the sale and
1,870,000,000 7T A {EHH purchase agreement with the owner of the mortgaged hotel property in order to transfer the
JEVISE - Bk 2024 12 legal ownership of the hotel property for debt settlement purpose. Subsequent to the end of
H 31 H > AT 8aZ0n s reporting period, the Bank acquired ownership of the hotel property through an assignment
VT EEEE S agreement to offset the corresponding outstanding loan balance and relevant transaction

DUBE 0 |5 P SE A P A costs.
TERAR AR - T Hi%

AT E B R AU
ZBEYIZER A E AR

Af FE AT O R BB LUK,
BRI B A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Other assets (continued)

HH B R (E 2 7 2 E BT An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:
e
FTE FORE F=RE &Eat
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BETT  BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
2024451 H1H At 1 January 2024 (3,795) (34) (3,518) (7,347)
1% Addition (1,264) - - (1,264)
& FHEREVEE (R ARG Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 2,114 765 2,720 5,599
A = IR Transfers to Stage 3 . 34 (34) .
HAPN 2 P B R e 7 3 Impact on period end ECLs of
T HAARTHER TR R /Y exposures transferred between
Pz stages during the period - (4) (2,911) (2,915)
TAE S Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations 832 (761) 265 336
VSR Exchange difference 558 - - 558
W 2024 4E 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2024 (1,555) . (3,478) (5,033)
H—PEES R SRR HaEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
7n2023 1 H1H At 1 January 2023 (890) (17) (3,138) (4,045)
i Addition (184) - - (184)
I HER I EE (R s Derecognised or repaid (excluding
iss) written off) 22 17 1,097 1,136
HA & P B 2 R e b s Impact on period end ECLs of
R A K TR HATE 2 5 exposures transferred between
£ stages during the period - (34) (137) (171)
VEREE SGRLEY Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations (4,343) - (1,335) (5,678)
PE A2 A Exchange difference 1,600 - (5) 1,595
i 2023 412 F 31 [ At 31 December 2023 (3,795) (34) (3,518) (7,347)
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28. AnES{EsT AJE2s 28. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

29.

ZeRsfR

otk s
- HNEEEES
s

17 2024 £ 12 H 31 B4
B FE B LAA e E AR
Az eRiEE (2023

) -

15 B fi 2

BEEEH RS

(a) FFEK

BIEAERR R AR

NG

- A

TER ~ FEH R

Kt
- AT

- EA

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Trading liabilities

- Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and

Notes

2024 2023
AT T AT
HK$°000 HK$'000

6,203,588 5,784,773

At 31 December 2024, there were no financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit

or loss (2023: Nil).

29. Deposits from customers and hedge accounting

(a) Deposits from customers

Demand deposits and current accounts

- Corporate
- Personal

Savings deposits
- Corporate
- Personal

Time, call and notice deposits

- Corporate
- Personal

232

2024 2023

AT T AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
23,171,800 24,790,670
3,166,117 2,646,497
26,337,917 27,437,167
31,084,052 33,771,975
39,787,003 35,571,905
70,871,055 69,343,880
107,550,117 139,414,415
189,656,483 158,194,401
297,206,600 297,608,816
394,415,572 394,389,863
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29. FFERR T
(&

(b) Bfihgs

o B P St A VR
Eandd

202412 H31H>
KEBFEH T AR
WEHHENEFERG
ke 1,921,541,000
It (2023 4 : ug
1,992,543,000 7T) %
¥R T DN
(PG -

PG H R 2
[ERE SR SN NIERES
PIRfERE (2023 4 < ) -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29. Deposits from customers and hedge accounting (continued)

(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in Mainland operations

As at 31 December 2024, a proportion of the Group’s RMB-denominated deposits from
customers of HK$1,921,541,000 (2023: HK$1,992,543,000) were designated as a
hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in Mainland China operations.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income statement
during the year (2023: Nil).

30. E&fTERZ S K1 30. Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

EEE

R R APRGE » i
BT
- feaE
- Bt

2024 2023
BTt AT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Debt securities and certificates of deposit, at
amortised cost
- Certificates of deposit 17,295,923 18,701,698
- Other debt securities 12,388,433 10,018,137
29,684,356 28,719,835
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HEAMA

HAETIRIH

Heffg

SR R BB IR G
RAE AR

A Rk 4 1 2 AL o A
wre

2024 FE1H1H

W

i

R R

HAP& P B 2 P e
TSR TSR R
2

2 B

HE 2 2 A
2024 212 H31H

#20234FE1H1H

B

S AEHERR

e EcC a1

A = IR

P P P ] B i
TR IR RY
2

RS W

ME 2 A2 A
720234212 H31H

25 NCB #f @+ A

31. Other accounts and provisions

Lease liabilities
Other accounts payable
Provisions

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Impairment allowances for loan commitments

and financial guarantee contracts

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

At 1 January 2024

Addition

Derecognised

Transfers to Stage 2

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2024

At 1 January 2023

Addition

Derecognised

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2023

234

2024 2023

BT BETT

HK$’000 HK$°000

620,030 737,412

14,772,583 13,730,359

50,107 50,156

45,951 104,978

15,488,671 14,622,905
BB FREER B &=t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B¥TT EETRT E¥TIT  A¥Tra
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
101,996 6 2,976 104,978
95,076 - - 95,076
(96,461) (5) - (96,466)
(34) 34 - -
6 226 - 232
(55,811) (28) 518 (55,321)
(2,850) (8) 310 (2,548)
41,922 225 3,804 45,951
PR BTREE BERE Hat
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BETT  BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
171,931 16,387 - 188,318
46,210 - - 46,210
(103,676) (16,387) - (120,063)
(329) 329 - -
“) - 4 -
1 (327) 2,972 2,646
(9,566) 4 - (9,562)
(2,571) - - (2,571)
101,996 6 2,976 104,978
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WBHFENEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. RIEMIE 32. Deferred taxation

REFIHR ISR A
HERIFE125% T TR L E

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and

B A E A B R E unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.
BLEAE A B iR AR HIE
W 2 B R AR R R R
FHRURIRRAEER R -
BEEABRENZIELERIE The major components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recorded in the balance sheet, and
afE, (BE) YTEMAE the movements during the year are as follows:
DU BAR AR FE N 2 S 84N
T
2024
PilIEE Sy
SAREH
Accelerated WEEN BEAER
tax Property Impairment At HR=t
depreciation revaluation allowance Other Total
AT BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A 2024 4 At 1 January
1H1H 2024 74,380 1,045,306 (783,560) (350,918) (14,792)
[EI(F)acas Charged/(credited)
= to income
statement 237,357 (13,051) 128,168 40,105 392,579
(B s A (Credited)/charged
e to other
comprehensive
income - (133,840) - 175,856 42,016
PR $2 724 Exchange difference - (4,341) 20,524 4,734 20,917
A 2024 At 31 December
12 H 31 2024
H 311,737 894,074 (634,868) (130,223) 440,720
2023
IS
RAEH o o
Accelerated YR E TRAE A
tax Property Impairment HA 4Gt
depreciation revaluation allowance Other Total
AT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A 2023 4 At 1 January
1H1H 2023 61,809 1,049,403 (616,431) (458,620) 36,161
&S as Charged/(credited)
= to income
statement 12,571 12,366 (177,018) (54,118) (206,199)
(BVfERCHEA (Credited)/charged
ENlEn to other
comprehensive
income - (14,027) - 160,530 146,503
Ve 52 72 Exchange difference - (2,436) 9,889 1,290 8,743
#2023 4 At 31 December
12 A 31 2023
B 74,380 1,045,306 (783,560) (350,918) (14,792)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. Deferred taxation (continued)

AR ERER T A
TH A 7 B A T H A (R
4 > TAEAERR IS R R — T
BUARH  ATFTRHERLE ALY
A RS TH A S AR RS A
BEG M - NYIESERE
BERNYIRZ 8 E5T
INirtiis o

IRIER I A
IR A

RIS AR (AR 12
LEVERESIED)

IRIERIE R (AR 12
(EVEEESIRD)

A 2024 F 12 A 31 H» A
SR TE R IR A RS T A S
ZRBEERER
2,069,000 ¢ (2023 4F: &
& 2,095,000 T ) - $##HEER
TR ARARTERERZ
TEREHIRR -

EASRET W] P HAE I 2
N FEIRY (T B H At 5 3
BRI AISFA] AR AT AR
PP fT SR E AR
AEEE AR SRl H R
HESRHRAERIIA - 't 2024 £F
12 7 31 H - BRARHE A
FEE A R TESE IR AT
B A2 R
W 5,711,565,000 T
(2023 4 @ & W
5,265,901,000 7 ) i tHE
HIARMERS IR IER TR A s
% W 285,578,000 T
(2023 & @ & ¥
263,295,000 jT) °

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2024 2023
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Deferred tax assets (426,595) (551,106)
Deferred tax liabilities 867,315 536,314
440,720 (14,792)
2024 2023
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
twelve months (534,473) (5622,404)

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than

twelve months 1,010,880 776,118
476,407 253,714

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses amounting to HK$2,069,000 (2023: HK$2,095,000). These tax losses do not expire
under the current tax legislation.

Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of the Group’s investments in subsidiaries where
the Bank is able to control the timing of remittance or other realisation and where remittance
or realisation is not probable in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2024, the
aggregate temporary difference relating to unrecognised deferred tax liability arising on
investments in subsidiaries was HK$5,711,565,000 (2023: HK$5,265,901,000) and the
corresponding unrecognised deferred tax liability was HK$285,578,000 (2023:
HK$263,295,000).
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33.

34.

®BEAR

PSR AT R 2029
AEFHA2 700,000,000
FITE BB EERE

AIRTEN 2024 £ 11 A
20 H5epk 8o S mE
700,000,000 ZETHI%E
SR (BT 2019 4 11
20 H)- sepcEEli% - %
BRETHETAESH -

BLTIASRITIY 2024 528 A
6 1457722 700,000,000 2%
TUAE B AL G P i B
& (EZERRE =) g 5R
TE R —EE AN 10 4EHAT%
B (TEE, ) (FR
B (ERfTE CGEAR) #HDD
2RO o IEEEBER
2034 4 8 [ 6 FIEH > 35
FEVEE H 5 2029 4E 8 F
6 H - & (T H 2 HEEN:
VEBH - R 6% &
FATE—I - Bt (M2
RAE SIS H B 1
BIFIE G EET HER 5
A 55 B B A 27 BRI
210 B 7 - HHEASSE R
St ARSRIT I A S
VBB H BRI B B
KA H A B B RTHY
el H -~ DA S i (N ]
T (FEESy ) 45 -

[(SZN

E#(T e
7,000,000 H5 i 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
33. Subordinated liabilities

2024 2023
BT ARETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
US$700,000,000 fixed rate subordinated notes issued
due 2029 at amortised cost
5,521,900 5,468,028

The Bank has completed the redemption of the subordinated notes with a face value of
US$700,000,000 (issued on 20 November 2019) in full on 20 November 2024. Upon
completion of the redemption, the subordinated notes have been cancelled.

On 6 August 2024, the Bank issued US$700,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year
subordinated notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Notes will mature on
6 August 2034 with an optional redemption date falling on 6 August 2029. Interest at 6% p.a.
is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if
the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at
the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 210 basis points. The Bank may, subject to
receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes at the option of the Bank in whole
but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for tax or regulatory reasons
at any time prior to maturity of the Notes.

34. Share capital

2024 2023
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 3,144,517
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. Additional equity instruments

300,000,000 Tk AJE
FETREPFAIN— AR
650,000,000 7Tk A JE
FETREPFIN—BEAR

AT 2022 £E 4 F 28
H#% 7T 7 % m@EE
650,000,000 57T (FERAH
B ST R AR 12 S (E B S
5,077,856,000 7T ) HIZKA
FERET AR EIN— A A
Fr (TESNEATLR )
IEok ABSNEE T AR
2027 £ 4 H 28 HE{ERR
FIFEIE] E AT SRR
TENL 6.50% F R FAFTT
(Mg [EI4E SRR R G
B E R L IR E
JEEL {5 2 S SR A R 2R 1
WA T R o

AT 2023 £ 3 H7H
% T 7T ® om E
300,000,000 =7t (FIFRAH
B ST R AR 12 S (E B
2,344,170,000 7T ) K7k A
IERFF RPN — &R
Fr (TESNEATLR )
ek ABSNEA T AR
2028 ££ 3 [ 7 K E (AT
FER[E] F AT SRR E
A 7.35% EEIARA T
FEEINE SRR
R I TUAR ] 52 B R
55 B AR AV A0 L
WS T AR -

2024 2023
BT T AETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
US$300,000,000 perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities
2,344,170 2,344,170
US$650,000,000 perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities
5,077,856 5,077,856
7,422,026 7,422,026

On 28 April 2022, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1
capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$650,000,000
(equivalent to HK$5,077,856,000 net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 6.50% coupon until the first call date on 28 April 2027.
The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional equity instruments are not
redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a
fixed initial spread.

On 7 March 2023, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1
capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$300,000,000
(equivalent to HK$2,344,170,000 net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 7.35% coupon until the first call date on 7 March 2028.
The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional equity instruments are not redeemed
to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial
spread.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. Additional equity instruments (continued)

RERBEERMN - -
AT AMERIEZ N E
AT EHYRROR E UM A
EEEIT > MMHUHHIFEAR
G R NI ASRITINEE
L ) 3 2 PR R BRI
BEEET —REBAE
Foll -

B8 AR SRTT R
B BTN A A4
s BESNESLIAR
A B e B
PR B HAS S T HET
i -

AT AR R T AR =
R HZRREH - A
FTHEA IS R B A R
HETHESNEATA - =
IRZ EHIEZ R 4R
FhpRA] -

AERITHY 2024 FENZZ(S
WAOABEATR (RTH
20224 28 H) =8
42,250,000 T 0 E 5y
Al 2024 -4 H 28 H R
2024 4210 A 28 HigKY
f 21,125,000 2 ¢ -
(2023 FFNHLFEE -
42,250,000 %)

ARIRITIRTY 2024 N
TSN EATR (ST
2023 £ 3 7 H) HE
22,050,000 7T > Fhsy
At 2024 £ 3 5 7 H
2024 £ 9 § 7 BTG
11,025,000 37T - (2023
FARXZIHEER
11,025,000 7¢)

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (subjected to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the additional
equity instruments) and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is
stopped from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless the next scheduled
coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would become
non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
the fifth year after issue date or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to
restriction as set out in the terms and conditions.

The Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity instruments (issued on 28
April 2022) for a total amount US$42,250,000 during the year 2024, for each US$21,125,000
was distributed on 28 April 2024 and 28 October 2024 separately. (Total coupon payment
during the year 2023: US$42,250,000)

Also, the Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity instruments (issued on
7 March 2023) for a total amount US$22,050,000 during the year 2024, for each
US$11,025,000 was distributed on 7 March 2024 and 7 September 2024 separately. (Total
coupon payment during the year 2023: US$11,025,000)
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WERiEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
36. 4 EHEREFMNEE 36. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) BT HERRR (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow/(outflow)

240

KEBHEZRWA before taxation
(Fih) &
2024 2023
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
oyl Operating profit 4,045,189 3,710,960
HTES R s Depreciation and amortisation 648,920 593,947
B E PR Net charge of impairment allowances 2,945,062 3,141,951
LS~ S (FkR Advances written off net of recoveries
IHEECED (3,625,514) (2,367,684)
HE&EFEZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 26,922 29,691
BEABEFESZH Interest expense on subordinated liabilities 321,913 211,735
[EEIHAH &8 3 {EH Change in balances with banks and other
A ERTT R EAth financial institutions with original maturity
ERMERENVAEER over three months
) (154,665) 795,640
[EEIHAH#2E 3 {EH Change in placements with banks and other
ZAEERT T R EHA S financial institutions with original maturity
RS > B BRTEI over three months
pid 0] (4,123,759) 1,408,461
NEE bR AR Change in financial assets at fair value through
ZSERE 2 ) profit or loss 1,337,299 5,832,320
£ &R T B > 85) Change in derivative financial instruments (2,461,252) 1,082,881
B E MR TE 8 Change in advances and other accounts
i) 29,877,114 (4,272,294)
ERIEE 2 EE) Change in financial investments (3,886,707) (19,726,059)
Hpth &z~ ) Change in other assets (1,389,359) (1,363,053)
SRAT R HoAth b fers Change in deposits and balances from banks
IR SR 8 and other financial institutions
i) (18,172,991) (9,341,243)
NEEEET ATELE Change in financial liabilities at fair value
2 ERhEE > ) through profit or loss 418,815 (1,334,585)
TR k) Change in deposits from customers 25,709 28,927,399
S TERE R AT Change in debt securities and certificates of
HE > 88 deposit in issue 964,521 (6,702,577)
HAN R R R 8 Change in other accounts and provisions
B 1,007,754 (4,509,561)
PR RSB 2 B Effect of changes in exchange rates (67,587) 566,014
BRI SRS 2R Operating cash inflow/(outflow) before taxation
A/ CRHD 7,737,384 (3,316,057)
BB e RE P Cash flows from operating activities included:
R
- CHFIE - Interest received 22,544,501 20,878,226
- BEfFFIE - Interest paid (14,799,632) (12,160,431)
- IR - Dividend received 1,402 1,467
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36. LrERSTEFRMNEE  36. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

241

(&)
(b) & MEEHETE (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
HE&EES
2024 2023
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR S KR FIHA H Cash and balances with banks and other
£ 3 {EBNZfE financial institutions with original maturity
SRAT B HoAth < @i within three months
TSRV ER 51,291,580 46,948,848
FEEEHAF 3 @A N Placements with banks and other financial
ZAESRAT R H A< institutions with original maturity within three
Rl > EHAFRL months 6,192,795 552,007
REHAEF 3 @A N Treasury bills with original maturity within three
e months 3,732,398 7,924,880
JFEHAHAE 3 MHKN Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
K within three months 38,718 1,317,673
61,255,491 56,743,408
(c) IEEBAB B (c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
g
2024 2023
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
‘BEAE Subordinated liabilities
wW1H1H At 1 January 5,468,028 5,455,215
Heis Cash flows:
FTIREAMR Issuance of subordinated liabilities 5,407,723 -
IEERERE Redemption of subordinated liabilities (5,447,680) -
TREAEZER Distribution payment for subordinated liabilities (206,985) (207,394)
R Non-cash changes:
rE M TER Amortisation of discount and issuance cost
By 321,913 211,735
IEa%EEE S Net loss from redemption of subordinated
5= liabilities 20,144 -
HNESEE, Foreign exchange movement (41,243) 8,472
W12 5 31 H At 31 December 5,521,900 5,468,028
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36. LrERSTEFRMNEE  36. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(&)
(c) IEEBAB B (c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (continued)
g (&)
2024 2023
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEAal Lease liabilities
w1H1H At 1 January 737,412 809,968
HERE . Cash flows:
TITHEAE Payment of lease liabilities (254,741) (270,457)
JEIR 58k - Non-cash changes:
i Additions 132,165 182,306
HoAh Others 5,194 15,595
w12 5 31 H At 31 December 620,030 737,412
37. SRARBBRKIE 37. Contingent liabilities and commitments
WARBRBENKIE 2 EE The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of contingent
BEARATRIER 2 SER liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared
HRRHVESR s 4R sy = with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.
FIHE TR & 4TEEH
T 8BS 6 BB i A
AR
2024 2023
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
HPEEEEAIEH Direct credit substitutes 14,907,771 22,417,172
EAXZ AR~ SR & (& Transaction-related contingencies 3,249,192 1,910,983
HEE DA s RAE Trade-related contingencies 31,474,074 29,152,270
HiBERENERENE Asset sales with recourse 2,639,007 664,860
REH e m AR5 Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
PR without prior notice 157,121,221 135,801,299
HARYE » REBHH £ Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 DT - up to one year 1,438,910 3,427,209
-1 8D E - over one year 13,820,773 11,095,086
224,650,948 204,468,879
EE R IHEREE Credit risk-weighted amount 15,613,568 17,743,711
=5 & B e B AR R AR S The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
CERfT=E (&) A 5 The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics
B o FEEEHEUR AR B of each type of contract.
F BN S HEEI
PR
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38. EAKIE 38. Capital commitments
AREFAN B ERE PR The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
HZ EAEESTOT ¢ statements:
2024 2023
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
A K SR 4 RS Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 18,308 612,171
B EAEY Authorised but not contracted for 11,190 72,974
29,498 685,145
PA BB RIS R E 57 Ry The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
HfE A BRSO ¢ SR equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
DIRAEEZ BFEET
T2 2RI -
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7 40.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
39.

Operating lease commitments

As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases:

2024 2023
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Land and buildings
- Not later than one year 4,242 3,852
- One to two years 2,481 1,939
- Two to three years - 1,389
6,723 7,180

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases
typically for a period from one to two years. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits.

Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the directors
believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the amounts involved
in these claims are not expected to be material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
41. Segmental reporting

(a) By operating segment

AERFER o R U £
SR S R BB ASRAT
1SEIRAT ~ IAR SRS R d%

sz
2

& A SRAT A SE ERTTE TS
G EE it 2 AR TR
% (8 ASRAITHEBGREMR
BEAZE > dERT
EBRERBIEE AT
e SNBSS BT
HEHRES > HamEn
REEERVEA  REE R
HMIFRFOSNE R - %
TSEFTE R A SR Y Rl
TEENRIEA > Ry HA SR
GIRtES > WAL
A SRITHIL SRR TSR 47
S W RS Bl T BT HUS
HYE 8 - iE B A 2 ]
B 5 EZ I EEA
0 < RS (A A )
TE o AEAMFEE SR &
EHEGER  CHfEE
IS TS G 2 TR R U 2 A
o (HHEERFERIL
RIS S L TR B
(MEZ > FALIEM &
SEBHIIRR B B B A
AR -

RECIEA R E R FiE
I 52 % B0 T (o6 P A e
- HME ALY
5 o HArSEBART T I
VIR ATIS E R
BB -

PHA ) Ry SR A2
K EREFER B A SRR
Hi {E B EL 5 DU %5 4
BREYIHE -

—{E SRS SR AT A R Z
> FEAEERERER
HEBRIVIEE - BNVE
HEH - SRR S A
oy -

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services.
Personal Banking serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals with non-
individual customers. The Treasury segment is responsible for managing the capital,
liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and receives funds from
deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These inter-
segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism of
the Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect the
effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss information in
relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and liabilities information about
Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting units. Charges
are paid to this segment from other business segments based on market rates per square
foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of items related to the
Group as a whole and totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items directly
attributable to the segment. For management overheads, allocations are made on
reasonable bases.
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41. Segmental reporting (continued)

Year ended 31 December
2024

Net interest
income/(expense)

- External

- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income/(expense)

Net trading gain/(loss)

Net gain on financial
instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on other
financial assets

Other operating
income/(expense)

Net operating income
before impairment
allowances

Net (charge)/reversal of
impairment allowances

Net operating income
I(expense)
Operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Net loss from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties

Net loss from disposal/

revaluation of properties,

plant and equipment

Net loss from redemption
of subordinated
liabilities

Profit/(loss) before
taxation

At 31 December 2024

ASSETS
Segment assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Year ended 31 December
2024

Other information

Capital expenditure

Depreciation and
amortisation

Amortisation of securities

(a) By operating segment (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

AT BIREUT

Personal Corporate  Ff&5%% Eid Hte /Nt =vinis ] &r&
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
BT BT E¥TT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(5,825,675) 7,394,635 6,518,673 8,087,633 8,087,633

7,282,586 (4,483,093)  (2,799,493)
1,456,911 2,911,542 3,719,180 8,087,633 8,087,633
709,712 704,096 (102,118) 54 (2,073) 1,309,671 1,309,671
46,304 134,561 (50,639) 247,783 51 378,060 378,060
260,960 179,062 440,022 440,022
(325) 487,724 189 487,588 487,588
304,982 70,969 (372,947) 138,649 2,868 144,521 (126,557) 17,964
2,517,909 3,820,843 3,942,160 565,548 1,035 10,847,495 (126,557) 10,720,938
(116,927) (2,851,004) 19,590 3,279 (2,945,062) (2,945,062)
2,400,982 969,839 3,961,750 565,548 4,314 7,902,433 (126,557) 7,775,876
(1,080,753) (1,486,757) (490,682) (317,085) (481,967) (3,857,244) 126,557 (3,730,687)
1,320,229 (516,918) 3,471,068 248,463 (477,653) 4,045,189 4,045,189
- - - (44,300) - (44,300) - (44,300)
(7) (30,466) (30,473) (30,473)
(20,144) (20,144) (20,144)
1,320,222 (516,918) 3,450,924 173,697 (477,653) 3,950,272 3,950,272
49,499,537 218,763,269 260,185,891 11,481,587 1,154,006 541,084,290 541,084,290
234,221,874 173,289,051 59,968,347 1,723 2,965,403 470,446,398 470,446,398
- - - 972,688 - 972,688 - 972,688
77,143 125,675 58,041 317,067 70,994 648,920 648,920
- - 349,356 - - 349,356 - 349,356
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

41. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

8 ASRAT FEIRIT
Personal Corporate B K& HiAtr INEF E=tiiis ] e
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
BT T BT BT AT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#HE 2023 F 12 H 31 Year ended 31 December
H 2023
FEFIRUA () Net interest
income/(expense)
- Ak - External (3,486,677) 7,302,590 4,185,614 8,001,527 8,001,527
- BEE - Inter-segment 4,816,156 (3,975,912) (840,244)
1,329,479 3,326,678 3,345,370 8,001,527 8,001,527
TR E UL A Net fee and commission
(4 income/(expense) 643,639 771,452 (56,165) 58 (5,382) 1,353,602 1,353,602
PR M/ (B518)  Net trading gain/(loss) 42,006 413,681 (7,012) (12,066) (356) 436,253 436,253
DA EE{bEt AB2s Net gain on financial
Z &R T EIFULES instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 380,837 6 380,843 380,843
Hitrgp& e 2 ¢ Net (loss)/gain on other
(E518) g financial assets (1,668) 326,528 324,860 324,860
HAEEYLA /() Other operating
income/(expense) 439,928 115,723 (553,263) 139,766 64 142,218 (125,701) 16,517
FREUREAEHRTF4E Net operating income
BULA before impairment
allowances 2,455,052 4,625,866 3,436,295 127,764 (5,674) 10,639,303 (125,701) 10,513,602
B R () /18] Net (charge)/reversal of
petd impairment allowances (366,037) (2,793,334) 21,747 (4,327) (3,141,951) (3,141,951)
AR (2D Net operating income
/(expense) 2,089,015 1,832,532 3,458,042 127,764 (10,001) 7,497,352 (125,701) 7,371,651
L Operating expenses (1,120,307) (1,531,522)  (486,509) (319,746) (328,308)  (3,786,392) 125,701 (3,660,691)
& F], (RstE) Operating profit/(loss) 968,708 301,010 2,971,533 (191,982) (338,309) 3,710,960 3,710,960
BN o (EsiFe > Net loss from fair value
TR adjustments on
investment properties - - - (9,040) - (9,040) - (9,040)
e EEYEE - 2381 Net loss from disposal/
Resetl 2 iRk TE revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment (8,727) (8,727) (8,727)
iR (E5iE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 968,708 301,010 2,971,533 (209,749) (338,309) 3,693,193 3,693,193
72023412 H 31 H At 31 December 2023
BiE ASSETS
IR Segment assets 53,879,011 243,687,803 245,180,144 11,727,765 673,874 555,148,597 555,148,507
A LIABILITIES
Sy A Segment liabilities 197,721,593 208,404,770 77,642,989 1,540 3,386,548 487,157,440 487,157,440
& 2023 412 A 31 Year ended 31 December
H 2023
HAth &kt Other information
BN Capital expenditure - - - 569,903 - 569,903 - 569,903
TS R Y Depreciation and
amortisation 73,382 125,576 49,375 320,051 25,563 593,947 593,947
Eegas 5o Amortisation of securities - - 1,777,966 - - 1,777,966 - 1,777,966
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M. EHRE (8) 41. Segmental reporting (continued)
(b) HEHEERES (b) By geographical area
LT ERHE R B E The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations of the
[ B S BE S 41 subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
KT R Bl a s reporting the results or booking the assets:
SR B A ERCIR Z
SY{TRTAEHN S35
2024 2023
TRBUB{E S HERT . TRHURMEREGRT
ZREBKA ERASEAL ZIFCEA FrAs i
Net operating AEF Net operating el
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
ARTT ATT BETT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHHE Hong Kong 8,143,996 3,330,807 7,887,619 3,379,209
H 8] AT 1, Mainland of China 2,576,942 619,465 2,625,983 313,984
= Total 10,720,938 3,950,272 10,513,602 3,693,193
2024
BRARE IR EE
Contingent
HEE ®aR JEREEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BRI AT BRI BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Hong Kong 387,804,365 335,218,132 11,187,309 82,105,446
e 8] AT 1, Mainland of China 153,279,925 135,228,266 1,428,133 142,545,502
= Total 541,084,290 470,446,398 12,615,442 224,650,948
2023
BRA R IRIE
Contingent
HaEE HAfE FERENEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
AT BT AT T ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Hong Kong 392,864,482 343,319,372 8,611,082 79,978,825
o BR A Mainland of China 162,284,115 143,838,068 1,764,969 124,490,054
=1 Total 555,148,597 487,157,440 10,376,051 204,468,879
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MBS ENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42, BEIRHEE 42. Assets pledged as security

2024 £ 12 H 31 H » As at 31 December 2024, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$6,514,496,000
N £ B & B (2023: HK$3,658,262,000) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to
6,514,496,000 T (2023 facilitate settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
1 W 3,658,262,000 HK$4,814,083,000 (2023: HK$22,216,954,000) were secured by debt securities and bills
7T ) B LAERUA PR related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group
LMD ERGEE Y EEE to secure these liabilites was HK$11,602,843,000 (2023: HK$27,657,705,000) mainly
FEAH o JLA)  AEEE included in “Trading assets” and “Financial investments”.

1% O e 1 (75 58 25 I

EREFZAE B

4,814,083,000 jT (2023
N 22,216,954,000
7T ) » AEERERIEER
BEMERZ EESE B
Wz 11,602,843,000 T
( 2023 4F : & o
27,657,705,000 5T ) i F
Fh T oEEE K&
R ) MY -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
43. Offsetting financial instruments
TERIIRAEFECHS 2

BTV PR S BRI A
FE A0 SR R 2t T &

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

2024
FEREEEFRTHEH
REEAMET REELAKS TEBRER
BHzCERe Fsinogm  Related amounts
CRESI 4Rl B ke LR not set off in the balance
LAELEHE Gross amounts Net amounts sheet
Gross of recognised of financial BWEZ
amounts of financial assets HEH
recognised liabilities set presented in SRTE Cash
financial offinthe the balance Financial collateral p:
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BT BT BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
{23 Assets
TTHESMTE Derivative financial
instruments 2,187,970 - 2,187,970 (254,783) (1,120,462) 812,725
HAthE 7 Other assets 1,108,934 (962,972) 145,962 - - 145,962
3,296,904 (962,972) 2,333,932 (254,783) (1,120,462) 958,687
2024
FEREEEFRTHEH
HEEamE HEBHE2E
REESMELD B5lrigm  Related amounts
RS B OCHRTS AR not set off in the balance
AR RIS Net amounts sheet
Gross Gross amounts of financial [t i
amounts of of recognised liabilities &M
recognised financial assets presented in SRITHE Cash
financial set offin the  the balance Financial collateral p:
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
‘B Liabilities
AR T E Derivative financial
instruments 258,288 - 258,288 (254,783) - 3,505
Hr & Other liabilities 1,628,138 (962,972) 665,166 - - 665,166
1,886,426 (962,972) 923,454 (254,783) - 668,671
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43. &FETEH 7SS (&) 43. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

B Assets

r4emTA Derivative financial
instruments

HAthFzE Other assets

aff Liabilities

TS THE Derivative financial
instruments

Hi& & Other liabilities

ARG ST HSIMT
A THEMEREER S
PR AR R - SR
BY A F R EN B
7 RUE—32 35 2 AR
EEE BRI

2023

NEE&HEKRT NEEAMAER
B CifEste: PYURAYSR

FATWEE&ERPHRE
FHRA 50
Related amounts
not set off in the balance

LSS Rl R A YA AT
EEWEE  Gross amounts Net amounts of sheet
Gross of recognised financial BUgE
amounts of financial assets R
recognised liabilities set off  presented in &Rt T H Cash
financial in the balance the balance Financial collateral AR
assets sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
510,709 - 510,709 (296,242)  (205,188) 9,279
2,176,237 (915,793) 1,260,444 - - 1,260,444
2,686,946 (915,793) 1,771,153 (296,242)  (205,188) 1,269,723
2023
AEWEEAER PR
Sl e THBA AR
REEAFET  PIIIER Related amounts
CHEReH HH Cile Gy notsetoff in the balance
G ELE Fli& E4E%E Net amounts of sheet
Gross Gross amounts financial [SEiviivd
amounts of of recognised liabilities PR L
recognised financial assets presented in SR T H Cash
financial set off in the the balance Financial collateral TRER
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
AT BT AT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
932,594 - 932,594 (296,242) (499,650) 136,702
934,545 (915,793) 18,752 - - 18,752
1,867,139 (915,793) 951,346 (296,242) (499,650) 155,454

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and repurchase transactions
entered into by the Group, related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an
event of default or other predetermined events occur.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44. Transfers of financial assets

The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial assets transferred to third parties, and retained control of the financial assets, the
transferred financial assets are recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the carrying amount at the time of
transfer of the original financial assets, in which the Group determined that it has continuing
involvement, was HK$263,227,000 (2023: HK$262,209,000). As at 31 December 2024, the
Group continued to recognize assets of HK$68,936,000 (2023: 69,954,000) under advances
and other accounts. The Group also recognized other assets and other accounts and
provisions of the same amount arising from such continuing involvement.

45. Loans to directors

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2024 2023
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
at year end 13,214 41,041
Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding during the year 13,594 42,721
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BUCENIFRIBERSE

o B {5 Y A Py I A
AR R -
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£12 A 31 B> AEEZEE
TR B R K
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301,848,000 7T) - 2024 4
P EEIERER,
GO CIE GO
5ol (2023 4% @ fi) »

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited (“Cinda
Financial Holdings”), the Group’s ultimate holding company is China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”) which is a state-owned financial enterprise
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by the Ministry of Finance (the
“MOF”) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange").

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings which is in turn
controlled by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda Hong Kong”).
China Cinda is the controlling entity of Cinda Hong Kong and its major shareholder
and de facto controller is MOF, which is one of the ministries under the State Council
of the PRC Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal revenue and
expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises from deposits from customers and
disposal of loans and advances. As at 31 December 2024, the related aggregate
amount of the Group from deposits from customers was HK$13,635,661,000 (2023:
HK$22,455,924,000) and there was no disposal of loans and advances (2023: Nil). The
aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from deposits from customers with
China Cinda for the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$331,953,000 (2023:
HK$301,848,000) and no net reversal of impairment allowance arising from disposal
with China Cinda (2023: Nil).
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46. TE > FRIE A 135 46. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) EHEF A E K BEAE (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
Pedl > Hi A\ S # controlled by the parent companies (continued)

TR 5 (8D

RER TG T AT The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong arises from deposits from
HIZE 25 B & P e customers. As at 31 December 2024, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
2024 F£12 H 31 H> HK$37,814,000 (2023: HK$1,364,303,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of the
A EE B A R KT R Ry Group arising from these transactions with Cinda Hong Kong for the year ended 31
# ke 37,814,000 T December 2024 was HK$49,979,000 (2023: HK15,337,000).

(12023 4 : #E W
1,364,303,000 JT) - #
F 2024 12 A 31 H
IRAERE - B(EEE AR
RS B A
HY S i 48R R B W
49,979,000 Jr ( 2023
40 Ak 15,337,000
JT)
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MG HFENEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. TE > FRIE A 135 46. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) EHEF A E K BEAE (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
Pedl > Hi A\ S # controlled by the parent companies (continued)

TR 5 (8D

KBRSy BLRE N S]] 2 The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies

HAh A FZE SR EGT arises from derivative financial instruments. As at 31 December 2024, the related

AR T E 2024 £ aggregate amount of the Group was HK$487,000 (2023: HK$68,000) for the asset side
12 A 31 H » AEEMHE and HK$1,089,000 (2023: HK$43,398,000) for the liability side respectively. The

BRRRAE BT A el aggregate amount of net trading gain/loss of the Group arising from these transactions

& - AN 487,000 T with other companies controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31
(2023 4 : #i2 68,000 December 2024 was income HK$471,000 (2023: income HK$1,588,000).

TC) KETESR AR B
#% 1,089,000 7T (2023
ot HEWE 43,398,000
TC)- T 2024 12 A
31 HIRFRE - BiRpAE]
Pl EAth /N RS
BEB MBI P E AN
2 Sz Bk TR AE AR
U A& HE 471,000 JT
(12023 : U A i ¥
1,588,000 7T ) °
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MG HFENEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. TE > FRIE A 135 46. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) ARAFEREGAHE

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

EH 2 H NS
TR 5 (8D

ARER T BRE A B 2
M AFINAL G P &K
FEFERK - 1t 2024 4
12 7 31 5 » REEIHR
XTH HEER oy R
1,996,679,000 JT (2023
4 A5E 856,172,000 7T )
FoAsmE 3,454,512,000 JT
(2023 4 @ B W
5,097,690,000 7T ) - #E
2024 £ 12 A 31 HIEFE
[ > BbEoNE] PR 2 HoAth
D EIR SIS AR T
EELERA RS HHSRER Y
Al FyAslE 46,532,000 T
(2023 # @ % ¥
12,753,000 jT ) K A&
56,457,000 T (2023 4:
J5i 73,533,000 7T ) ©

Ry BAREN B P 2
HMAEHZ S IREY)
5 - B St~ HAE
JEE R A BRI R AR - Y
2024 £ 12 H 31 H >
A5 [ A BRI R TR MR Ry
J % 307,343,000 T
(2023 £ @ & ¥
365,447,000 j©) FoAHE
284,685,000 st (2023
40 & 364,055,000
T o HofoE
240,665,000 st (2023
£12 A 31 H - A%
308,763,000 jr) fufHA
' E K E W
264,024,000 st (2023
AW 335,711,000 7T )
Ay BRI B P ] 2 Ho A
N E S B T RE T g T
ARHEAER - #E
2024 4212 H 31 HIEFE
5 BLREINEIRER 2 HAth
D EI R BB B R
ohEE R YR S AR Ry
4 W 79,051,000 T
(12023 # @ B
59,181,000 jT) -

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from advances to customers and deposits from customers. As at 31 December
2024, the related aggregate amount of the Group was HK$1,996,679,000 (2023:
HK$856,172,000) and HK$3,454,512,000 (2023: HK$5,097,690,000) respectively.
The aggregate amount of income and expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies for the period
ended 31 December 2024 were HK$46,532,000 (2023: HK$12,753,000) and
HK$56,457,000 (2023: HK$73,533,000) respectively.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from property, plant and equipment, other assets and other accounts and
provisions. As at 31 December 2024, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$307,343,000 (2023: HK$365,447,000) and HK$284,685,000 (2023:
HK$364,055,000), of which HK$240,665,000 (2023: HK$308,763,000) represent
right-of-use assets and HK$264,024,000 (2023: HK$335,711,000) represent lease
liabilities arising from lease agreements entered into with other companies controlled
by the parent companies. The aggregate amount of net expenses of the Group arising
from these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies for
the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$79,051,000 (2023: HK$59,181,000).
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MG HFENEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. TE > FRIE A 135 46. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) EHEF A E K BEAE (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
Pedl > Hi A\ S # controlled by the parent companies (continued)

TR 5 (8D

b _Ealthe FE40 » B EL A Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the other
NE A EIRES . H companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered material.

LA B HEFTHIAS B A

NG

REEFIEEEG The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
IEE R ETTIRITER business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

X5 BFEEGK - 3R
REREWETEL S -
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R () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. TEAREALXE 46. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(b) BB RTRSHS ~ AT (b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
B W B R R oAt state controlled entities
BIA BRI S
HrEE A B B A B The Group is subject to the control of the MOF of the PRC Government, which also
BIAREEE RS > IR directly or indirectly controls a significant number of entities through its government
R TS (% authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into
T~ [ B R B banking transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
At e e controlled entities in the normal course of business at commercial terms.

ZEHOCEHMER - A
S — A R
TURFIATE ~ (A - [
A A R LAt B 2
R T R R TSRS

L5 o

B ZEEEAN R These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

I

- fBEE -~ RRERE ME - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
IRFIREZ RN

- RITHEZE TR A - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
B

- HE - -HE - g B - sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
=] El LA B 2 ) controlled entities;
RePTE T2 E5F

- FEHLSNE - PEFK R AR - rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;
B

- RROLERREE K - provision of fiduciary activities; and

- e ANHEE T - purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage services.
TE -~ BE KBk
7% o
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46. FE 7 HRE A L1355 46. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(c)

(d)

FERRBAR

FTHEEEARRER
LERE EH B B A
HET I RG] ~ 45
HREEEEEREZ
At EREE S R A
R EE AR - REE
FELEWEBTGHEZ
FHEEEABTFRRK
mHE AR R EE
RLE o INAERER
A ENE A B R
TR EERAEZE
ET PN Nl
AT TEARRS

FESEAREE 12
A 31 BRI
wre

7 e HoAt A I B T
FEA
BIRFEF]

BT N B HIGS AR

7> 2024 £ 12 H 31
H > AERITHE H
B T — R
ERRET R 5 E
Az B ST e JEE AT T
J& 2 =) K T WE B oy
B &
1,649,499,000 T
(2023 4 @ HE&wx
1,748,907,000 JT)
Y54 & s
2,537,818,000 T
(2023 4 : ¥
1,818,894,000 it ) °

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including Directors and other Senior Management. The Group accepts deposits from
and grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary
course of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction
was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding
companies, as well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
detailed as follows:

2024 2023
M AT
HK$°000 HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 26,859 37,706
Post-employment benefits 2,604 2,439
29,463 40,145

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$1,649,499,000 (2023:
HK$1,748,907,000) and HK$2,537,818,000 (2023: HK$1,818,894,000) respectively.
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IEEFRNEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

47. FIB{ERE 47. International claims

LU M T 20875 B8 B P The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
SRITEYGT  &E FWmEE return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
HUEEERIE RIM RS - B counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
(BRI IEAZ G A e it after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
ARG 1% DA 2 in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
T2 A R R B Y M situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
it BAEFIERERTE & country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office
W 2 PSR R AR A1 is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head office
WERRE - R IERA is located.

T B A 2 3 T BT A
AE > AR 2 i
TRANZ A, - S
AT BIMIT o HE R
RS BRI T 28T

FITAEH -
SR {18 1B 2R Bl i Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of
HE s MR s % (5 the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:
PR REQREE 10%Ek L E
ZAERER
2024
FESRITRANIRSS
Non-bank private sector
FESRIT
SRR FERh
BT Non-bank TS
ST Official financial Non-financial gzt
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R P Mainland of China 34,339,436 1,999,105 14,179,164 51,964,151 102,481,856
T Hong Kong 5,938,151 44,329 16,876,039 32,899,414 55,757,933
2023
FEESRITRA AR
Non-bank private sector
JEERTT B
L Elss
BT Non-bank FANIERS
$RIT Official financial  Non-financial e
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
AT BT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
o [B7] AT HE Mainland of China 29,761,212 726,951 7,902,518 14,449,259 52,839,940
T Hong Kong 6,497,137 15,887 23,667,474 32,190,815 62,371,313
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. EEAEFRNMEZSE  48. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity

;R

(a) WEAMRR

HW12H 31 H

RE
73 & R A IR T B
HAt RIS R
FE $RTT e HoAth <52 R A

—Z A A N E
ZEHIERL
NfEE{ Rt AR
EREE
PrESmTA
B HAHRTH
Brtitidy
fzspANsil:
"I
VISE ~ 231 RSty
v EE
JEWHIH &
HitngE

B

&

SRAT R HA RS 2
R EE
NfEE{ Rt AR
ERRR
PrESmTA
EEFK
BTG
LA RTE R e ff
JERTFrE AR
IRIERIH AR
®‘RIEAME

A fHEE

(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Interests in subsidiaries

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Current tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Certificates of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities
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2024 2023
BT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$ 000

37,440,879 28,501,740
330,285 1,799,670
8,362,223 8,945,239
2,326,752 736,491
183,552,090 209,698,708
143,525,812 132,515,309
11,713,686 11,713,686
417,116 407,600
6,736,812 7,567,495
1,375,043 584,161
113,841 -
4,692,943 3,272,846
400,587,482 405,742,945
6,587,540 23,114,584
6,203,588 5,784,773
355,311 998,577
313,721,678 305,861,174
115,385 -
4,284,557 2,768,530
3,501 537,190
858,235 526,978
5,521,900 5,468,028
337,651,695 345,059,834
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®12H31H
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

(a) Balance sheet (continued)

As at 31 December

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity holder of the
Bank

2024 2023
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$ 000

3,144,517 3,144,517
52,369,244 50,116,568
55,513,761 53,261,085

7,422,026 7,422,026
62,935,787 60,683,111

400,587,482 405,742,945

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2025 and signed on behalf of the Board

FINEA TR Additional equity instruments

B Total equity

B AR Total liabilities and equity

LEEGT 2025 4 3

A 20 HiEuE A P by:

TALREEE

BER Sun Jiandong C [
HE Director HH
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Liu Xiaoguang

Director
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(b) FEZEEEBIR

R2024E1 510

SERORF]
H SRS

FE
FUEFHBFI R
i

HE
AREBEIT AT S
EREZ BT

Exyialeai

)P i

FEREMAFES LG AR
%§ﬁl&§22&$§lﬂz

XAESMEATAER

BB B =EEERN

R2024E12 531 H

* BREERERHUREERHS N - e ER

TR R B B E R losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.

MR (&)

48. EERFRKIERSE

(b) Statement of changes in equity

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

4
Reserves
AR
B bEt A A
R
BE Reserve for
BYMNEEATR — EfhEE fair value
A& Additional Premises through other Bk =1 HERR
Share equity revaluation comprehensive Regulatory Translation Retained st
capital instruments reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
BT T BT T BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2024 3,144,517 7,422,026 5,923,796 (584,835) 883,034 (12,144) 43,906,717 60,683,111
Profit for the year - - - - - - 2,730,354 2,730,354
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises - - (396,142) - - - - (396,142)
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit plan - - - - - - (8,565) (8,565)
Financial instruments at
fair value through
other comprehensive
income - - - 428,890 - - - 428,890
Total comprehensive income - - (396,142) 428,890 - - 2,721,789 2,754,537
Release_upon disposal of } - (114,954) R } R 114,954 }
premises
Release upon disposal of
equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income - - - 66 - - (66) -
Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments - (501,861) - - - - - (501,861)
Transfer (fromjfto retained - 501,861 - - 290,330 - (792,191) .
eamnings
At 31 December 2024 3,144,517 7,422,026 5,412,700 (155,879) 1,173,364 (12,144) 45,951,203 62,935,787

HRT— e 2 i (BFER AR E

ELAt AR mT AR )
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* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future
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48. EERFRKIERSE

R (&)

(b) fEzEEEBIR (F)

202341 H1H
T
Sl -
R
SRR 6
S
AR AL
e R T EL
T
HFEIRATA'

THNEINEATARR

S A /() B E

2023412 H31 H

15 2028 £ AT ERTAEE
2,354,955,000 T(257T 300,000,000)
RAIRREF R — AT S

At 1 January 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Premises

Actuarial gains on defined
benefit plan

Financial instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Issue of additional equity
instruments’

Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments

Transfer from/(to) retained
eamings

At 31 December 2023

SNEATH ) - EEETHRABN
10,785,000 TTAL L AR WHEEHSNAA

THAHpE -

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

fetifhi
Reserves

ARE

FLat AH A2

[ilkentsai]

R Reserve for

HHINEATH e fair value

A Additional Premises through other  ESAfhfE* T gl

Share equity revaluation comprehensive  Regulatory  Translation Retained gt
capital  instruments reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
BT T BT EWETT BT EWETT BT EWETT EWETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,144,517 5,077,856 5,971,997 (1,405,058) 739,799 (12,144) 41,662,387 55,179,354
- - - - - - 2,791,875 2,791,875
- - (48,201) - - - - (48,201)
- - - - - - 13,197 13,197
- - - 820,223 - - - 820,223
- - (48,201) 820,223 - - 2,805,072 3,577,094
- 2,344,170 - - - - - 2,344170
- (417,507) - - - - - (417,507)
- 417,507 - - 143,235 - (560,742) -
3,144,517 7,422,026 5,923,796 (584,835) 883,034 (12,144) 43,906,717 60,683,111

264

for as a deduction from the additional equity instruments.

1.During the year of 2023, the Bank issued HK$2,354,955,000 (US$300,000,000) perpetual non-cumulative subordinated

additional tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity instruments”). Direct issuance costs of HK$10,785,000 are accounted



) NCB #if 7% 4 Af

WBHFENEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

49. RIEREANTE] 49. Ultimate holding company
B [E| E v B A R The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-owned financial
Hl> R EEEEETEA enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by the Ministry of
MR EE (7R Finance (the “MOF”) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
) FEREE AR HLRIE Hong Kong Limited (“‘Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

("B DRRIIATELA R
Kbt SEN 4GPV s
LAAARAE (T & &R
LR ) B S

50. I BHFZE 50. Approval of financial statements
KA FEHZER 2025 £ 3 H The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
20 HEKHEEEmE Nz on 20 March 2025.
2 -
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

1. TESEZFER 1. Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

ke

UM E F SR AT The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is based on the
SESHEAT > EATHESNE S categories with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of loans and
RAMEMR BN ZEER  advances.

HeRAVEBAE RIM RS

FEGHEE 2 85K
TREERIE

WL
- TERIH

- Rk
- IR
- R T

- RO

- (RS

- AR

- Ffth

EA

- EEE A R
FANKE RS
I FHHERR S
[ SR/

- EHAM YR

- [EHREK
- Ffth

e V(o SRR

BRI
FEE LIS MR 2 B

2024
AR B _RE
ZESE  RENE EoRE B
BEFEEREHE % Covered RBE BEEEE BEEEE
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment Impairment
advances to or other or priisi: | allowances- allowances-
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 Stage 1 and 2
AT T AT I AT T AT T AT I
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development 13,794,779 37.07% 816,730 816,730 503,349 31,354
- Property investment 14,151,054 93.29% 35,568 42,759 21,063 46,808
- Financial concerns 17,661,746 5.60% - - - 34,530
- Stockbrokers 643,121 63.84% - - - 52
- Wholesale and retail trade 4,522,200 76.70% 74,400 77,195 8,782 17,442
- Manufacturing 1,919,005 39.09% - 136 - 6,767
- Transport and transport
equipment 3,312,061 26.81% - - - 4,061
- Recreational activities 2,164,362 96.53% - - - 390
- Information technology 749,283 0.54% . . - 3,421
- Others 19,627,328 43.36% 1,407,840 1,403,781 690,582 48,575
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector 176,889 100.00% - 1,713 - 49
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme
- Loans for purchase of
other residential 9,595,782 99.75% 19,189 82,153 - 4,684
properties
- Credit card advances 3 0.00% - 2 - -
- Others 17,351,169 94.28% 26,419 221,901 8,399 4,327
TotKa('):;a”S foruseinHong 405 660,120 5823% 2,380,146 2,646,370 1,232,175 202,460
Trade finance 8,463,355 17.36% 53,082 66,007 19,722 18,370
LOIizriéor use outside Hong 454 399,025 2459% 5130366 4,167,611 1,804,448 913,530
Gross advances to 268,531,500 37.60% 7,563,594 6,879,988 3,056,345 1,134,360

customers
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

MM BER (&)

1. ETESEZFEEZ 1. Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

& (B

FEEEHH B
TR

WL
- TERIH

- BRI
- IR
- AT EE

- RO

- FRIHbER)
- s
BLA
- WEEUB ST -
AR
B B
25T

- [EEHMEEYE
Bk

- [ERRERK
- Hftl

e VR[S SRR

BRI
FEEELISMER Z K

E R

2023
EiieiiTot EHIE I
ZH5tE fF—*rﬁéﬁE a5 B
PSR % Covered SRR PERIERE A AE
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment Impairment
advances to or other or HIHA allowances- allowances-
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3  Stage 1and 2
AT T BNTT AT BIET T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development 17,179,011 38.00% 1,109,704 1,109,704 623,558 143,391
- Property investment 16,930,883 93.11% 972,502 974,549 54,646 48,656
- Financial concerns 23,217,587 7.13% - - - 64,718
- Stockbrokers 170,507 11.51% - - - 93
- Wholesale and retail trade 5,770,986 81.69% 6,873 54,307 5,119 20,348
- Manufacturing 2,536,681 23.85% - 23,587 - 9,892
- Transport and transport
equipment 3,626,081 25.03% - 781 - 13,544
- Recreational activities 2,236,035 94.60% - - - 1,218
- Information technology 823,737 1.78% - 25,887 - 5927
- Others 23,563,424 47.66% 32,903 805,399 14,768 177,212
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector 196,591 99.83% - 1,429 - 27
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme
- Loans for purchase of
other residential 10,049,099 99.81% 2,858 115,388 - 2,848
properties
- Credit card advances 494 0.00% - - - 177
- Others 19,436,459 96.49% 13,977 295,202 2,719 5,806
TotKa('):;a”S foruseinHong o5 737 575 5769% 2138817 3406233 700,810 493,857
Trade finance 8,184,039 23.82% 50,302 82,756 33,645 25,747
L f tside H
o;gzgor Use ouisIAe FIoNg 164 384,704 2304% 4730431 5737686 2,347,290 1,298,406
G d I¢
ross advances fo 298,306,318 3767% 6919550 9226675 3,081,745 1,818,010

customers
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

1. Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement, and classified
or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development
- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers
- Wholesale and retail trade
- Manufacturing
- Transport and transport
equipment
- Recreational activities
- Information technology
- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of flats
in Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme

- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties

- Credit card advances

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong Kong
Trade finance

Loans for use outside Hong Kong

Gross advances to customers

268

2024 2023
WSHRE SR E
R s W R
BEEHE Classified or BIEXEMR  Classified or
New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off  allowances written off
BT BT HRETT HRETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
50,420 334,927 550,360 501,874
46,929 407,843 90,914 -
5,678 - 34,371 -
21 - 93 -
22,430 - 15,189 6,442
3,214 10,285 7,892 18
1,790 - 2,872 -
- - 137 -
4 21,830 1,492 -
587,477 21,085 166,693 -
41 - 9 -
3,235 - 1,373 1,845
- - 130 -
10,102 7,164 3,471 603
731,341 803,134 874,996 510,782
16,620 41,234 46,095 65,050
844,342 2,847,343 2,342,558 1,881,742
1,592,303 3,691,711 3,263,649 2,457,574
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2. mEEAESEERFERE 2. Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio
EEBER

Al KT

2024 EFEEEE
2024 quarter ended
12H 318 9H30H 6H30H 331 H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
TRENEEE LRI EIIE Average value of
liquidity coverage
ratio 212.98% 234.62% 214.18% 169.47%
2023 FREHHEE
2023 quarter ended
12 31 H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
TRENEEE LRI EIE Average value of
liquidity coverage
ratio 165.02% 152.70% 152.07% 155.64%
BN EE LR ER The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean of the
RN ZFEENEE TIEHL liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the calculation
R B M E LR methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
it -39 B0 A B R B MR
Z B RmEYHNHRE T
ERAETETE -
2024 2023
FIREESSHER Net stable funding ratio
FARFEEA IR Quarter end value of net stable funding ratio
- B - First quarter 128.83% 119.36%
- BTG - Second quarter 135.64% 119.71%
- B=FE - Third quarter 139.64% 122.22%
- SEVUZRFE - Fourth quarter 143.66% 123.46%
FFERWFRBEESLRE Quarter end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
RN ERBEE IR 4 methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.
B mBIHRETEITER
FERETR -
REMBEEILRNFEEE The liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio are computed on the consolidated
EIEREDSTE MR I basis which comprises the positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries specified by the HKMA
R GRITEE Cidntd ) 3R in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
FASRAT KB /e E 2 M
J& A ISR -
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. JESRTTHYNMESEZIE 3. Non-bank Mainland exposures

BRI A 2 B F R A AR
B B AR AE 2 ot Ty 2 08A
BAHSER Z 2E Rk EDN
SRR R T O Z A
ELRRE B4 SRR
ST R AT R HAE S RT3
1 Z B2 B Z P g R
¥ -

TRBUR ~ PREFRAD
i - HINB AT REHE
B3

HITBUR ~ HOTBURRA 0
i - HINB AT REHE
B3

o B A R R e A A
MRS - EiTE L
] REARTE

RS Bl eE—IH L
JF PR ELAt A A

T ELFELE Bt ss I T
JF PR ELAt A A

o BN SN E R eI T
RS > H AR
B8

52 5 4 T H R R
W R IRSRT PR B
&I

Gt

LT (s 5 1 Y B EE A

HE AR EBAES
BRI E IR

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank

counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion instructions
for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland exposures extended

by the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

2024
HEAR HEAH
EER RN RINN
HFRIEE R JE R
ltemsin  On-balance Off-balance  &EEEAE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BRI AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Central government, central
government-owned entities and
their subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 60,812,469 3,362,135 64,174,604
Local governments, local
government-owned entities and
their subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 43,574,173 11,091,172 54,665,345
PRC nationals residing in Mainland or
other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 87,926,102 36,942,284 124,868,386
Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above 4 6,115,689 261,866 6,377,555
Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above 5 638,909 79,816 718,725
PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit
is granted for use in Mainland 6 15,815,374 2,334,035 18,149,409
Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures 7 2,966,892 - 2,966,892
Total 8 217,849,608 54,071,308 271,920,916
Total assets after provision 9 554,464,424
On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 10 39.29%
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3. JESRTHYAMESE&IE 3. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

(&

HHILBU ~ BB R
g - HitB AR REHE
i

HOFEUR ~ HOFBURFEFA
g - HitB AR REHE
i

o ERIEE 5 A B B B LA 85
PEERAIRE ~ HIE A
H R EERE

A EUFELE Bl S — TR L
JRF IR AR

A EUFEAE Al 5E IR T B
JRF IR AR

R FE AN E R e Mt
THAyBRE > H AR BERY
B8

FLANAR 7 3 T L b K 1
WS IR SRAT B P S L B
HRAE

Hast

iy

FLRAE (S - TR HY B R ARER

B BRI R AES
HESEHEA

2023
EiEAHA HAEAME
BER R RIMY
HRIHE JE B B
Items in On-balance  Off-balance 48K
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Central government, central
government-owned entities and
their subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 74,456,082 3,278,877 77,734,959
Local governments, local
government-owned entities and
their subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 49,671,433 12,888,347 62,559,780
PRC nationals residing in Mainland or
other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 85,158,131 36,394,686 121,552,817
Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above 4 7,141,305 329,500 7,470,805
Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above 5 553,545 54,817 608,362
PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit
is granted for use in Mainland 6 21,863,315 2,276,761 24,140,076
Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures 7 4,197,920 248,506 4,446,426
Total 8 243,041,731 55,471,494 298,513,225
Total assets after provision 9 567,570,212
On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 10 42.82%
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management

The Overview

The principal types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate risk,
market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, strategic
risk, technology risk, conduct risk and climate risk. The Group’s risk management objective is
to enhance shareholder value by maintaining risk exposures within acceptable levels.

Risk Management Structure

The Bank’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) holds the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s
overall risk management. It establishes a sound risk culture and determines the risk
management strategies and the risk management structure.

To achieve the Group’s goals in risk management, the Board sets up the Risk Management
Committee, which comprises of Independent Non-executive Directors, to oversee the Group’s
various types of risks, review and approve the high-level risk management policies. Also,
Credit Approval Committee is set up under the Risk Management Committee to review or
approve credit applications and credit management related matters exceeding the Chief
Executive’s authority or as required by the policy and monitor the credit activities of the Group.

Credit Approval Specialized Committee set up by the Chief Executive is responsible for
approving credit business within the authorisation. Also, according to the risk management
strategies established by the Board, risk management policies and controls are devised and
reviewed regularly by relevant departments and respective management committees set up
by the Chief Executive.

The risk management units develop policies and procedures for identifying, measuring,
evaluating, monitoring, reporting and controlling credit risk, market risk, operational risk,
reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, strategic risk,
technology risk, conduct risk and climate risk; set appropriate risk limits; and continually
monitor risks.

The Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management policies and controls to ensure that the Group is operating according to the
established policies, procedures and limits.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

Independence is crucial to effective risk management. To ensure the independence of risk
management units and Audit Department, risk management units and Chief Risk Officer
report directly to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Department reports directly
to the Audit Committee respectively. Both committees are specialised committees set up by
the Board and all members are directors of the Bank.

(i) Credit risk management
Details of credit risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(i) Liquidity risk management
Details of liquidity risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(iii) Market risk management
Details of market risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(iv) Interest rate risk management
Details of interest rate risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(v) Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in every aspect of business
operation and confronted by the Group in its day-to-day operational activities.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(v) Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational risk
management. All departments and units as the first line of defence are the first parties
responsible for operational risk management, and carry out the duties and functions of self-
risk control in the process of business operation through self-assessment and self-
enhancement. The Operational Risk and Climate Risk Division together with certain specialist
functional units in relation to operational risk management within the Group, including the
Human Resources Department, Information and Technology Risk Management Division,
Legal and Compliance Division, Administration Division, Finance Department (collectively
known as “specialist functional units”), are the second line of defence. They are responsible
for assessing and monitoring the operational risk conditions in the first line of defence, and
providing them with guidance. Specialist functional units are required to carry out their
managerial duties of the second line of defence with respect to some specific aspects of
operational risk and its related issues. Besides taking charge of operational risk management
in their own units, these units are also required to provide other units with professional
advicel/training in respect of certain operational risk categories and to lead the Group-wide
operational risk management. Audit Department is the third line of defence which provides
independent assessment to the effectiveness and adequacy of the operational risk
management framework and is required to conduct periodic audit of the operational risk
management activities of various departments or specialist functional units within the Group
regarding their compliance and effectiveness and to put forward recommendations for
remedial actions.

The Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and
authorisation. risk management tools or
methodologies such as key risk indicators, self-assessment, operational risk events

The Group adopts various operational

reporting and review to identify, assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business
activities and products, as well as purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable
operational risks.

Business continuity plans are established to support business operations in the event of an
emergency or disaster. Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are
conducted.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(v) Operational risk management (continued)

Operational losses are one indicator of the effectiveness and robustness of the non-financial
risk control environment. As of 31 December 2024, the net operational loss of the Group is
approximately HK$1,330,000. The operational risk loss event whose net loss equal to or more
than HK$200,000 falls within Basel Committee’s event-type category “Clients, products and
business practices”. The net operational loss that disclosed above does not cause a material
impact on the Group’s financial status.

(vi) Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business practices,
whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the customer base, or lead to costly
litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent in other types of risk and every
aspect of business operation and covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed its Reputation
Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent reputation risk proactively
at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since reputation risk is often caused by various
types of operational and strategic issues that negatively impact the trust and perception of the
Group, all departments or functional units are required to collect, analyse, record and report
on reputation risk events and associated risk factors as part of their daily work. When making
significant decisions, implementing businese strategies and conducting business activities, all
departments or functional units are required to factor in reputation risk, evaluate the potential
market impact comprehensively, and take appropriate preventive measures.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to continuously monitor
reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This continuous monitoring enables the
Group to effectively manage, control and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an
incident. The Group also adopts robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public
image.

275



) NCB #if 7% 4 Af

REFZLZ
MM BER (&)
4. BEHE (&)

EE AR (8D

(vii) JEE R ERUE R E
AR 5 R (o] AT
G~ FRRASAHI AT ATRE
o A A S 51K 0
PUR AL R I BRI - &
AR i R R T ]
FEEBRAFR - 1T ] SEEEA
FEEFRZ AR E
TR - S BBRASEE
TRIEH g  JEERE R AR
AR EMEER - FrAA
EREREBHERERE
MU « A R AR
HEGRZ RN FRHERE
HIAHRCER 7y - S &) T HY
JERE T B At

(viii) SR e B
R JL iz 115 A 4 I A B %
THERNE > LG 72 B K B Y
B> DUR R BT RS BRI
HET S TR J7 5N
IR > P ESRIEHIET - &
it B R AR T R - (e
REEEREA] ~ EA - (EEA
TG 2 ES B -
] O L RS R b R
PR - RIS R GE]
EREHARHEREGAT
oyl B E R AL

(ix) Fps
PHRERIE T TERRH
BV A E SN R A A
5 B i e L B T AR SR Y
Jag o RV 15 B BB
o R~ G R AR
JiE o EAEECHRAEE - AN
&~ IR (ERERE (B
PRAEPR R B ) R HoAt B T2
B R b e R R R
Ve B RS B,
EHBERREE A EEH R
TEAVEHAREN Y > HEREE T
i E 2 R AL

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(vii) Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk refers to the risk that if any unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments
occur then it may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions
of the Group. Compliance risk refers to the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial
losses or losses in reputation the Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with any
applicable laws and regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the Legal and
Compliance Division. All legal and compliance matters are handled by the Legal and
Compliance Division. As part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, the policy for
the management of legal and compliance risk is approved by the Risk Management
Committee as delegated by the Board.

(viii) Strategic risk management

Strategic risk refers to the risk that may cause negative impacts on the Group’s profitability,
capital, reputation and market position due to the mishandling in the formulation,
implementation, and adjustment of strategies, policies, including macro strategies and
policies, and related plans, schemes, and systems. The Board reviews and approves the
strategic risk management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly
endorsed by Senior Management and the Board.

(ix) Technology risk management

Technology risk refers to the risk of direct or indirect losses to the Group caused by improper
or inaccurate controls over Information Technology (IT), which encompasses automated
means of originating, processing, storing and transferring information, and covers recording
devices, communication networks, computer systems (including hardware and software
components and data) and other electronic devices. Information technology risks are
managed by the Information and Technology Risk Management Division. As part of the
Group’s corporate governance framework, the policy of technology risk management is
approved by the Risk Management Committee as delegated by the Board.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(x) Conduct risk management

Conduct risk refers to the risk of customer complaints or losses, warnings or penalty issued
by regulatory bodies to the Group caused by staff non-compliance, improper selling of
financial products, violation of integrity principles, violation of code and other conduct issues.
Conduct risk is managed by Human Resources Department and quarterly reported to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee as delegated by the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest market situation
and developments.

(xi) Climate risk

Climate risk refers to the risk posed by climate change and is broadly classified into physical
risk and transition risk. Physical risk refers to the impacts of climate and weather-related
events and long-term progressive shifts of climate, while transition risk refers to the financial
risk related to the process of adjustment towards a lower-carbon economy which can be
prompted by, for example, changes in climate policy, technological changes or a change in
market sentiment.

Climate risk may affect the exposures to multiple inherent risks. For instance, climate risk
drivers may lead to business disruption affecting the repayment ability of borrowers, thereby
increasing the exposure to credit risk; a heightened reputation risk with changing market and
consumer sentiment towards more climate or environmentally-friendly products, services and
business practices.

Climate risks are managed by the Operational Risk and Climate Risk Division. Various groups
of risk takers also assume their respective responsibilities for risk management, including The
Board and its committees, management and all related units

The Group reviews its climate risk management strategies to cope with the latest regulatory
requirement and markets situation as well as developments in a timely manner.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review

In 2024, global efforts to combat inflation were nearing an end. However, the escalation of
geopolitical conflicts, the intensification of trade protectionism, sluggish economic recovery
and increasingly fierce industry competition have become evident. Although major economies
such as Europe and the United States have entered interest rate cutting cycle, the pace of
their actions varied. Financing costs remained high, restricting credit growth, which pressured
on the quality of the banking sector's assets. The Mainland economy has experienced a
moderate recovery. In the second half of the year, following the introduction of a series of
stimulus policies, the economic growth rebounded. However, the real estate market has not
bottomed out, domestic demand continued to be weak, and inflation were relatively subdued.
The growth rate of exports in Hong Kong has slowed since August 2024 due to external
factors. Although local banks followed the United States’ rate cuts starting in September 2024,
helping to improve the real estate market sentiment, high interest rates continued to delay full
recovery. Changes in consumer behaviour also posed challenges to local consumption.

Despite a challenging operating environment, the Group unswervingly promoted high-quality
development and strategic implementation, achieving hard-earned operating results:
operating income grew steadily and hit a new historical high, the business structure continued
to be optimised, operational efficiency continued to improve, the unique characteristics of
specialised market operations have been strengthened, the new IT system was successfully
put into operation and operated smoothly, and the Bank was awarded the “Best Domestic
Bank for SMEs in the Greater Bay Area” from EuroMoney.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Financial Review

As of the end of December 2024, the Group reported total assets of HK$541,084 million;
deposits from customers achieved HK$394,416 million; gross advances to customers
recorded HK$268,532 million; the net operating income before impairment allowances
amounted to HK$10,721 million; the operating profit amounted to HK$4,045 million; the profit
after tax amounted to HK$3,477 million; the return on average total equity was 4.81%; the
return on average total assets was 0.63%; the net interest margin (NIM) was 1.55%; and the
classified or impaired loan ratio of the Group was 2.82%.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review
Personal banking

As of the end of December 2024, net operating income before impairment allowances in
Personal Banking amounted to HK$2,518 million, increased by 2.56% year-on-year, providing
strong support for the growth of the Bank’s operating income. The Group adhered to forge its
distinctive and differentiated competitive advantages on customers, products and channels,
with accelerated transition from a product sales-oriented business to a wealth advisory
services-oriented business, which has optimised its revenue structure. During the year,
leveraging an integrated business model, the Group consolidated its customer segmentation
strategies, and deeply explored the demand for cross-border financial services to increase
revenue contributions from cross-border customers. The Group has continued to improve its
wealth customer base. The customer base of NCB Wealth Management, the Group’s mid-to-
high-end personal banking brand, has reached a new level. Private Banking has officially
launched on the market. The Group further developed its investment products, resulting in
increased commission income from investment products and life insurance. It continued to
enrich the content of non-financial services and was committed to becoming the life
stewardship of customers in the Greater Bay Area. The Group further improved its integrated
customer service model and deepened the integration of the Mainland, Hong Kong, online
and offline channels. The functions of digital channels such as NCB Mobile Banking, e+App
and Internet Banking continued to be upgraded. The core customers of digital channels have
been smoothly migrated to the new system, empowering business development through
digitalisation.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Corporate banking

Affected by factors such as insufficient effective demand, net operating income before
impairment allowances in Corporate Banking decreased year-on-year. Faced with a
challenging operating environment, the Group focused on optimising its business structure
and enhancing its capabilities as a customers’ financial stewardship. During the year, the
proportion of the loans to target corporate customers further increased. The amount of the
syndicated loans arranged in Hong Kong with the Group participating as a lead manager,
experienced double-digit growth, and the year-end balance of offshore RMB loans to
corporate customers, green loans and loans to strategic emerging industries all significantly
increased year-on-year. The Group continuously expanded and upgraded its various cross-
border business corporation ecosystems, and leveraged the advantages of Hong Kong's
international capital market, which facilitated the launch of several innovative business
models with NCB characteristics. Among which, innovation project supporting “Belt and Road”
corporation and innovation project involving cross-border business both were awarded the
“Excellence in Cross Border Financial Services Award” organised by the Chinese Financial
Association of Hong Kong.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Treasury

As of the end of December 2024, net operating income before impairment allowances by
Treasury amounted to HK$3,942 million, increased by 14.72% year-on-year. During the year,
the Group proactively responded to market changes, focusing on product and business
innovations, providing customers with differentiated integrated services such as one-stop
solutions for cross-border investment and financing, exchange rate and interest rate
management, and helping customers reduce financing costs and capture market
opportunities through innovative businesses such as cross currency swap without principal
exchange. The Group continued to leverage group synergy effect and, together with Cinda
Group’s branches and subsidiaries and NCB China, launched several bond issuances,
certificate of deposit issuances, cross-border QDII US dollar wealth management and other
businesses. It actively promoted the concept of green finance, and the scale of green bond
holdings has achieved significant year-on-year growth. In the debt capital markets, the Group
strengthened its presence in niche segments, achieving growth in both transaction volume
and bonds issuance scale compared to the prior year. The Group participated in many market
benchmark projects. Among which, the NCB USD Tier 2 Subordinated Notes project, in which
it participated as a joint global coordinator, set several records for the issuance of overseas
Tier 2 capital instruments among comparable banks during the same period. The Group’s
business capabilities were highly recognised by the market and were awarded the “Debt Deal
of the Year — Hong Kong” and “Green Deal of the Year — Hong Kong” organised by the
internationally renowned financial magazine Asian Banking & Finance.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Mainland Business

Faced with numerous challenges such as insufficient domestic demand, narrowing interest
rate spreads, and more intensive competition from major banks, NCB China has maintained
a relatively stable business scale and achieved substantial growth in net profit. NCB China
focused on serving social livelihood, the real economy, and national strategies to fulfil the
tasks regarding the development of technology finance, green finance, inclusive finance,
pension finance, and digital finance. By year end, the scale of green loans and strategic
emerging industry loans significantly increased year-on-year, the balance of inclusive loans
continued to grow, and pension financial products continued to be enriched. NCB’s
technology finance won the special award of the “2023 Finance Technology Development
Award” organised by the People’s Bank of China. At the same time, NCB China is
continuously advancing its business transformation by building cross-border and collaborative
differentiated competitive advantages, while fully resolving and disposing of key risk projects.
Additionally, the bank is constantly improving operational efficiency through intensive
operations and technology empowerment to enhance its overall performance in a dynamic
market environment.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Risk management

The Group adheres to a prudent risk management philosophy, continuously improving its risk
management framework, fully implementing regulatory requirements and utilising the “three
lines of defence” in risk management and prevention mechanism. The Group dynamically
assessed internal and external environmental changes, promptly adjusting risk management
policies, systems and procedures. The Group has optimised its credit approval processes,
with strict client and project entry requirements enforced. The Group has also enhanced its
post-loan monitoring and practiced a series of risky projects screening exercises to
continuously strengthen the quality of its assets. The Group has increased the application of
fintech in risk management, improving early risk identification, correction mechanisms, and
over risk management efficiency. Employees were well trained to maintain compliance
awareness, uphold corporate integrity and align with the corporate culture.

Throughout the year, the Group stepped up efforts to resolve historical high-risk exposures,
actively explored diverse risk mitigation channels and solutions, and significantly reduced the
percentage of high-risk assets, laying a solid foundation for high-quality development.
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5. Business Review (continued)
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Business Review (continued)
Outlook

Looking ahead to 2025, the external environment is expected to become more complex
and challenging, the geopolitical tensions will remain high, and the impact of major elections
and political turbulence worldwide will gradually unfold. Potential tariff measures from the
United States may exacerbate global trade protectionism, increasing inflation risks and
affecting the pace of interest rate cuts, posing challenges to global economic growth. With
the help of a more proactive fiscal policy and an appropriately accommodative monetary
policy, the Mainland economy is expected to maintain a certain level of growth, but the
foundation for recovery will still need to be further consolidated.

2025 marks the final year of the Group’s “Third Five-Year” strategy, and serves as the
foundation year of its “Fourth Five-Year” blueprint. Facing a more challenging market
environment and intensifying industry competition, the Group will remain confident, tackle
weaknesses with the courage to reform and innovative thinking, and address key
challenges to achieve its annual operational goals. The Group will maintain its strategic
focus, adhere to long-termism, strengthen its differentiated competitive advantages, and
elevate high-quality development to new heights.
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IRz Appendix
RERFTZ B AE] Subsidiaries of the Bank
ASRITH A Sy B RS IE A The particulars of our subsidiaries are as follows:
Bt
HIBER H3A SREA TRTRE sEMs  TERG
%78 Place and date of incorporation/ Registered capital/ Interest Principal
Name operation issued share capital held activities
BRI T (B ARAE 2al= FEEA 100% RITHETS
2007 £ 12 H 14 H A% 9,500,000,000 T
Nanyang Commercial Bank The People’s Republic of China Registered capital Banking
(China), Limited 14 December 2007 RMB9,500,000,000 business
HEE RS EFAIR AR il B 100% e
1976 4210 H 22 H % 3,000,000 T
Nanyang Cpmmercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Trustge
Trustee Limited 22 October 1976 HK$3,000,000 services
EFFE R A E AR AT HE Feiilig 100% g el
19845 H 25 H &% 3,050,000 JT
Kwpng Li Nam Investment Agency Hong Kong Ordinary shares Investment
Limited 25 May 1984 HK$3,050,000 agency
FEREIRTT (REA) ARAE | &% Fo il 100% AREEAFR
19804E8 H 22 H &% 50,000 7
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Nominee
(Nominees) Limited 22 August 1980 HK$50,000 services
mE S B EEARAE HE Foiilig 100% IrbRatas &
SHe & - 5
NCB Wealth Management Advisor 2004 29 413 H #E 22,000,000 7 ]
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares
13 September 2004 HK$22,000,000 Insurance
Broker &

Consultancy
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Definitions

In this Financial Statements, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

Terms Meanings

“ALCO” the Asset and Liability Management Committee

“Board” or “Board of Directors” the Board of Directors of the Bank

“BOCI-Prudential Manager” BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated under the laws

of Hong Kong, in which held by BOCI Asset Management Limited and Prudential
Corporation Holdings Limited.

“BOCI-Prudential Trustee” BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which held by BOC Group Trustee Company Limited Prudential Corporation
Holdings Limited.

“CET1” Common Equity Tier 1

“China Cinda” China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd., a wholly state-owned financial enterprise
established in the PRC

“Cinda Hong Kong” China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited
“Cinda Financial Holdings” Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited

“CVA” Credit Valuation Adjustment

“DVA” Debit Valuation Adjustment

“‘EV” Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“HKAS(s)” Hong Kong Accounting Standard(s)

“HKFRS(s)” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s)
“HKICPA” Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
“HKMA” Hong Kong Monetary Authority

“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong SAR”

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

“ICAAP” Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
“LCR” Liquidity Coverage Ratio
“MPF” Mandatory Provident Fund

“MPF Schemes Ordinance”

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, as amended

“Mainland” or “Mainland of China”

the mainland of the PRC

“NCB (China)’

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“ORSO schemes” the Occupational Retirement Schemes under Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the Laws of Hong Kong

“‘OTC” Over-the-counter

“PRC” the People’s Republic of China

“PVBP” Price Value of a Basis Point

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“STC” Standardised (Credit Risk)
“STM” Standardised (Market Risk)
“STO” Standardised (Operational Risk)

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“the Bank” Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cinda Financial Holdings

“the Group” the Bank and its subsidiaries collectively referred as the Group

“us” the United States of America

“VAR” Value at Risk
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